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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING

Village Hall Auditorium
53 South La Grange Road

La Grange,lL 60525

Monday, October 8,2012 - 7:30 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Trustee Holder
Trustee Horvath
Trustee Kuchler
Trustee Langan
Trustee Nowak
Trustee Palermo
President Asperger

PRESIDENT'S REPORT
This is an opportunityfor the Village President to report on matters of interest or
concern to the Village.

PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS
This is the opportunityfor members of the audience to speak about matters that
are included on this Agenda.

OMNIBUS AGENDA AND VOTE
Matters on the Omnibus Agenda will be considered by a single motion and vote
because they already have been consideredfully by the Board at a previous
meeting or have been determined to be of a routine nature. Any member of the

Board of Trustees may request that an item be movedfrom the Omnibus Agenda
to Cuftent Businessþr separate consideration.

Request to Purchase - Police Department / Replacement of Squad

Cars

Material Purchase - Public Works IFY 2012-13 Tree Planting
Program & Resolution - Public Works / Suburban Tree
Consortium

Open Meetings Act - Review of Closed Session Minutes

Minutes of the Village of La Grange Board of Trustees Town
Meeting Monday, September 24,2012
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Village Board of Trustees Regular Meeting
Agenda - October 8,2012 -Page2

CURRENT BUSINESS
This agenda item includes consideration of matters being presented to the Board
of Trusteesfor action.

A. Presentation - FY 201l-12 Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports:
Refemed to Trustee Langan

MANAGER'S REPORT
This is an opportunityfor the Village Manager to report on behalf of the Village
Staffabout matters of interest to the Village.

A. Pre-Budget Development Workshop - Revenues

PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING MATTERS NOT ON AGENDA
This is an opportunityfor members of the audience to speak about Village
related matters that are not listed on this Agenda.

EXECUTIVE SESSION
The Board of Trustees may decide, by a roll call vote, to convene in executive
session if there are matters to discuss confidentially, in accordance with the

Open Meetings Act.

TRUSTEE COMMENTS
The Board of Trustees may wish to comment on any matters.

IO. ADJOURNMENT

The Village of La Grange is subject to the requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and
who require certain accommodations so that they can observe and/or participate in this
meeting, or who have questions, regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the
Village's facilities, should contact the Village's ADA Coordinator at (708) 579-2315
promptly to allow the Village to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Police Department

BOARD REPORT

TO: Village President, Village Clerk,
Board of Trustees and Village Attorney

FROM: Robert Pilipiszyn, Village Manager
Michael Holub, Police Chief

DATE: October 8,2012

REOUEST TO PURCHASE _ POLICE DEPARTMENT / REPLACEMENT
OF SOU D CARS

At the regular Village Board meeting on September 10, 2012, the Police Department submitted a

new request to purchase replacement squad cars for consideration by the Village Board. In brief, the

Police Department re-evaluated its needs and found the Ford Taurus police package as a suitable

alternative to the Chevrolet Caprice. As the Ford Taurus police package is not currently offered
through the state purchasing contract, the Police Department approached Westfield Ford of
Countryside, Illinois and negotiated a unit price comparable to that which the City of Countryside

recently paid for the same police vehicle model. In addition, the total cost of the purchase was

$5,000 less than if the Village had purchased a fleet of Chevrolet Caprice squad cars through the

state purchasing contract. For these and other reasons, staff recommended that the Village Board

waive the formal bidding process and authorize staffto purchase the six replacement squad cars from
Westfield Ford as negotiated.

It was the consensus of the Village Board to table the purchase of the new squad cars and directed

staff to conduct a competitive solicitation of proposals from area Ford dealerships.

In follow-up to that direction we sent bid requests to 12 dealerships but had difficulty receiving
proposals. We learned that most of these Ford dealers would have to place a special order for these

vehicles and that was not of interest to most of them. Consequently, we amended our car

specifications to exclude some wiring and lighting packages and finally received two additional
proposals.

Below is a chart showing the three competitive proposals we obtained:
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Ford Taurus Unit Price Squad Cars (6)Dealership

$176,004.00Westfield Ford $29,334.00

$178,632.00Joe Cotton Ford $29,772.00

$29,999.00 $179,994.00Hawk Ford

$176,004.00Westfield Ford - Squad Cars (6)

-$39,000.00Estimated Trade-ln Value (6)

$9,000.00Equipment Removal/lnstal lation

Striping, Lettering, Graphics $3,900.00

Total Purchase Cost $149,904.00

$155,000.00ERF Budget Allocation

Request to Purchase - Police Department /
Replacement of Squad Cars

October 8,2012 - Page2

We note that Joe Cotton Ford and Hawk Ford were not interested in obtaining our existing vehicles
through a trade-in. We also note that Westfield's revised proposal is based on the exclusion of
certain wiring and lighting packages, but that its unit price has remained unchanged.

It is our recommendation that the Village Board waive the formal bidding process and authorize staff
to negotiate the purchase of six replacement squad cars for the Police Department from Westfield
Ford in Countryside, Illinois in an amount not to exceed $ 150,000.

I{ :\eelderþllie\BrdRpt\PDPurchascSquads3 rd I 2.doc
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Department of Public Works

BOARI) RT

TO Village President, Village Clerk, Board of Trustees, and Village Attomey

FROM: Robert J. Pilipis4m, Village Manager
Ryan Gillingham, Director of Public Works
Don Wachter, Village Forester

DATE: October 8,2012

RE: MATERIAL PURCHASE - PUBLIC \ilORKS / FY2O12-13 TREE
PLANTING PROGRAM

RESOLUTION - PUBLIC \ilORKS / SUBURBAN TREE
CONSORTIUM

The Village has a long proud heritage of maintaining tree-lined streets dating back to its
founding father, Franklin Cossitt. In maintaining our urban forest, we strive to plant a
replacement tree for each parkway tree removed due to disease and damage (storm, vehicularo

etc.) In addition, we attempt to fill vacant parkway locations if available funds allow. Each
year in the spring and fall the Village plants replacement trees in parkways to replace trees
that were removed.

Since 1986 the Village has participated in the Suburban Tree Consortium to jointly purchase

and plant parkway trees on behalf of a number of municipalities in an effort to realize cost
savings through economies of scale and ensure a reasonable supply and variety of suitable
parkway trees. The Suburban Tree Consortium contracts separately with nurseries for the
ptrchase of the trees and a landscaping contractor for their installation.

Over the last five years, the Village has on average replanted approximately l l l trees per
year. Of the 130 trees that were removed by contractors this fiscal yea417 were elm trees

that were diagnosed with Dutch Elm Disease and 92were removed due to Emerald Ash Borer
(EAB). Please note that the number of elm trees removed each year is going down as the
population of elm trees susceptible to the disease diminishes. However, as detailed during the
Capital Projects budget process, ash tree removal and replacement is increasing due to
damage resulting from the EAB. Therefore, we anticipate adding additional trees in the future
to our purchase request from the Suburban Tree Consortium to account for trees lost due to
this insect.

I
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FY 2012.13 TREE PLAI\ITING PROGRAM
Exoenses

Estimated
Ouantitv

Average
Unit Price

Total

2012Fall Tree Plantins
Routine Replacement 38 309.88 11,776

30 309.88 9,296EAB Replacement
21,072

2013 Sprine Tree Planting
Routine Renlacement 28 341.91 9.574
EAB Replacement 49 341.91 16,753

26327

47399Total

Revenues
f"f2012-13 Budset
Capital Proiects - Tree Planting Program 45,000
Capiøl Projects - Emerald Ash Borer ($60,000 Total /
$29.400 Removal/$26,000 Plantind$4.600 Treatment)

26,000

Total 71,000

The following table details the estimated number of trees to be replanted this fiscal year and
the available funding for this program.

Please note that the average unit price per tree for the fall tree planting program is lower than
spring program due to the fact that the variety of the trees planted in the fall are less expensive.

In preparation for the Fall Tree Planting Program the Public Works Department has removed all
of the stumps and prepared the planting locations for each tree. The actual planting of the tree
normally takes place the second week of November.

In summary, we recommend that the Village Board authorize staffto purchase and plant trees
which have been competitively bid through a municipal purchasing cooperative known as the
Suburban Tree Consortium in an amount of $21,072 for the20l2 Fall Tree Planting Program
and 526,327 for the 2013 Spring Tree Planting Program. As this is a unit price contract the
final amount of the contract will be based on the actual installed quantity of trees at the unit
prices listed in the contract. Secondly, it is our recornmendation that the attached resolution
affrrming the Village's commitment to Suburban Tree Consortium be approved.

\
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSTNG TNTENT
TO PARTICIPATE IN TT{E SUBURBAN

TREE CONSTORTIUM FIVE YEAR CONTRACTUAL PROGRAM

\ryHEREAS, the Village of La Grange has heretofore joined the cooperative known as

the Suburban Tree Consortium; and

\ryHEREAS, the Suburban Tree Consortium was created to jointly purchase parkway
trees on behalf of a number of municipalities in an effort to realize cost savings and insure a
reasonable supply and variety of suitable parkway trees; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 65 of ILCS 5/l l-73.1-l entitled "Municipal and Joint Municipal
Tree Planting Programs", authorizes municipalities to jointly enter into long term contracts for the
purchase and delivery oftrees; and

WHEREAS, due to the nature of the nursery industry and the plant materials desired by
the Suburban Tree Consortium, assuring a reasonable number and variety of parkway trees at the
best price is possible only with a multi-year commitment on the part of the Consortium Members,
so as to allow adequate planning by the Consortium and the Nurseries/Suppliers; and

WIIEREAS, the Suburban Tree Consortium member municipalities provide the
Nurseries/Suppliers a projection of their parkway tree requirements for the next five years; and

WHEREAS, the Suburban Tree Consortium can realize the necessary number and variety
and the best price of such parkway trees only by providing assurance to the tree
Nurseries/Supplier of the level of interest by the Consortium Members; and

NOW TI{EREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of La Grange, Cook County, Illinois, as follows:

l. The Village does hereby express its intent to remain a member of the Suburban Tree
Consortium and to procure parkway trees through the Consortium, subject to sufficient
annual budgeting.

2. All ordinances and resolutions, or parts of ordinances and resolutions, in conflict with this
resolution are hereby rescinded.

3. This Resolution will be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in
the manner provided by law.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Village Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to
send a copy of this Resolution to the Suburban Tree Consortium Secretariat at the West Central
Municipal Conference Ofüce.

,þq '}



PASSED this _ day of Ootober20l2

AYES:

APPROVED this_day of October2012

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ATTEST:

Elizabeth Asperger, Village President

Thomas Morsch, Villags Clerk

,{b3u



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Administrative Offices

BOARD REPORT

TO: Village President and Board of Trustees

FROM: Thomas Morsch, Village Clerk
Mark Burkland, Village Attomey
Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager

DATE: October 8,2012

RE: OPEN MEETINGS ACT - REVIEW OF CLOSED SESSION MINUTES

State law requires that minutes of closed meetings be reviewed periodically to determine ifthere is any

continuing need to have them remain confrdential. The Village Clerk, Village Attomey and Village
Manager recently conducted such a review and have determined that the minutes from the following
closed sessions of the La Grange Village Board of Trustees be approved and released:

Iuly 7,2009

Vy'e recommend that the minutes from the following closed sessions ofthe La Grange Village Board of
Trustees be approved and remain confidential:

January 12, 2009 (partial)
June25,2012

In order to protect the confidentially of these minutes until such time that the Village Board has

approved their release, a complete set of the minutes listed above are available for inspection by the
Village Board at the Village Clerk's office in advance of your meeting.

H :\eelder\ellie\BrdRpl\CSMinutes I 008 I 2.doc
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MINUTES

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING

Town Meeting - Seventh Avenue School Gymnasium
701 Seventh Avenue
La Grange,lL 60525

Monday, September 24,2012 - 7:30 p.m.

I. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange Regular Town Meeting was called to

order at 7:33 p.m. by President Asperger. President Asperger welcomed all to the first in
a series of Town Meetings being held in various areas of the Village and introduced
members of the Village Board of Trustees and staff. Thanking School Principal Sheny
Krzyzanski for the use of the facility, President Asperger requested Village Clerk
Thomas Morsch to call the roll and lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

Trustees Holder, Horvath, Langan,Nowak and Palermo

Trustee Kuchler

OTHERS Village Manager Robert Pilipiszyn
Assistant Village Manager Andrianna Peterson

Village Attorney Mark Burkland
Finance Director Lou Cipparrone
Community Development Director Patrick Benj amin
Assistant Community Development Director / Planner Angela Mesaros
Public Works Director Ryan Gillingham
Assistant Public Works Director Mike Bojovic
Fire Chief William Bryzgalski
Police Chief Michael Holub

2. PRESIDENT'S REPORT

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS

None

4. OMNIBUS AGENDA AND VOTE

A. Motion to Table - Variation - Maximum Building Coverage lDajana Spasojevic,
850 S. lOth Avenue

t\"!



Board of Trustees Regular Town Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 24,2012 - Page 2

B. Minutes of the Village of La Grange Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Monday,
September 10,2012

C. Consolidated Voucher 120924 - ($816,182.95)

Trustee Holder inquired if the motion to table the variation regarding maximum
building coverage would mean sending it back to the commission. Village Attorney
Mark Burkland clarified noting the action being taken this evening is to lay the item
on the table for an indefinite period of time. To remand it back to the Plan

Commission or Zoning Board of Appeals would require a new notice and public
hearing.

It was moved by Trustee Langan to approve items A, B, and C of the Omnibus
Agenda, seconded by Trustee Nowak.

Approved by roll call vote.

Ayes: Trustees Holder, Horvath, Langan, Nowak and Palermo
Nays: None
Absent: TrusteeKuchler

5. CURRENT BUSINESS

A. Professional Services Agreement - Combined Dispatch Study: Referred to President

Asperger

President Asperger noted one of the strategic priorities for the Village Board of
Trustees was to explore opportunities for the consolidation of core services.
Participating in a case study with the Villages of La Grange Park and Western
Springs, opportunities were identified to share resources and partner in the delivery
of core public safety services. The results of the study were presented to the Village
Board and looked upon favorably. President Asperger detailed the process

undertaken in preparing a request for proposal for professional services.

Itemizing the procedures undertaken with each municipality and each one's desire to
move forward, President Asperger explained that AECOM out of Lynchburg,
Virginia was found to be the firm best qualified and cost effective to conduct a

technical study for a combined dispatch anangement between the three
communities.

President Asperger explained that a contract was developed by La Grange Park with
legal review provided by their Village Attorney as well as Attorney Burkland.
Adding that the $75,000 project cost will be divided evenly among each of the three

communities, President Asperger noted that funds have been budgeted for this
project.

.D\
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Board of Trustees Regular Town Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 24,2012 - Page 3

It was moved by President Asperger to approve the professional services agreement

to conduct a technical study for a combined dispatch affangement between the

Villages of La Grange, La Grange Park, V/estern Springs and AECOM of
Lynchburg, Virginia, seconded by Trustee Holder.

President Asperger added that each community has presented it at their last meeting
and it was unanimously supported.

Trustee Holder noted the thoroughness in the contents of the report.

Trustee Horvath inquired why joining an existing regional dispatch center was not
being considered. President Asperger responded that the consultant who performed

the case study one year ago favored the creation of a combined dispatch amangement

among the three study partners rather than joining an existing center.

Motion approved by a 5 to 0 vote.

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

Trustees Nowak, Langan, Holder, Palermo, and Horvath
None
Trustee Kuchler

8

6. MANAGER'S REPORT

Village Manager Robert Pilipiszyn invited residents to attend the Fire Department's
Open House on Saturday, October 6. Mr. Pilipiszyn also announced that the Police
Department will be a collection site for unwanted and unused prescription drugs as

part of the National Drug Take-Back Initiative sponsored by the Drug Enforcement
Administration on September 29, 2012.

7, EXECUTIVE SESSION

TOWN MEETING

Prior to opening the floor to the audience, President Asperger shared a number of the
Village Board's priority goals and accomplishments. With a challenging economy,
President Asperger summarized the data as follows:

The implementation of a Cost Containment Plan which has resulted in a reduction of
expenses in order to stabilize Village finances while maintaining the delivery quality
core Village services including capital improvements.

Amending and adopting a five-year Village budget which includes a financial plan to
rebuild General Fund reserves and defer an increase in utility taxes.

Financial recognition by Moody's Investor Services affirming the Village's Aa2 bond
rating.

a
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Board of Trustees Regular Town Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 24,2012 - Page 4

Refìnancing Library Bonds previously issued at a lower interest rate and achieving a

lower interest rate in bonowing for alternate revenue bonds to be issued to upgrade
the Village's water system.

Economic Development including recognition from the West Suburban Living
Magazine; noted as the'oTop Transit Suburb" of Metropolitan Chicago; featured on
the 'oHungry Hound" and the opening of several new businesses.

a

a

a

a

Renovations to the Stone Avenue train station are expected to begin in 2013.

The YMCA has renewed its interest in building a new facility on its property;
re-development of the site is not anticipated for the foreseeable future.

Issuing general obligation alternate revenue bonds to finance the cost of replacing
outdated water meters and upgrade the water pumping station in order to improve
water accountability.

Acceptance of a new engineering plan to resurface neighborhood streets block-by-
block based on condition rather than a neighborhood-wide basis.

o

a

The Village is continuing to replace diseased trees due to the Emerald Ash Borer

Referendum on the upcoming November 6,2012 election for voters to determine if
the Village should be given the authority to seek competitive bids for electric
aggregation.

At 8:05 p.m. President Asperger opened the floor to audience for questions, comments or
concerns.

Mary Ellen Penicook, Commissioner for the La Grange Park District, provided updates
on improvements to several parks as well as the recreation facility.

Marcus Washington,3lT E. Franklin Avenue expressed concerns with cost containment
relative to promotions and reduced personnel, specifically first responders. Mr.
Washington inquired why the B.A.D.G.E. (Balanced Approach to Drug & Gang
Elimination) program has been dissolved. Lastly, Mr. Washington inquired about
communication to residents regarding budgetary workshops and discussions.

President Asperger clarified that cost containment efforts to reduce personnel expenses
have involved leaving certain positions vacant, not lay-ofß. [n addition, the Village is

looking at the restructuring of responsibilities when retirements occur. President
Asperger explained that the B.A.D.G.E. program was federally funded through grants

which are no longer available. Noting upcoming budget discussions, President Asperger
added that all meetings and workshops are open to the public and notification is provided
to the media; public library; and posted on the Village's website.

ü,
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Board of Trustees Regular Town Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 24,2012 - Page 5

Richard Valentino, 745 Mason Drive inquired on the status of placing traffrc signals on
Gilbert Avenue adjacent to Denning Park. President Asperger requested Public Works
Director Ryan Gillingham to respond. Mr. Gillingham noted that concept plans are in
place, however as a majority of the project will be funded by grants, construction is not
anticipated until sometime between2}l3 or 2014.

Patricia Topps, 211 Eighth Avenue noted the lack of street lighting in the vicinity of
Lincoln and Tilden Avenue. Ms. Topps also inquired about a vacated or abandoned
home at20l Hayes Avenue. President Asperger indicated that the Department of Public
Works would check on the issue regarding street lights and requested Community
Development Director Patrick Benjamin to respond on the vacated house. Mr. Benjamin
indicated that the Village is familiar with the property, noting improvements made over
time, but that the department will investigate this specific observation.

Jim Delaney,730 Eleventh Avenue noted that his water meter was replaced
approximately 8 years ago. President Asperger requested Mr. Gillingham to provide
information on the upcoming replacement of water meters. Mr. Gillingham noted that
meters had been replaced on an individual basis when needed, however a Village wide
replacement has not been completed for the past 22 to 25 years and new technology
requires everyone's meter to be replaced. Mr. Delaney thanked Police and Fire
Department staff for their excellent response time and professionalism.

Rose Naseel 911 S. Stone referenced one of the Board's previous discussions related to
zoning code issues. Ms. Naseef believes the zoning code is a tool which reflects the
Village's Comprehensive Plan and should be flexible as it relates to safety concerns and
green space for all residents of La Grange. President Asperger noted that Ms. Naseef is a
volunteer on the Zoning Board of Appeals and thanked her for her thoughtful comments.

Jim Pavlecic, 801 Country Club Drive reiterated his comments from a previous Town
Meeting in reference to the Village's budget and expressed concerns with deficit
spending or borrowing money during the current economic environment. Mr. Pavlecic
does not believe the Park District needs to have a banquet hall, and with modem
technology and internet access does not feel the need for the expansive library building.
Mr. Pavlecic does believe that less is better and suggested more consolidation and
cutbacks in personnel. President Asperger thanked Mr. Pavlecic for his perspective.

Patricia Topps inquired about Metra service on the Indiana Harbor Belt railroad. Village
Manager Pilipiszyn noted that this planning concept will likely not be developed further.

La Grange resident Patrick Campanelli concurs that less is better, however believes most
importantly that the Police Department and Fire Department should be fully staffed.

TRUSTEE COMMENTS

Trustee Langan thanked all for attending the meeting.
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ATTEST:

Thomas Morsch, Village Clerk

H :\eelder\el lie\Minutes\VBTown0924 I 2.doc

Approved Date:

Board of Trustees Regular Town Meeting Minutes
Monday, September 24,2012 -Page 6

Trustee Palermo added his thanks to the audience for their attendance and invited them to
share their ideas and comments by attending meetings conducted at the Village Hall.

ADJOURNMENT

At 8:50 p.m. Trustee Langan moved to adjoum, seconded by Trustee Holder. Approved
by voice vote.

Elizabeth M. Asperger, Village President

(
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Disbursement Approval by Fund

October 8,2012
Consolidated Voucher 121008

10t08t12
Voucher

09t28t12
Payroll TotalNo. Fund Name

01

21

22
24
27
40
50
51

60
70
75
BO

90
91

93
94

General
Motor FuelTax
Foreign Fire lnsurance Tax
ETSB
Drug Enforcement
Capital Projects
Water
Parking
Equipment Replacement
Police Pension
Firefighters' Pension
Sewer
Debt Service
SSA 4A Debt Service
SAA 269
SAA 270

189,618.32

1,032.35
1,414.50

25,810.66
50,008.80
6,249.30
2,833.34

300.00
2,072.04

292,938.24

38,435.10
23,544.41

10,282.37

482,556.56
0.00
0.00

1,032.35
1,414.50

25,810.66
88,443.90
29,793.71
2,833.34

0.00
300.00

12,354.41
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

279,339.31 365,200.12 644,539.43

We the undersigned Manager and Clerk of the Village of La Grange hereby certify
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the foregoing items are true and
proper charges against the Village and hereby approve their payment.

Village Manager Village Clerk

President Trustee

Trustee Trustee

Trustee Trustee

Trustee

,f
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Village of La Grange
Finance Department

BOARD REPORT

Village President, Village Clerk, Board of Trustees and

Village Attorney

FROM: Bob Pilipiszyn, Village Manager and
Lou Cipparrone, Finance Director

DATE: October 4,2012

RE: FY 2011-12 COMPREHENSM ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Under separate cover, you have received a copy of the Village of La Grange's Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year May 1,2011 to April 30,2012. The

report is prepared by the Finance Department and reviewed by our auditors, Sikich L.L.P. Sikich
has rendered an unqualified or "clean" opinion for the Village of La Grange, stating that the

financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Village
and results of its operations as of April 30,2012. The unqualified opinion from Sikich L.L.P.
also reflects that the Village's financial statements are prepared and presented in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles.

In addition, you received the Auditor's Communication to the Village Board, which includes the

following documents:

l) A letter from the auditors dated July 6, 2012, which is the last day of their
fieldwork reflecting the end of the audit engagement, regarding certain
professional standards (Statement on Audit Standards No. I 14) requiring specific
matters be communicated to the Village Board including: the limited audit scope

related to the Required Supplementary Information (RSI) section within the

CAFR, no new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing
polices was not changed, all material accounting estimates were reasonable,

misstatements (year-end adjusting journal entries) were conected and there were

no difficulties or disagreements with management during the course of the audit.

None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures were material,

either individually or in the aggregate to the financial statements as a whole.

Misstatements typically reflect year-end adjusting journal entries prepared by the

Village but not posted until after the auditors have started the audit process.

Misstatements also include journal entries required to record year end transactions

associated with the La Grange Library, which is a component unit of the Village.

TO
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FY 2011.12 CAFR
October 4,2012

Page2

In addition, communications from the auditors includes adjusting journal entries
caried forward from a prior period, which were passed on as the impact on the
financial statements, either individually or in the aggregate, were also determined
to be immaterial.

2) Statement on Audit Standards No. ll5 requires communication to the Village
Board regarding certain matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal
controls and operational efficiencies. The FY 20ll-12 Management letter reports
there were no findings of material weaknesses involving the Village's internal

control. Two operational efficiency comments are noted:

a) The Village's ratio of water billed as compared to water pumped increased

stightly from 73.1 percent last year to 75.3 percent this fiscal year.

However, the recommended threshold for a billed versus pumped ratio is
80 percent. This has previously been identified as an area ofconcem for
the Village.

The water meters within the Village were last replaced over 20 years ago

and have exceeded their useful life. As water meters age, their accuracy
decreases as the moving parts inside of the meters become worn. This
decrease in accuracy has a direct, negative impact of the Village's water

accountability as water that passes through an inaccurate meter is not
accounted for and billed to the user.

After long and deliberate discussion, the Village recently issued general

obligation alternate revenue bonds to finance the cost of a water meter
replacement program which is currently in progress. By replacing our
aged and inaccurate meters, we anticipate a 5%o ' I0% improvement in
water accountability.

As we anticipate increased accountability from the replacement of water
meters throughout the Village, we have provided for an early call
provision for the bonds, and will be creating an escrow account to pay off
the bonds as soon as possible.

b) Uninsured and uncollateralized deposits of $16,032 relating to the Police

Department's federal Drug EnforcemenlForfeiture Funds. As noted in the

budget, over the past several years the Village has received significant
funding from the Police Department's involvement in local and regional

drug investigations. However, these funds are restricted and must be

utilized for expenditures directly related to drug enforcement activities.

\t
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FY 2O1I-12 CAFR
October 4,20t2

Page 3

Over the past several years these funds accumulated in excess of the

$250,000 limit of FDIC insurance on interest bearing accounts.

In order to expend the availability of Drug EnforcemenlForfeiture Funds,

the FY 20Il-12 budget included the exclusive use of these funds to
support two drug related programs; D.A.R.E. and the Canine Unit, on an

annual basis. However, the utilization of Drug EnforcemenlForfeiture
Funds for these programs did not reduce the balance of the account below
FDIC insurance limits.

In response to this repeated recommendation, effective May 1, 2012, we

have secured a new collateral agreement with the bank to ensure that
deposits are properly collateralized in accordance with the Village's
investment policy. The new agreement includes a provision for the bank

to provide collateral of Village deposits at ll}Yo of market value.

c) The Management Letter also identifies several upcoming accounting
pronouncements which will need to be implemented in subsequent

CAFR's.

3) Benchmarking and Trend Report. This is a new report prepared by the auditors

which is an analysis of selected key ratios for the Village as well as benchmark

data. This report provides additional information for trustees and management to

better assess the Village's relative financial condition. The benchmark group for
the Village of La Grange is derived from a database of over 100 communities in
the State of Illinois which received the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting. The benchmark group was further limited to

those communities with a population under 20,000.

It is important to note that although the funded ratio for the Fire Pension Fund is

below the benchmark group, as long as the Village remains committed to fund

annual required contributions (tax levies) as determined by the independent

actuarial valuations, the Fire Pension Fund will reach 100 percent funding within
the required statutory timeframe. In addition, the funded ratios for both the Police

and Fire Pension Funds decreased in 2012 due to a change in the interest rate

assumption from7.5o/o to 7o/o, as lower investment returns are anticipated on a go

forward basis.

Mr. Dan Berg, a partner with Sikich L.L.P will be in attendance at the Village Board meeting on

October 8,2012 to present a brief overview of the audit report and to answer any questions you

may have regarding the FY 20lI-I2 financial statements.
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FY 2011-12 CAFR
October 4,2012

Page 4

At the conclusion of the discussion, it would be appropriate for President Asperger to accept the

report on behalf of the Village Board. No further action is required.

Village staff will submit the CAFR to the Government Finance Officers' Association for
consideration of the Certiflrcate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. The

Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental

accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by
the Village. Receipt of the Certificate of Achievement recognizes the Village has met the high
national standards of the program including demonstrating a constructive spirit of full disclosure

to clearly communicate its financial story and motivate potential users to read the financial
statements. The Village has received this prestigious award for sixteen consecutive years.

Hard copies of the audit report are on file at the La Grange Public Library, in the Village Clerk's
office and in the Finance Department for public inspection. In addition, an electronic copy of the

audited financial statements has been posted to the Village's website.

Filename:usersVinance\audit report- I 2CAFR.brd.rpt. doc

fit()
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Village of La Grange

September 6,2012

The Honorable Elizabeth Asperger, President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of La Grange, Illinois

State law requires that every general-purpose local goverrunent publish within six months of the

close of each fiscal year a cornplete set of audited financial statements. This report is published

to fulfill that requirement for fiscal year ended April 30, 2012.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has

established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated

benehts, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

Sikich, LLP has issued an unqualifred ("clean") opinion on the Village of La Grange financial

statements for the year ended April 30, 2012. The independent auditor's report is located at the

front of the financial section of this repoft.

The Village expended less than $500,000 of federal funds during the year ended April 30, 2012,

and therefore is not required to undergo a single audit in conformity with the provisions of the

Revised Single Audit Act of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget CircularA-133,
"Audits of State. Local Governments and Nonprofit Organizations."

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) irnmediately follows the independent auditor's

report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the basic financial

statements. MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction

with it.

Profile of the Government

The Village of La Grange, incorporated in 1879, is located approximately 14 miles west of
Chicago, in the County of Cook; the Village occupies a land area of approximately 2.5 square

milesãnd has a population of approximately 15,600 residents. The Village of La Grange is

authorized to levy a property tax on both real and personal property located within its

boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation.

53 Sourh L.a (ìlange Roacl PO. ll<¡x 66fì La (ìrrrngc, Illinois 60525 (708) 579-2300 Fax (708) 579-0980
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The Village of La Grange operates under a Board-Manager form of government. La Grange is a
non-home rule municipal corporation governed by the Village President and six trustees, who are

elected on an at-large basis to serve four-year overlapping terms. The Village Manager serves as

the Chief Administrative Officer. The Village Board is responsible for establishing Village
policy which, in turn, is implemented on a day-to-day basis by the Village Manager and staff.

The Village of La Grange provides a full range of governmental services. Specifìcally, the

Village provides police and fire protection, water and sewer utilities, construction and

maintenance of roadways and infrastructure, code enforcement, planning, zoning, inspection

services, economic development, finance and general administrative services.

The Village evaluated other governmental services to determine whether they should be included
in the Village's reporting entity. Excluded from the reporting entity are the various school

districts, park districts and township which fall within the Village's boundaries, but which do not

meet the criteria for inclusion as set forth by generally accepted accounting principles. The La

Grange Public Library, however, is shown as part of the reporting entity as a discretely presented

component unit. The Public Library's financial data is reported in a separate column in the

combined financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the Village. The
Public Library's Board is elected by the voters of the Village. The Public Library may not issue

bonded debt without the Village's approval, and its property taxes are levied by the Village on

behalf of the library.

The annual budget is the guiding document for the Village's financial planning and control. The

budget process stafts in October when Department Heads are required to submit to the Village
Manager, a proposed budget for the subsequent fiscal year as well as a projected budget for the

next four years. After reviewing budgets with the Department Heads, the Village Manager
presents the proposed budget to the Board of T'rustees during a workshop in March. A copy of
the draft budget is also available to the public at this time. The Village Board is required to hold

a public hearing and to adopt the fìnal budget no later than April 30tn of each year. The level of
budgetary control (i.e. the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the budgeted

amount) is at the fund level. Revisions of the annual budget that alter the total expenditures of
any fund may be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Village Board. The Village Manager may

revise the annual budget by changing line items in the same general category without Board

approval. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each governmental fund

for which an annual budget has been adopted.

Local Bconomy

National and state economic instability continues to challenge Village finances. [n response to

these recessionary conditions and the corresponding fiscal stress placed upon the Village's
General Fund, the Village took steps to reduce operating expenses below budget-authorized
levels beginning May 1,2010. At the same time, the Village developed a comprehensive and

multi-year cost containment strategy, largely involving a reduction of personnel expenses by

$500,000 per year, to stabilize Village fìnances.

In addition to the cost containment plan, the Village is continuing with budget contraction
including but not limited to the following non-personnel expense reductions: $200,000 reduction

in capital maintenance activities and reduced funding for the part-time police officer program.



Despite these austerity measures, the Village continues to be challenged by a decrease and

flattening across our major revenue streams (e.g. - income tax, new growth component of the

property tax levy, building permits, etc.) due to macro-economic conditions, and major
operational and capital costs, health care expenditures, and required pension contributions in
excess of those reduced revenues. Many of these revenue sources are still below actual annual

revenue levels prior to the recession. In addition to our cost containment plan, the Village has

had to offset the lost revenue with the use of its General Fund reserves. These reserves have yet

to be replenished.

Despite these many fiscal pressures, the Village's financial health is well conditioned and is well
positioned for an economic recovery. We believe that we have found the right balance between

the need to recognize continued downward pressure on our flrnancial means, yet still provide high
quality services to residents including responsive: (l) operations; (2) planning efforts; and (3)
capital improvements. As long as the Village exercises fìnancial discipline by adhering closely
to its five-year financial plan, carefully monitors operating expenses and is not quick to further
spend reserve funds on new initiatives, the Village should be able to sustain itself during these

di ffi cult econom ic times.

Long-Term Financial Planning

At year end, fund balance in the Ceneral Fund (53.8 percent oi General Fund operating

expenditures) is within the policy guidelines established by the Village Board of Trustees for
budgetary and planning purposes (i.e. between 50 and 75 percent of total General Fund operating
expenditures.) As the State's economic forecast anticipates flat economic growth, it is advisable
to retain an adequate fund balance for contingencies and emergencies. An adequate fund balance

reserve also allows the Village to budget more flexibly in the short-term, maintain liquidity for
cash flow requirements, reduce reliance on shotl-term financing and maintain a strong credit
rating.

In addition to the previously mentioned cost containment plan, the Village continues to examine

other strategies to reduce and control future operating expenditures as a means to protect

reserves. For example, the Village has partnered with the Village's of La Grange Park and

Western Springs and commissioned a joint study to determine if opportunities exist for more cost

effective delivery of public safety services. At this time, it appears that a combined dispatch

service delivery model holds the most promise.

The Village of La Grange has also consistently worked very hard to lessen the burden of
property taxes on Village residents and businesses through conservative fiscal management,

economic development, and identifying alternative sources of revenue.

Much of the Village's emphasis since 1986 has been on economic development to expand the

Village's tax base. A well diversified tax base will create new growth, generating additional
property tax revenue not only forthe Village, but also to the benefit of other local taxing bodies

such as school districts, the park district and the library. Therefore, it is critically important that

we continue to protect and preserve our investments in the Central Business District well into the

future. The Village Board recognizes this which is why economic development remains a high-
order strategic priority for the Village.

Although a majority of redevelopment in La Crange has occurred within the Central Business

District, a considerable amount of commercial reinvestment has also taken place throughout the
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rest of the Village. Of particular note is the revitalization of the West End Business District.
Several established businesses in this district have reinvested because they see the long-term

value and growth oppor-tunities in La Grange.

A renovation of the Stone Avenue train station to restore building integrity is anticipated to
commence in 2012. Master planning, exploration of grant opportunities, and coordination with
regional transportation agencies continues for future phases to enhance the station grounds as a

public space and to enhance pedestrian mobility and safety within the station area. Investment in

the Stone Avenue train station building and grounds is important as business owners have

advised the Village that the iconic station is the focal point for creating a sense of identity and

way-finding which separates them from other commercial areas within the Village.

While the approval of the mixed use development project at the northeast corner of La Grange

Road and Ogden Avenue has expired, the Village worked with the YMCA to demolish the

shuttered building in 2010, and landscaped the "hard corner" in mid-2011 to improve the

walkability and appearance of this gateway intersection. We appreciate the cooperation of the

Metro YMCA. This site continues to present a future redevelopment opportunity in La Grange.

The vacant, two-story retail space once occupied by Borders is also both a challenge and

opportunity for the Village. We continue to work with the cooperative property owner as to

identifying potential tenants for the space, while at the same time recognizing limitations as a

result of current economic conditions.

The Village continues to paftner with the LGBA in coordinating marketing, promotional and

special events. The LGBA's addition of a part-time business coordinator has helped immensely.

In response to the protracted economic conditions, the Village has also been and will continue to

work with retailers and restaurateurs on retention strategies. In addition, the Village will be

working with building owners, brokers, and bankers to strategize on ways to strengthen the

Village's economic vitality.

Despite tenuous economic conditions, we are still experiencing steady dining, shopping and

theater-going trafhc to La Grange. We are grateful to our residents who have demonstrated their
understanding for the need to spend locally; to local retailers for sustaining themselves with
determined entreprcneurial spirit; and to new business owners who decided to open during these

diffìcult times and thus have placed their confidence in their future success by locating in

La Grange.

The Village also seeks to supplement property tax and sales tax revenues through the acquisition

of grant funding. Over the past five years, the Village has secured approximately $9.7 million in
grants to fund over S18.5 million of capital projects, operational activities and equipment, that

either would not have been possible or would have been implemented at the sole expense of La

Grange taxpayers. We must continue to aggressively pursue grant opportunities whenever they

become available. Department Heads continue to explore funding opportunities and eligibility
requirements within their respective areas of responsibility for projects, personnel and capital

expenditures, consistent with the substance and spirit of our proposed financial plan and the

Vil lage Board's strategic priorities.

As the financial condition of our state government has yet to stabilize, we need to remain vigilant
and advocate against any legislation which seeks to undermine municipal revenues or shifts the

fìnancial responsibility of paying for state programs onto municipalities as an "unfunded
mandate".
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These are difficult times for everyone, and the Village is sensitive to the financial challenges our
residents are experiencing. The Village is attempting to contain its operating costs while at the

same time preserving the value of our significant investments in human, economic and capital
assets - preserving the quality of life and community vitality that we presently enjoy.

As a result of its thoughtful planning and policy discussions, the current Village Board is

strategically thinking about the Village's financial health beyond the scope of the current fìve-
year plan. tt is this type of visioning which will preserve and enhance the quality of life for La
Grange residents now and into the future.

Pension and Other Post-Bmployment Benefits

Sworn police and fìre personnel receive retirement and disability benefìts from the La Grange

Police Pension Fund and the La Grange Firefighters' Pension Fund, respectively. Both pension
plans are single-employer plans administered by local boards of trustees. The defined benefits
and employer and employee contribution levels are governed by lllinois state statutes. Police
and Fire plan participants are required to contribute9.9l percent and 9.455 percent of their base

salaries, respectively. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amount necessary to
finance the plans as determined by an independent actuary.

The State of Illinois recently approved pension reform legislation which includes several

significant amendments : l) funding changes for police and fire pension funds;2) creation of a
second tier of benefits for new hires effective January l,20ll; and 3) expansion of the

investment authority for pension funds. Funding changes include extending the amortization
period of unfunded pension liabilities from the year 2033 To 2040. In addition, the pension
reform legislation requires the calculation of a new minimum employer contribution (or floor),
utilizing a specihc actuarialcost method, Projected Unit Credit and90%o funding.

However, as actual funding can occur utilizing various cost methods or funding percentages, it
was the consensus of the Village, Police and Fire Pension Boards to continue to use of the
current actuarial cost method, Entry Age Normal, as it is designed to provide more stable

employer contributions in amounts that increase at the same rate as the employer's payroll; and

to continue to fund at 100o/o as this has been a long standing priority for the Village of La
Grange.

Due to the recent funding changes from pension reform legislation, the Village had the

opportunity to reduce the pension interest rate assumption from 7.5o/oto7.0o/o, without creating
an additional financial burden on the Village budget.

As of April 30, 20ll which is the latest available actuarial valuation date, the percent funded
status for the Police and Firefighter Pension Fund's are 58.4 percent and 46.4 percent,

respectively. The percent funded status decreased for the Police Pension Fund as lower
investment returns are expected on a go forward basis, due to the change in the actuarial
assumption for interest rates. "fhe actuarial valuation for April 30,2012 was not available prior
to the auditors completing their fieldwork.

Pension funds across the State are still attempting to recover from the impact of significant
investment losses in FY 2008-09 resulting from unprecedented negative returns in the equities
market. As long as the Village remains committed to fund the required annual contributions (tax
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levies) as determined by the independent actuarial valuations, the Police and Fire Pension Funds

will reach the statutory requirements within the required timeframe.

Full-time and part-time employees, other than sworn police officers and fìrefighters, who work at

least 1,000 hours per year, are covered by the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), a

state-wide pension plan. IMRF acts as a common investment and administrative agent for local
governments in Illinois. Benefit provisions and funding requirements are estimated by state

statutes. Employees participating in IMRF are required to contribute 4.5 percent of their annual

salary and the Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund

employee defined benefits.

Major Initiatives

An annual transfer is made from the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund to support major
infrastructure improvements. This transfer may vary based upon available funding in the

Ceneral Fund after providing funding for annual operating expenditures. Due to the current
economic conditions which have negatively impacted State shared revenues, the transfer for
capital improvements has been reduced beginning in FY 2009-10. In orderto complete proposed

capital projects as previously budgeted, annual maintenance programs have been temporarily
reduced and/or eliminated. It is anticipated that these short-term reductions in funding will not

have a material impact on delivery of services to residents,

Annual transfers from Motor Fuel Tax (MFT) are scheduled to fund the Village=s thirty percent

local match of future federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) grant projects, future

segments of the Maple Avenue Relief Sewer and eligible neighborhood street projects. The

Village was also the recipient of over $2.5 million in grants for the Bluff Avenue / M.A.R.S.
project, Neighborhood "H" street resurfacing, Stone Avenue Station rehabilitation, I{VAC
improvements at all Village facilities and pedestrian signal upgrades. The proposed five-year
Capital Improvement Program includes a total of more than $10 million in infrastructure
improvement projects and major maintenance programs.

The largest, multi-year project is the reconstruction of Bluff Avenue which includes the

installation of new combined sewer, water main, drainage structures, curb/gutter and

reconstruction of the street. As part ol'the larger Maple Avenue Relief Sewer (MARS) initiative,
the construction of an outlet sewer was completed in conjunction with the reconstruction of Bluff
Avenue. The outlet sewer connects the Bluff Avenue corridor to the deep tunnel connection at

Cossitt and East Avenues. The outlet sewer and reconstruction of Bluff Avenue were completed
in FY 20ll-12. The next stage of MARS, from roughly Bluff Avenue to La Grange Road, is
scheduled in FY 2013-14, funded by a combination of MFT and capital improvement program

funds.

During the past fifteen years, the Village has been able to substantially complete the initial phase

of the Street Renovation Program which has repaved nearly every street within the Village. The
purpose of the Street Resurfacing Program is to plan for the routine resurfacing and repair of
neighborhood streets on a defined schedule. A detailed street condition survey was completed
which provides for the "next generation" street resurfacing program with the added dimension of
having our underground utilities (water & sewer) considered for repairs or replacement at the

same time.

-tx-



As part of the development of this program, a change in policy in the resurfacing program was

recommended. Under the recently completed plan, street resurfacing was prioritized on a

neighborhood-wide basis. As the street condition survey provides for a reliable set of baseline

information, staff recommended taking a more data-driven approach to street resurfacing by
allocating resources on a block segment basis through the resurfacing of streets segments with
the greatest need within the annual budget allotment. The intent is to maximize available
resources by performing work to extend the underlying integrity of the roadway and thus avoid
prematurely incurring the cost of street reconstruction.

Based on this revised approach staff recommends the following streets for resurfacing in the five
year capital improvement program:

FY 2013-14 - 4l't from Dover to Malden; Bell from Dover to Brainard and

Park from Arlington to 4l't: $378,000

- FY 2015-16 - 50th from Gilbert to end; Kensington from Maple to Goodman;
Maple from Sunset to Blackstone, Blackstone from Maple to Elm, Elm from
Sunset to Blackstone and Newberry from Shawmut to end: $930,000.

Staff further recommended the street condition survey be updated every five years to note

changes in condition and to update the relative ranking of street segments. Additionally, staff
plans to make an assessment of our capital maintenance needs such crack-filling and street
patching to see if additional resources will be required to keep streets in good stable condition
until such time that resurfacing occurs.

Two new maintenance programs were recently included in the Capital Projects budget. The first
program addresses a new threat to the urban forest which has appeared in the Chicago area called
the Emerald Ash Borer (EAB.) This beetle attacks all species of ash trees by burrowing into the

tree and disrupting the nutrient supply to the tree. EAB infestation is always fatal to the tree.

The EAB had been found in surrounding communities and is most likely just a matter of time
before the beetle was found in La Grange. After we requested and set several EAB traps f'rom

the Illinois Depaftment of Natural Resources, the presence of the beetle was found in a single
location; no damage to the host tee was observed.

We anticipate that all of the ash trees will need to be replaced and therefore have planned in the

budget for the replacement of these trees over an eight year period beginning in FY 2011-12.
Currently, there is no known treatment to inhibit the EAB from infesting a tree. There are

several treatments that will protect a tree for a 2-3 year period, but they are currently cost
prohibitive and unproven for long term prevention. We hope that a curative treatment will be

discovered before the EAB reaches the Village. We do not advocate any pre-emptive removal of
existing Ash tree species in our inventory and will continue to monitor the spread of the EAB
and act as a resource to residents.

The second is a sewer rehabilitation program to repair, replace and/or rehabilitate existing mains

by lining the sewer with a cured-in-place liner that provides a new structurally sufficient pipe

within the existing pipe. This process is less disruptive to residents since it does not require
traditional open trench methods for installation.

Due to limited funding, this program was put on hold until suffìcient reserves were accumulated
to sustain the program on an annual basis. As replacing the Village's aging sewer infrastructure
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remains an important long term goal, this maintenance activþ is planned to resume in FY 2015-

16 in the amount of $100,000 annually. The Village will continue to review the information

obtained from the sewer televising program in order to determine if any immediate action is

necessary to maintain the functionality of the existing system'

In summary, the Village intends to continue with its robust plan for the maintenance and

replacement of its infrastructure, subject to available funding.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)

awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of La

Grange for its Comprehensive Arurual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended April
30, t011. This wâs the sixteenth consecutive year that the goverrìment has achieved this

prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must

publish an easily readable and efficiently organtzed comprehensive annual financial report. This

iepon must satisfu both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal

requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe

that our current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its

eligibility for another certificate,

In addition, the Village of La Grange also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget

Presentation Awa¡d for its annual Operating and Capital Improvements Budget for FY 20lI-12.
In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the Village's budget

document was judged to be proficient as a policy document, a financial plan, as operations guide

and a communication device. The Village has received this notable national award for seventeen

consecutive years.

The preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report on a timely basis was made

possible by the efficient and dedicated service of the entire staff of the Finance Department,

especially Assistant Finance Director Joe Munizza, who prepared the Financial Statements'

Eách member of the department has our sincere appreciation t'or the contributions made in the

preparation of this report.

I1 addition, we would like to acknowledge President Asperger and the Board of Trustees for
their leadership and support in planning and conducting the financial affairs of the Village in a
responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

J Lou Cipparrone
Village

Filenamc:users/commor/auditl2/cali transmittal ltr. l2.doc

Finance Director/Treasurer
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Certified Public Accountants & Advisors

Members of American lnstitute of
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1415 W. Diehl Road, Suite 400. Naperville, lL 60563

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President
Members of the Village Board
Village of La Grange, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the

business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the

aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of La Grange, Illinois, as of and for the year

ended April 30, 2072, which collectively comprise the Village of La Grange, Illinois' basic

frnancial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Village of La Grange, Illinois' management. Our responsibility is to express

opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material

misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the basic fïnancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material respects,

the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the

discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the Village of La Grange, Illinois, as of April 30,2012, and the respective changes

in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Village of La Grange, Illinois adopted GASB Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting

and Governmental FundType De/ìnitions, during the year ended April 30, 2012. The statement

changed the classifications of govemmental fund balances and clarified the definitions of
existlng fund types. The adoption of this statement had no effect on any of the Village of La

Grange-, Illinois; governmental funds' assets or liabilities nor was there any effect to the total

u*o*t of any of the Village of La Grange, Illinois' govemmental fund balances as of and for the

year ended April 30, 2012.
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, actuarial information and budgetary comparison
information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the

basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have

applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the

information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic frnancial statements.

We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any

assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the Village of La Grange, Illinois' basic financial statements. The

combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, as listed in the table of
contents, are presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and are not a required part ofthe basic

financial statements of the Village of La Grange, Illinois. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the flrnancial

statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling

such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our

opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical information listed in the table of contents was not audited by us

and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion thereon.

Naperville, Illinois
July 6,2012
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

April 30,2012

The Village of La Grange's (the "Village") discussion and analysis is designed to (l) assist the

reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (2) provide an overview of the Village's
financial activity, (3) identify changes in the Village's financial position (its ability to address

the next and subsequent year challenges), (4) identify any material deviations from the

financial plan (the approved budget), and (5) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current
year's activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction
with the Transmittal Letter and the Village's financial statements.

USING THE FINANCIAL
REPORT

SBCTION OF THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL

In accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), the Village's
financial statements present two kinds of statements, each with a different view of the

Village's finances. The financial statement's focus is on both the Village as a whole
(government-wide) and on the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-wide
and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for comparison
(year to year or government to government) and enhance the Village's accountability.

Govern ment-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that all
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into columns which add to a total

for the Primary Government.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Village's assets and liabilities,
with the difference of the two repofted as net assets. The focus of the Statement of Net Assets

(the "Unrestricted Net Assets") is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the Village
and its governmental and business-type activities. This statement combines and consolidates
governmental funds' using the current financial resources measurement focus (shott-term

spendable resources) with capital assets and long term obligations using the accrual basis of
accounting and economic resources measurement focus. Over time, increases and decreases in

net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Village is

improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activitles presents information showing how the Village's net assets changed

during the fiscal year. The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross and net cost of
various activities (including governmental and business-type) which are supported by the
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VILLAGE OF LA CRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

government's general taxes and other resources. This is intended to summarize and simplify
the user's analysis of the cost of various government services and/or subsidy to various

business-type activities.

Both statements distinguish functions of the Village that are primarily supported by taxes and

intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to

recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type

activities). Governmental Activities reflect the Village's basic services, including police, fire,
public works, community development, finance and administration. Property taxes, local sales

tax, local utility tax and shared state income, replacement and local use taxes finance the

majority of these services. The Business-type Activities reflect private sector type operations
(Water, Sewer, and Parking funds), where the fee for service typically covers all or most of the

cost of operation, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that

have been segregated for specifìc activities or objectives. The Village of La Grange, like other

state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into three

categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

The governmentalfunds focus is on sources and uses of spendable resources, as well as on the

balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. This is the manner in

which the financial plan (the budget) is typically developed. The flow and availability of
liquid resources is a clear and appropriate focus of any analysis of a government. Funds are

established for various purposes and the fund financial statement allows the demonstration of
sources and uses and/or budgeting compliance associated therewith.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information (private sector operations) as the

government-wide business-type fìnancial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary

fund statements prov¡de separate information for the Water, Sewer and Parking operations, all
of which are considered to be major funds of the Village. Individual fund data for the

Village's internal service fund, which accounts for the replacement of vehicles and equipment

on a pay-as-you-go basis, can be found elsewhere in the report.

The fund financial statements also allow the Village to address itsfiduciaryfunds (Police and

Fire Pensions). While these funds represent trust responsibilities of the government, these

assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the government.

Therefore, these assets are not presented as part of the government-wide financial statements.

Other Information

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. In
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents

cefiain required supplementary information concerning the Village's progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to employees.

While the total column on the proprietary fund financial statements is the same as the
business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statement, the governmental

funds total column requires reconciliation with the governmental activities column in the

government-wide fìnancial statements because of the different measurement focus (current

financial resources versus total economic resources) which is reflected on the page following
each statement.

The flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and interfund transfers as

other financial sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as

expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital
assets and long-term obligation (bonds and others) into the Governmental Activities column
(in the Government-Wide Statements).

GOVERNMENT.WIDE STATBMENTS

As mentioned earlier, the Statement of Net Assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of
the Village's fìnancial position. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village is able to
report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a
whole, as well as t'or its separate governmental and business-type activities. The following
table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets:

Table I
Statement of Net Assets

As ofA l3 2012

Currcnt and other Assets S I 8,992,85 I $ 19,355,83ó 53,007,634 52,94'7 ,546 $22,000,485 $22'303,382
t48taI Assets 27 25'7 19 19 't63

Long term liabilities
Othcr Liabilities

2,475,254 2,701,717 207 ,6t0 195,45 I 2,682,864 2,897 ,168

Governnrental
Activities

20t2 201 I

Ilusiness-Type
Âctivities

20t2 201 I 2012 201 I

'l'otal

747

26,t59,844
t,97t,4t3

447 195

r9,r30,9r9 19,s61,148

t7 942 937

Nct Assets:
lnvested in capital assets,

Nct oldebt
Restricted

23,308,688
2,436,668

45,290,763
I,97 I ,4t3

42,869,836
2,436,668

otal t.iabilities I 709

TJ

Net Assets $37 70t
il
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

The Village's total net assets increased from $57,170,612 in 20ll to $59,185,442 in 2012

which is an increase in net assets of $2,014,830. The increase in total net assets f,or

Governmental Activities of approximately $2,444,879 is primarily due to capitalized assets

from grant funded construction projects and equipment purchases, being partially offset by

current and other assets decreasing due to expenses exceeding revenues in the Motor Fuel Tax

Fund and Debt Service Fund. Motor Fuel Tax funds were utilized to fund construction
projects. The Debt Service Fund included a one-time transfer to the General Fund to support

Village operations, pursuant to bond ordinance covenants. Total net assets for Business Type

Activities decreased by approximately $430,000 due to depreciation expense exceeding

capitalized assets.

By far, the largest portion of the Village's total net assets (76.5%) reflects it's investment in

capital assets (such as land, buildings, machinery, equipment and inflrastructure) less any

related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Village uses these capital assets to

provide services to residents; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Although the Village's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should

be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,

since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. Investment in

capital assets, net of debt also provides useful information that can be used for trend analysis

to determine if the Village is properly replacing aging infrastructure, including: streets and

water and sewer mains.

The Village's unrestricted net assets for governmental activities reflect the portion of net

assets that can be used to finance dayto-day operations. Restricted net assets represent funds

which are subject to limitations on how they may be used. These funds primarily reflect State

Motor Fuel Tax funds restricted for maintenance of roadways. Restricted Net Assets

decreased as Motor Fuel Tax funds were utilized for the Bluff Avenue/MARS construction

project.

The following table reflects the change in net assets resulting fiom revenues and expenses of
the Village's governmental and business-type activities.

Table2
Change in Net Assets

For the Fiscal Year Ended A l3 2012

IìI]VF,NUTìS
Progranr Revenues:

Charges for Services
Operating Grant and Contr
Capital grant and Contr.

General Iìcvenues:
Propcrty'l'axcs
Other'I'axes
Othcr

s r,649, l7l
453,00r

2,3t6,228

5,9s8,771
4,330,699

$r,548,r51
463,735

1,947,291

5,873,31 I

4,225,566

só, l 49,790
453,001

2,3t6,228

5,958,77 t

4,330,699

5,842,890
463,735

t,947,291

5,873,31 I

4,225,566

$4,500,ó r9 $4,294;739

Coventmental
Activities

20t2 201 I

Business-type
Activities

20t2 20ll 20t2 201 I

'l'otal

730 4ó8 IRevenucs ll5 I

285367
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

Table2 (continued)
Change in Net Assets

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2012

Governmental
Activities

20t2 201 I

Ilusiness-typc
Activities 'l'otal

2012 20n 20t2 201 I

EXPENSI]S
General Covernment
Public Salety
I lighways and Streets
[.iconomic f)evelopment
lnterest
Water & Sewer

2,t77,656
8.124,562
2,t62,386

6s,632

2,2t9,004
8,2t I,t20
3, r 88,32 l

73,343

2,177,656
I,124,562
2,t62,386

65,632
4,06s,282

2,2t9,004
8,2n,120
3, r 88,32 I

73,343
4,073,0t74,065,282 4,073,017

t77 I 7t75I 788 7 753

2,544,879

( r00,000)

65t,942

( r 00,000)

(530,049)

100,000

l7

(7s2,493)

100,000

989 t7

2,0r4,830 (r00,55r)
lncrease / (Decrease)
bef'ore transtèrs

'Iransfèrs

5lII 942ln Net Assets

Govern mental Activities

Charges for Services include revenues from Village fines, licenses and permits. Operating
Grants and Contributions reflect annual Motor Fuel Tax receipts. Capital Grants and

Contributions reflect federal Surface Transportation Program (STP) grants which funded 70

percent of the cost of the Bluff Avenue street reconstruction and Maple Avenue Relief Sewer

(M.A.R.S.) projects. Capital Grants and Contributions increased significantly due to the

timing of grant funding received for Phase II & III of the Bluff Avenue/M.A.R.S. project.

Property taxes continue to be the Village's largest revenue source generating $5,958,771
which represents 39.5% of total governmental activity revenue. Property tax revenue reflects
the allowable increase under the Property Tax Limitation Act which is restricted to five
percent, or the percent of increase in the national Consumer Price Index (CPI), whichever is

less. The Village's 2010 property tax [evy, which was collected in fiscal year2012, included a

CPI increase of 2.7 percent.

Other Taxes, include sales tax revenues combined with State shared revenues (income tax,

local use tax and replacement tax) local utility taxes and franchise fee revenues, total

$4,330,699 which represents 28.7% of the total governmental activity revenue.

Other Revenues reflect investment interest income, reimbursement for damage property,

training and prosecution serviceso and other miscellaneous revenues.

The Village realizes the importance of offering competitive compensation and benefit
packages for the recruitment and retention of employees. General Government expenses in
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, II,LINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

2012 include an annual general wage adjustment of salaries which is tied directly to the

allowable increase under the Property Tax Limitation Act. Salary expenses also include an

average merit increase of 2.75o/o merit based upon annual performance evaluation. The cost

of providing employee health insurance has increased significantly over the last several years

due to general market trends and claims experience. Health insurance premiums increased by

7.5 percent in2012.

It is important to note that in response to recent recessionary conditions, the Village has

implemented a comprehensive and multi-year cost containment strategy, largely involving a

reduction of personnel expenses. Cost containment efforts which resulted in a reduction of
GeneralGovernment and Public Safety expenses in 2012, include the following:

- Maintain one full+ime vacancy within the Village's three largest operating

departments - Police, Fire and Public Works

- Increased the employee contribution toward monthly group health insurance

premiums from 00lo for single coverags, and7.5o/o for family coverage to 10.0% of
total premiums. Several significant plan design changes were also enacted to

reduce the provider's renewal rate down to the Village's 7.5o/obudget assumption
for group health insurance expenses.

- Elimination of two part-time positions, one in the Public Works Depaftment and

the other in the Finance Depaftment.

- Mid-term wage concession by the Fire Union to reduce their scheduled general

wage increase from 3.0Yoto23%.

- Mid+erm wage concession by the Public Works Union to reduce their scheduled

general wage increase from 2.7 5% to 2.0o/o.

- No salary increases (general wage adjustment and merit pay) for the Village's
management team - Village Manager, Assistant Village Manager, Finance

Director, Director of Community Development, Director of Public Works, Police

Chief and Fire Chief; second consecutive year for the Village Manager.

- General wage increase for all non-union employees was adjusted downward from

2.7% (which would have coincided with the property tax cap pursuant to
compensation policy) to 2.0o/o.

Highway and Streets reflect decreased expenses in 2012 due to several large maintenance
projects being completed in the prior fiscal year, including the Area H street resurfacing
project. Maintenance projects are fully expensed in the year of completion rather than

capitalized as an asset and depreciated over the estimated useful life.

lnterest expenses decreased in 2012 due to reduced outstanding debt resulting from annual

principal payments. No new debt was issued in fiscal year 2012. Transfers from
governmental activities to business-like activities in 20ll reflect the annual transfer from the
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

General Fund to the Parking Fund to fund additional costs associated with the general

maintenance and operations of the parking structure.

Business-Tvpe Activities

Charges for Services increased significantly in 2012 due to a l0 percent increase in the

Village's water rate, effective May 1,201l. The increase was necessary to provide additional
funding for operations, maintenance and infrastructure replacement of the Village's water

distribution system. Sewer fees are based on cubic feet of water used multiplied by a separate

sewer rate. Thereforen an increase in the water rate does not affect sewer fees.

Expenses reflect a25o/o water rate increase from the City of Chicago, effective January l,
2012. The significant rate increase was primarily ofßet by lower than normal water usage

during the wet spring/summer months of 201l, resulting in less water being purchased during
the fiscal year. The City of Chicago also announced increases to water rates in the amounts of
lsyo,l5o/o and l5%o over the next three years starting January 1,2013. As it is the Village's
policy to 'opass on" water rate increases from the City of Chicago, subsequent increases in

Village water rates are anticipated. However, the Village is in the process of replacing all
existing water meters which may result in additional revenue. As such, the Village will
reevaluate the need for subsequent water rate increases on an annual basis.

The following charts reflect revenues by source and expenses by function for governmental

and business-type activities for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012:

Governmental and Business-Type Activities
Revenues by Source

Fiscal Year Ended April30,2012

j l.9o/o
| 22.1o/o

Et 3t.4yo

a 23o/o

E 30.4Yo
tr I1.8%

Grants
t
tr
xTaxes
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

Governmental and Business-Type Activities
Expenses by Function

Fiscal Year Ended April 30,2012

FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the Village of La Grange uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate

compliance with finance related legal requirements. The focus of the Village of La Grange's
governmental fund types, which includes the General Fund, is to provide information on near-

term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in

assessing the Village's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may

serve as a useful measure of net resources available for spending at the end of a fìscal year.

The Village's proprietary fund types, which are those funds which operate similar to a

business, provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Governmental Funds

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the Village of La Grange. The Village
experienced fiscal stress within the General Fund created by a decrease and flattening of major
revenue streams (e.g. income tax, sales taxo building permits, etc.) due to macro-economic

conditions and major operating expenditures (such as salaries, health insurance, and police and

fire pension contributions) in excess of those reduced revenues. Reserve funds have been

utilized to offset prior operating deficits; sustaining Village operations over the past several

years.

So as not to further deplete reserve funds below target levels, the Village implemented a multi-
year cost containment plan beginning in 2010, focused on reduction of personnel expenses.

3 5.5Yo a n.4%

.23.1 . 0.4o/o

El2 E 46.2Vo

dGeneralGovernmentllnteresttrPublicSafetynHighways&StreetstWater&SewerEParking
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

As part of the ongoing cost containment plan, during the subsequent fiscal year the Village
also proposes to continue to examine other strategies to reduce and control future operating

expenditures as a means to protect reserves

At the end of fiscal year 2012, the General Fund reflected a decrease in fund balance of
595,306. Various budget adjustments were approved due to estimated actual expenditures

exceeding budget estimates. It is important to note, had the Village not taken cost

containment measures, the General Fund deficit would have increased significantly.

General Fund budget amendments included: l) special legal services required for matters
involving prosecution of property maintenance cases; 2) professional services to amend site

development guidelines related to grading and drainage; 3) increase in full-time salaries in the

Fire Department due to the payment of accrued leave to firefighter who retired early in the

fiscal year, increased over-time due to a vacancy and duty related injury, and increased repairs

and maintenance for department vehicles.

Table 3 - General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Original Amended
Budget Budget Actual

Revenues and Transfers ln
Taxes
Licenses & Pennits
Other
Transfers In

$ 9,190,500
1,080,965
1,788,328

$ 9,190,500
l,080,965
l,788,328

$ 9,002,328
t,062,973
1,982,102

Expenditures and Transfers Out
General Covernment
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Transfers Out

2l

(2,072,598)
(7,865,669)
(1,727,477)

2t

(2,097,598)
(7,900,669)
(1,727 ,477)

2l

(2,078,237)
(7,785,698)
(1,688,774)

$l 793 I 7Total 793 $l

800

in Fund Balance $ 195 95r $ 06

Tax revenues were under budget primarily due to the severity and length of the State's
economic recession. Property tax receipts decreased due to prior year tax credits from
propefty assessment appeals and home foreclosures. In addition, the Village experienced
lower than estimated new growth, which resulted in Cook County automatically lowering the

Village's tax levy. Municipal utility taxes were also under budget due to unusually mild
winter conditions.

Although municipal sales and non-home rule sales tax revenues were only slightly over

budget during the fìscal year, it is important to note that sales tax revenues were originally
projected to be under budget due to the closing of Borders in September,20ll. However,

sales tax receipts from new retailers and restaurants more than made up for the lost sales tax

from the loss of this large retail store.

709Total 744 $$
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, TLLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

Other Revenues were over budget primarily due to receipt of a portion of the settlement from

the parking structure litigation (general contractor bankruptcy proceedings), and a

reimbursement from FEMA for snow removal operations during the severe winter storm in

February 2011. In addition, the Village received unanticipated reimbursements for damaged

property, prosecution services and training costs. Ambulance fees were also over budget due

to negotiated agreements with neighboring municipalities to begin billing for mutual aid

ambulance calls. Partially ofßetting the increase in other revenue was a decrease in

investment earnings resulting from short-term interest rates remaining at less than one half of
one percent.

General Government expenditures were under budget primarily due to the retirement of the

cashier/receptionist in the Finance Department, with the position remaining vacant. In
addition, Administration health insurance costs decreased to an employee electing changes in

health insurance coverage.

Public Safety expenditures ended the year under budget due to the retirement of a police

officer earlier than anticipated, net of payment of accrued leave; and employees electing

changes in health insurance coverage. In addition, staffing for several special details was

reduced due to grant requirements. Expenditures also reflect a decrease in employer
contributions (ie. tax levies) resulting from impact of the lower than projected new growth

figure and home foreclosures reducing property tax collections

Highway and Street Expenditures were under budget primarily due to due to reduced overtime
and salt expenditures resulting from the unusually mild winter conditions, a decrease in leaf
disposal costs due to favorable bids, and the postponement of the street sign replacement
project. The Village also eliminated contractual wrapping of the trees on LaGrange Road for
the Holiday Walk, 2011, as it was determined the lights could be replaced every other year

without causing damage to the trees. Partially offsetting the reduced expenditures was the

hiring of a General Utility Worker position six months earlier than anticipated due to the early

retirement of the police officer.

Transfers Out includes a transfer to the Capital Projects Fund in the amount of $700,000 to

support infrastructure replacement, debt service and maintenance programs. Due to the

economic recession which negatively impacted revenues in the General Fund, this transfer

was previously reduced by $200,000. In order to complete capital projects as planned, annual

maintenance programs were reduced and/or eliminated. Transfers out also includes an annual

transfer to the Parking fund of $100,000 to partially fund operations and maintenance of
Village lots and the parking structure.

Transfers Out expenditures do not reflect the establishment of a new Asset Forfeiture Fund
to account for Federal Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) distributions. Funds received during
previous fiscal years, in the amount of 5262,519, were transferred to this special revenue fund

at fiscal year-end. Previously these funds were incorporated into the General Fund for
reporting purposes only.
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VILLACE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSfS (Continued¡

The Capital Projects Fund includes reserves in the amount of approximately 5886,000 to
replace aging infrastructure throughout the Village and the unforeseen contingency costs

associated with the aggressive neighborhood street renovations projects and complex street

reconstruction projects to be undertaken in the near future. Fund Balance increased in2012 as

planned capital projects were postponed due to other Village priories.

Proprietary Funds

Net assets of the water, sewer and Parking Funds atyear end totaled s21,483,748. Net
Assets decreased during the year by $430,049 due to operating expenses, which includes
depreciation expense of $658, I I 5, exceeding operating revenues. The Parking Fund includes
an annual transfer from the General Fund to provide funding for additional costs associated

with the general maintenance and operations of the parking structure.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Village of La Grange's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of April 30,2012 is 546,885,763. This investment in capital assets includes land,

buildings, improvements, equipment and street infrastructure as reflected in Table 4.

The Village depreciates assets over their useful life. If a road project is considered
maintenance - a recurring cost that does not extend the road's original useful life or expand its

capacity - the cost of the project will be expensed. An "overlay" or resurfacing of a road will
be considered maintenance whereas a "rebuild" or reconstruction of a road will be capitalized.

Construction in Progress, a non-depreciable asset, represents the cost of initial stages of a
multi-year construction project which has been started but not yet competed. When the
project is finished, the cost of the project is reclassified and recorded as a depreciable capital
asset.

Table 4
Capital Assets

Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities
20t2 201 I

Business-type Activities
20t2 20r r 20t2

'l'otal

20t I

Non- Depreciable Assets
Land & Right of Way
Construction in Progress

Other Capital Assets
Buildings
Improvements
Street Infrastructure
Storm Sewers

$8,1 15,246 $ t,370,735
3,653,422

$ 1,370,735 $9,485,98 I

- 5,882,376
$8,1 15,246
5,882,376

$9,485,981
3,847,421

2,249,882
923,03s

7,365,996
430,000

2,280,729 7,811,643
981,672

7,553,206
451 ,91 I

,8268,007 9,961,525
923,03s

7,365,996
430,000

r 0,288,555
981,672

7,553,206
451,91 I
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Table 4 (cont.)
Capital Assets

Net of Accumulated Depreciation

Governmental Activities
20t2 201 I

Business-type Activities
2012 201 I 2012

'l'otal

20n

Equiprnent

Watcr System

Sewer System

Parking Improvemcnts

2,888,3 l0 2,102,s02

Total Capital Assets for Governmental Activities reflect an increase in Construction in

Progress. Construction in Progress in 2012 and 20ll for both Governmental Activities and

Business-type Activities reflects engineering and construction for the Bluff Avenue street

reconstruction project and the Maple Avenue Relief Sewer (M.A.R.S.) project. Equipment

capital assets also increased due to the replacement of the HVAC systems at Village Hall and

Public Works. Total Capital Assets for Business-Type Activities decreased due to

depreciation expense exceeding capitalized assets.

Additional information on the Village's capital assets can be found in the Notes to the

Financial Statements, note # 4.

LONG-TERM DEBT

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of La Grange has total bonded debt and notes

outstanding of 58,400,000 all of which is backed by the full faith and credit of the Village.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation bond debt a governmental entity may

issue to 8.625 percent of its total equalized assessed valuation. The current estimated debt

limit for the Village is $61,236,720; as such, the Village is currently significantly under the

outstanding general obligation debt limit.

35,848

7,484,064

2,2n,792

2t6,837

37,149

7,868,287

2,07 t,9t8

t,234

2,924,158

7,484,064

2,2n,792

216,837

2,t39,649

7,868,284

2,07 t,919

1,235

763l3 $r $l'7 l3 9r9 148
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

Table 5
Outstanding Bonds

r,595,000 r,830,000 r,59s,000 1,830,000General Obligation llonds
(il,RS Refunding llonds
Series 2005)

Governmental
Activities

2012 20tl

Business4ype
Activities

20t2 20r I

'I'otal

20t2 201 I

Totals r,595,000 r,830,000 I,830,000

General Obligation bonds
Serics 2004 l-ibrary Bonds 6,805,000 7,200,000 6,805,000 7,200,000

Village & Library
'I'otals $ s9

The Village issued $3.9 million of general obligation (alternate revenue source) bonds in 1998

for the replacement of streetlights throughout the Village. The accelerated replacement of
street lights was completed over a three-year period and replaced the pay-as-you-go program,

which was scheduled to be completed over a 2}-year period. The 1998 Streetlight bonds were

refunded in December,2005 due to favorable interest rates. The bond refunding resulted in
interest sav¡ngs in excess of $100,000 overthe remaining life of the issue. The final maturity
date of the outstanding debt was not extended as a result of the refunding.

Although the La Grange Public Library is a legally separate entity from the Village it is

included in the Village's financial statements as a discretely presented component unit. The
Library may not issue bonded debt without the Village's approval, and its propefty taxes are

levied by the Village on behalf of the library. The General Obligation Library Bonds, Series

2004 which were approved via voter referendum were issued to fund construction of a new
municipal library building.

'Ihe Village's bond rating of Aa3 was affrrmed by Moody's Investors Services as part of the

59,320,000 Series 2004 Library bond issue. As stated by Moody's, this rating reflects the

steady growth in the Village's mature tax base, sound fìnancial operations that allow for
significant pay-as-you-go financing, adequate reserves, modest levels of direct debt owing to
substantial current funding of projects, and the ability to operate well within a limited resource

environment.

The Village is in the process of refunding the outstanding General Obligation, Library bonds,

Series 2004 due to the current low interest rate environment. The Village also anticipates
issuing $2.2 million of General Obligation, alternate revenue bonds to fund a water meter
replacement program to address ongoing water accountability, and for infrastructure and

technology improvements at the Village's water pumping station.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued¡

The Village has requested a meeting with Moody's Investors Services in order to obtain a

current bond rating for these pending bond issues. The Village will meet Moody's to discuss

fìnancial operations, economic development initiatives, management and current/future debt.

Additional information on the Village's long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the

Financial Statements, notes # 6 and #l l.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The Village's composition is primarily residential with small commercial and industrial
components. The property tax revenue derived from the curent housing stock is extremely
stable. The Village has also experienced an increase in residential housing due to construction
of new single family residences and additions. This has provided economic growth to the

property tax base. The commercial sector is stable as well as it is based on the purchase of
food and other necessary household items. Due to the utilization of a Tax Increment Financing
(TIF) District, the commercial sector base has increased in the last several years with the
revitalization of the downtown central business district.

CONTACTING THB VILLAGE'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors
with a general overview of the Village's finances and to demonstrate the Village's
accountability for the money it receives. Questions concerning this report or requests for
additional financial information should be directed to Lou Cipparrone, Finance Director,
Village of La Grange, 53 S. La Grange Rd, La Grange, Illinois 60525.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

April 30, 20 l2

Component
UnitGovemmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total Librarv

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net, where
applicable, of allowances
for uncollectibles)
Property taxes

Accounts
Accrued interest

Due lrom other govemments

Due from fìduciary funds
Prepaid expenses

Defened costs
Net pension asset

Net other postemployment benefìt asset

Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated (net of

accumulated depreciation)

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable

Deposits
Uneamed revenues

Property tax
Other

Due to component unit
Noncurrent I iabil ities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Restricted for maintenance of roadways
Restricted for public safety
Restricted for drug [orfeiture
Unrestricted

$ 5,221,044 $
9,234,06t

1,163,404 $
1,159,763

6,384,448 $ 3,439,677
r 0,393,824

3,1 10,654
38,784
20,156

1,093,300
224,067

s68

3,1 10,654

719,503
23,904

1,093,300
224,067

568

50,217

15,368,357

1,312,032

680,719
3,748

50,217

13,997,622

t3-757-222

5,096
115,477

2,404
94,4181,370,735

17.760.184 3l -5 t7^406 7.92s.135

46,747,695 22,t38.553 68,886,248 12.894.239

192,758
91,496
25,127

6,240,336
12,240
8,790

184,220
13,236

5,749

243,990

376,978
104,732

25,127
5,749

6,240,336
256,230

8,790

4l I ,086

4,1l3
26,602

I 14,190

2,691,745

460,763
6.48s.6t7

367,349
2.107.90s

43,737
l 63,873 2-2 1.7787

9.04ó.00t ó54.805 9-700-806 9.783.030

26,159,844
1,495,123

223,665
262,625

9,570,437

19,130,9 r 9 45,290,763
1,485,123

223,665
262,625

11,923,266

1,164,821

1.946.3882,3s2,829

$ 37.701.694 $ 21,483,748 s 59.r8s.442 S 3.1 I 1.209

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-3-
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Program Revenues

Expenses

Charges
for Services

Operating
Grants

Capital
GrantsFIJNCTIONS/PROGRAMS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Govemmental Activities

Ceneral government

Public safety
Highways and streets

Interest

Total governmental activities

Business-Type Activities
Water
Sewer
Parking

Total business-type activities

TO'TAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

COMPONENI' UNIT . LIBRARY
Culture and recreation
Interest

TOTAL COMPONENT IJNIT. LIBRARY

t2.530.236 t,649,17t 453.001 2.316.228

s 2,177,656 S

8,124,562
2,162,386

6s,632

606,493 $
698,t l8
344,560

1,100

451,901 2,316,228

$

3,608,282
457,000
972.235

3,418,705
379,483
702,431

s.037.517 4.500.619

$ t7,s67,753 $ 6,149,790 $ 453.001 $ 2.3t6.228

$ 2,128,132 $
290-842

35,303 $ $

s 2,4r 8,974 $ 35,303 $ $
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Net lExoense) Revenue and Chanse in Net Assets

Primarv Government

Component
Unit

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activrtres Total l,ibrarv

$ (1,571,163) $
(7,425,344)

950,303
rcs.632)

$ (1,571,163) $
(7,425,344)

950,303

t8.r I 1.836) t8.l I l

(r 89,577)
(77,517)

(t89,577)
(77,5t7)

(269.804\Q69.804

(536.898) (53

(8,1 I 1,836) (536,898) (8,648,734

(2,092,829)
(290.842\

(2.383,671)

Ceneral Revenues
Taxes

Property
Replacement
Sales, local use

utilily
Telecommunications

Shared income
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Total

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, MAY I

5,958,771
240,920

r,809,302
477,806
535,368

1,267,303
32,302

334,943
û00.000)

6,849

100.000

5,958,771

240,920
1,909,302

477,806
535,368

1,267,303
39,1 5 I

334,943

2,619,396
18,767

6,670
33,613

r 0.556.71 5 r 06,849 t0-663-564 2.678.446

2,444,879

35.256.8 r 5

(430,049)

2t.913-797

2,014,930

57.t70.612

294,775

2.816.434

s 37.70 r.694 $ 2l .483.748 S 59.t85.442 3

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

April30,2012

Capital
Proiects

Debt
Service

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

FundsGeneral

$ 2,739,976
5,895,71 I

Motor
Fuel Tax

$ 860,994 $
593,047

990,836 $

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net, where

applicable, of allowances
for uncollectibles)
Properfy taxes

Accounts
Accrued interest
Other

Due from other governments

Due from other funds
Due from fìduciary funds

TOTAL ASSETS

3,110,654
38,784
13,984

568

1,045,553

5,977
224,067

10,s00 s 48e,e27 s 
z:,i??:,11tr

3,110,654
38,784
14,877

568
1,093,300

5,977

224.067

893

30,189 13,558 4,000

$ 13.0?5.2?4 S t.48
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Motor
Fuel Tax

Capital
Proiects

$ I18,379 $

r r 8.379

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

FundsGeneral

$ 72,719 $
91,496

6,240,336
12,240
8,790

6.425.581

747,885

5.901.808

6.649.693

s 13.07s.274 s

Debt
Service

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Unearned revenues

Property tax
Other
Due to component unit
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for maintenance of roadways

Restricted for public safety

Restricted for drug forfeiture
Assigned for economic development
Assigned for capital projects

Assigned for debt service

Unassigned

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FLJND BALANCES

$ 1,660 $ 192,758
91,496

s.977

6,240,336
12,240
8,790
5,977

7^637 6.ss1.597

1,485,123
223,665
262,625

1,485,123
223,665
262,625
747,885
886,015

10,500
5-901^808

886,0 t 5

10,500

t.485.t23 886.015 10.500 486,290 9,517,621

1.485.123 $ 1.004.394 $ 10,500 $ 493,927 516,069,218

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

April30,2012

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are

not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds

General obligation bonds
Accrued compensated absences

Interest payable is not reported in the governmental funds

Net pension asset is shown as an asset on the statement
of net assets

Net pension obligation (Fire pension) is shown as a liability on the
statement of net assets

Net pension obligation (IMRF) is shown as a liability on the

statement of net assets

Net other postemployment benefits obligation is shown
as a liability on the statement of net assets

The unrestricted net assets of the internal service fund are

included in the governmental activities in the

statement of net assets

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-8-

$ 9,517,621

27,754,844

(1,595,000)
(638,127)

(25,127)

50,217

(34,533)

(102,2n)

( 10s,383)

2,879.393

s 37.701.694



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES fN FTIND BALANCES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

REVENUES
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Fines, licenses and permits

Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Cunent

General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Capitaloutlay
Debt service

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

7.403 456.170 634.427

78

78 316.984 13.455.062

217,364
2,078,237
8,003,062
1,688,774
1,478,342

General

$ 9,002,328 S

1,414,150

1,062,973
27,285

s40.667

12,04

$ 9,022,167
2,480,352

278,233
1,062,973

31,807
579.530

Motor
Fuel Tax

451,901

4,269

Capital
Proiects

Debt
Service

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

$$ $ 19,839

19,607

277,043
594,694

1,190

175

38,368 495

2,078"237
7,785,698
1,688,774

ll 709

1,478,342

235,000
68.765

235,000
68-765

1,478,342 303,765 217,364 13,552,180

4s6.t70 t843.9 t 5) (303.687)

-9-
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Motor
Fuel Tax

Capital
Proiects

Debt
Service

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

oTHER FINANCTNG SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FIjND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, MAY I

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30

General

$ 210,000 s
fl.062.s19)

(357,825)

7.007.5 r 8

- $ 1,500,622 $
(800.622\ (303.765)

143,765 S $ 1,854,387
( r.9s4.387)2t2.519

(852.519) (800.622\ 1.r 96.857 143.765 212.519 (r00.000)

(344,452)

1.829.575

352,942

s33.073

(159,922)

170.422

312,139

174.151

(197,1 t8)

9.714.739

s 6.64e-693 S t.48s.t23 $ 886.015 S 10.500 s 486.290 S 9.517.621

See accompanying notes to financial statements
-l0-



VILLAGE OF LA CRANGE, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO
THE GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures;
however, they are capitalized in the statement of activities
Less intemal services funds

Contributions ofcapital assets are reported as revenue on the

statement of activities

Capital assets are depreciated on the statement of activities
Less internal services funds

The repayment of long-term debt is reported as an

expenditure when due in governmental funds but as

a reduction of principal outstanding in the statement

of activities

The change in compensated absences is shown as an expense

on the statement of activities

Accrual of interest is reported as interest expense on the
statement of activities

The change in the net pension asset/obligation is shown as

an expense on the statement ol'activities

The change in the net pension obligation (IMRF) is shown as

an expense on the statement of activities

The change in the net other postemployment benefits payable (OPEB)

is shown as an expense on the statement of activities

Internal service funds are reported separately in the fund
financial statements

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying notes to fìnancial statements.
- ll -

$ (197,1 l8)

1,979,824
(595,529)

1,620,053

(983,721)
512,547

235,000

70,315

3,133

(36, I 80)

(30,478)

(26,877)

(106,090)

s 2.444.879



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

April 30,2012

Water Parkins. Sewer Total

lnternal
Service

Equipment
Renlacement

CURRENTASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables

Accounts
Accrued interest

Total cunent assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets

Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Deposits
Unearned revenue

Compensated absences payable

'Iotal current Iiabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Other postemployment benefits payable
Net pension obligation
Compensated absences payable

Total noncurrent I iabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSE'IS
Invested in capital assets

Unrestricted

$ 275,142 $
3t7,663

785,34 t $
842,100

102,921 $ 1,t63,404 $ 128,81I
- 1,159,763 2,745,303

680,7 r 9
3.748

70,835
3,445 5-279

1,202,992 t,630,886 t73,756 3,007,634 2,879,393

609,884
303

20,897
15,783,694
(8.258.83ó)

1,349,838
I 1,348,255
(3.333.750)

4,t0r,38t
1,370,735

3 I,233,330
3.473. 46)

5,070,386
r3.053.059)fl

7.545.755 9.364.343 l r9.130.9t9 2-017.327

8,748,747 t0,995,229 2,394,577 22,138,553 4,896,720

146,897

6,945
5,749

r0,r87
1,74t

27,136
4,550

184,220
13,236
5,749

243,990
43.737

243,990
43,737

203 28

5,932
30,664
55, l4 I

76

r,909
20,443
20,788

2,269
t0,221
r 6,506

l0,l l0
6t,328
92,43s

91,737 43,140 28.996 163.873

295.065 318.8 t ó 40.924 654 805

7,545,755 9,364,343 2,220,821 19,130,919 2,017,327
907,927 t,3t2,070 132,832 2,352,829 2,879,393

$ 8.453.682 $ 10.67

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA CRANGE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended April 30,2012

Internal
Service

Equipment

Water Purki

OPERATING REVENUES
Water sales

Sewer fees

Water meter installation
Sewer connection fees

Delinquent penalties
Fire lines
Parking meter collections
Parking decal sales

Parking fines
Charges for services
Miscellaneous income

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services
Supplies and materials
Contractual services
Other
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

oPËRATTNG TNCOME (r..OSS)

NONOPERATINC IìEVENUES (EXPENSES)
lnvestment income
Gain on sale of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS

CI-IANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, MAY I

3.4 t 8.705 702.431 3 79.4 83 4 500-6

$ 3,32t,610 $

38,940

qz,gøs

12,370

$ 3,321,610 $
373,883

38,940
5,600

42,869
12,370
8l,678

441,255
t44,528

$

373,883

5,600

I r,678
44t,255
144,528

515,1 l7
2.916 34.970 37 .886

195 t5.l t7

1,237,576

30,527
1 ,859,1 5 1

84,998
396.030

ó87,878
11,937

48,669
18,908

204.843

286,077
7,1 86

33,646
72,849

2,21I,531
49,650

1,941,466
176,755
658.1 l5

258,386
512.54757_242

3.608.282 972.235 4s7-000 s-037^51 7 770.933

fl89.577) t269.804) ..5 71 1s36 8981 1255.816)

t,628 4,630 591 6,849 t2,153
t37,573

t-628 4.630 59r 6 849 149^726

( I 87,949) (76,926) (530,049) (106,090)(265,t74)

t00.000 00 000

(187,949)

8.64r.63 r

(r6s,r74)

r0.84 t.587

(76,e26)

2.430.s79

(430,049)

21.9t3.797

(r06,090)

s-002.8 t0

s 8.4s3.682 S r0.676.413 S

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
-13-

NET ASSE'TS, APRIL 30 S 21.4ß3-748 S 4.89(r-720



VILLAGE OF LA CRANCE, ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
S1'AI'EMDNT OF CASLI FLOWS

For the Year Endcd April 30,2012

lnternal
Service

Equipment
Water Parking Sewcr l'otal Replacement

CASI.I TLOWS FROM OPERATINC ACl]VITIES
Receipts from customers and users

Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
(Receipts) payments to internal servicc flunds

Nct cash fiom operating activities

CASII I:[.OWS IIROM CAPI'I'AI- AND
REI-A'TED t:INANCING ACTIVI'I'IES
Proceeds flrorn sale ofcapital assets

Acquisition of capital assets

Net cash from capital and related

fìnancing activities

CASI{ FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND
RELA'TDD TìNANCINC AC1'IVIl'IES
Paymcnt to other funds
'fransfers in

Net cash from noncapilal and related

financing activities

C.ÀSt.I FLOWS TJIIOM INVËS1'INC ACTIVTTI IJS

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale of invcslments
lntercst reccived

Net cash fiorn investing activities

NrìT TNCREASIì (DECREASE) rN
cAst I AND CASr'l EQIJIVAI-tjNl'S

cAst't AND c/\Sl-l EQtJlvAl.IjN'IS, MAY I

c^sH AND CASII [ìQUIVA[.I]N'Ì'S, APRIt.30

RECONCILIAI'ION OIì OPERA'I]NC INCOMIì
(t.oss) 'to NETCASI I I'l-ows lìRoM
OPERAl'ING AC'IIVI'I]ES
Operating incomc (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating íncome (loss)

to net cash from opcrating activitics
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities

Accounls rcceivable
Accounts payablc
Accrued payroll
I)cferred rcvenue

Other post employment benefìts

Net pcnsion obligation - IMRF
Compensated absences

NE'I' CASI-f FIìOM OPTìRA'|ING ACI'IVIl'IES

$ 3,335,097 $
(t,923,225\
(t,234,s99)

(45,05s)

698,706 $ 380,124 $4,413,927 $ -
(34,s57) (64,84e) (2,022,631) (258,386)

(677,n2) (2'18,7t6) (2,t90,42't)
(18,e08) (38,747) (10?,?1qL s15,l l7

t32.2t8 (3 l.87 r ) 12- I 88) 98-159 256.73t

ru,rnr', ,r,o,oou', ru,*or', ,rrr,rru, rli3,ili,

16.89s) (2t4.096\ ())7 RR6\ 1457 956ì

(442,000) (r94,000) (636,000)

t442.000) 100.000 ( I 000ì l5i6 0001

(101,868) (1,2e3,500) - (1,395,368) (2,351,844)

59t,272 1,290,700 200,000 2,081,972 2,586,t76
7,359 4,6t6 765 12,740 18,917

496.763 l,8 ló 200.765 699.344 253.249

r80,086

95.056

(r44,rsr)

929.492

(2,3 r8)

0s.239

33,6t7 s2,024

I .129.787 '76.78',1

s 2'1s.142 S 785.341 S I 9)t s r 161 404 ç t2ß 8l I

$ (189,s77) $ (2óe,804) $ (77,s17) $ (53ó,898) $ (2ss,816)

396,030 204,843 57,242 658,115 s12,547

(83,ó08)

6,396
4,6s4

26,049
3,078

(3,725)
487

6,096
1.105

ó41
r0,085
1,2t2

3,048
)9)

(82,967)
42,530
8,944

(3,72s)
2,579

18,288
t8 7071

t,513
9,144

( t2.334\

579

$ r32.218 $ (31.87r) $ 12.r88)$ 98.159 $ 25ó.73r

See accompanying notes to fìnancial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

April 30,2012

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at fair value

U.S. Government and agency securities
Insurance contracts
Stocks

Corporate bonds

Municipalbonds
Receivables

Assessments
Accrued interest

Totalassets

LIABILITIES
Due to the General Fund
Due to bondholders
Due to property owners

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR

PENSION BENEFITS

Pension

Trust Funds

Agency
Funds

$ 2

3,4oo,g5l
12,982,284
5,691,461
1,442,585

89,503

51,599
41,974

24,312,650 $ 51,601

t94,736 $ 29,331
22,269

I

194,736 S 51,601

$992663

s 24,117,914

See accompanying notes to fìnancial statements.
-15-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Other

Total contributions

Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value
of investments

Interest

Total investment income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Adm inistrative expenses

Miscellaneous

Total deductions

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS

May I

s 1,547,775

348,903
185

863

133,098
2t2.386

345,484

(79,643)

265,841

2, 162.704

2,617,233
4,000

t7.689

2,638,922

(476,218)

24,594,132

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30,2012

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financialstatements of the Village of La Grange, Illinois (the Village) have been

prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred to generally accepted

accounting principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and

fìnancial reporting principles. The more significant of the Village's accounting policies
are described below.

a. Reporting Entity

The Village was incorporated June I l, 1879. The Village is a municipal corporation
governed by an elected seven-member board. The Village operates under a Board-
Manager form of government and provides the following services as authorized by
its charter: public safety (police and fire), highways and streets, water and sanitation,
public improvements, planning and zoning and general administrative services. As
required by generally accepted accounting principles, these fìnancial statements
present the Village (the primary government) and its component units. The
component units discussed below are included in the Village's reporting entity
because of the significance of their operational or financial relationship with the

Village.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The component unit column in the fìnancial statements include the financial data of
the Village's component unit. It is repofted in a separate column to emphasize that it
is legally separate from the Village.

La Crange Public Library

The La Grange Public Library (the Library) is governed by the La Grange Public
Library Board of Trustees (the Library Board of Trustees) elected by the voters of
the Village. The Library Board of Trustees selects management staflf, establishes

budgets and otherwise directs the affairs of the Library. The Library may not issue

bonded debt without the Village's approval. The Library receives most of its
funding through property taxes levied by the Village on behalf of the Library.
Separate financial statements are not issued.

-17-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l. SUMMARY OF SICNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a. Reporting Entity (Continued)

The Village's financial statements include pension trust funds:

Police Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village's police employees pafticipate in the Police Pension Employees
Retirement System (PPERS). PPERS functions for the benefìt of these

employees and is governed by a five-member pension board. Two members

appointed by the Village's President, one pension beneficiary elected by the
membership and two police employees elected by the membership constitute
the pension board. The Village and PPERS participants are obligated to fund
all PPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. The State of lllinois is

authorized to establish benefit levels and the Village is authorized to approve
the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution levels.
Although it possesses many characteristics of a legally separate government,

PPERS is repomed as if it were part of the primary government because its sole
purpose is to finance and administer the pensions of the Village's police

employees and because of the fiduciary nature of such activities. PPERS is
reported as a pension trust fund. No separate stand-alone financial statements

are issued by PPERS.

F-irefighters' Pension Employees Retirement System

The Village's fireflghters participate in the Firefighters' Pension Employees
Retirement System (FPERS). FPERS functions for the benefit of these

employees and is governed by a five-member pension board. Two members
appointed by the Village's President, one pension beneficiary elected by the
membership and two firefìghter employees elected by the membership
constitute the pension board. The Village and FPERS participants are

obligated to fund all FPERS costs based upon actuarial valuations. 'Ihe State

of Illinois is authorized to establish benefit levels and the Village is authorized
to approve the actuarial assumptions used in the determination of contribution
levels. Although it possesses many of the characteristics of a legally separate
government, FPERS is reported as if it were part of the primary government

because its sole purpose is to finance and administer the pensions of the

Village's firefìghters because of the fiduciary nature of such activities. FPERS

is reported as a pension trust fund. No separate stand-alone fìnancial
statements are issued by FPERS.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b. Fund Accounting

The Village uses funds to repor-t on its fìnancial position and the changes in its
fìnancial position and cash flows. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal

compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions related to
cer-tain governmental functions or activities.

A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Funds are classifìed into the following categories: governmental, proprietary and

fiduciary.

Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's general

activities, including the collection and disbursement of earmarked monies (special

revenue funds), the acquisition or construction of capital assets (capital projects

funds) and the servicing of general long-term debt (debt service funds). The general

fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for
in some other fund.

Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar to those found in the
private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound

fìnancial administration. Goods or services from such activities can be provided

either to outside parties (enterprise funds) or the other departments or agencies

primarily within the Village (internal service funds). Pursuant to GASB Statement

No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting.for Proprietary Funds, the Village has

chosen to apply all GASB pronouncements as well as those pronouncements of the

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued on or before November 30,

I 989 to account for enterprise funds.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held on behalf of outside par-ties,

including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the Village. When

these assets are held under the terms of a formal trust agreement, a pension trust fund

is used. Agency funds generally are used to account for assets that the Village holds

on behalfofothers as their agent.

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financialstatements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the

statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the

Village. The effect of material interfund activity has been eliminated from these

statements. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated for this purpose.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and

intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities
which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for support.

- 19-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

L SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expense of a
given function, segment or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses

are those that are clearly identif,rable with a specific function or segment. Program

revenues include (l) charges to customers or applicants who purchaseo use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment

and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are repofted instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide
fìnancial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Village's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those accounted for in
another fund.

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund accounts for the operation of certain street
maintenance programs and to fund specific capital projects as authorized by the

Illinois Department of Transportation. The Village has elected to report the

Motor Fuel Tax Fund as a major fund.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the costs of various infrastructure
improvements to village property. These costs are financed by transfers from the
General and Motor Fuel Tax Funds, grants and bond proceeds.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for resources that are used to repay general

long-term debt obligations. The Village has elected to repoft this as a major
fund.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

o The Water Fund accounts for the activities of the water operations.

o The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the sewer operations.

The Parking Fund accounts for the activities of the parking lots and meters

a

o

o

a

a
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c. Government-Wide and Fund F'inancial Statements (Continued)

Additionally, the Village reports the following funds:

a

a

O

The Internal Service Equipment Replacement Fund is used to accumulate monies
for the future replacement of equipment. Financing is provided by payments

from the General, ETSB, Water, Parking and Sewer Funds.

Pension F-unds are used to account for the Police and Firefighters' Pension

activities.

Agency Funds are used to account for noncommitment debt of the special service

areas and special assessments.

d. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund

and frduciary fund fìnancial statements, with the exception of the agency funds

which do not have a measurement focus. Revenues and additions are recorded when

earned and expenses and deductions are recorded when a Iiability is incurred.

Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied (i.e.,

intended to finance). Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as

all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental funds are repofted using the current financial resources measurement

focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. The modified accrual basis of
accounting is used by all governmental funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they

become both measurable and available). "Measurable" means the amount of the

transaction can be determined and "available" means collectible within the current
period. The Village recognizes property taxes when they become both measurable

and available in the period intended to finance. A 90 day availability period is used

for revenue recognition for all other governmental fund revenues. Expenditures are

recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. Principal and interest on general

long-term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been

accumulated in the debt service fund for payments to be made early in the following
year.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses,

interest revenue and charges for services. Sales and income taxes owed to and fines

collected by the State of lllinois atyear end on behalf of the Village also are

recognized as revenue. Permit revenues are not susceptible to accrual because

generally they are not measurable until received in cash.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

(Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating

items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in

connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.

The Village reports unearned revenue on its financial staternents. Unearned

revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and

available or earned criteria for recognition in the current period. Unearned revenues

also arise when resources are received by the Village before it has a legal claim to
them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying
expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are meL

or when the Village has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned

revenue is removed from the financial statements and revenue is recognized.

Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village's proprietary funds consider

all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual
funds for goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are

classified as o'due from other funds" or "due to other funds" on the financial
statements. Short-term interfund loans, if any, are classified as "interfund
receivables/payables."

g. Prepaid ltems/Expenses

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond the date of
this report are recorded as prepaid items/expenses.

d

e

f.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

L SUMMARY OF' SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINC POLICIES (Continued)

h. Capital Assets

Capital assets which include property, plant, equipment, intangible assets and

infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges and storm sewers) are reported in the

applicable governmental or business-type activities cotumns in the government-wide

financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Village as assets with an

initial, individual cost of more than $ 10,000 for furniture, equipment and vehicles
and $ I00,000 for building, building improvements and infrastructure plus an

estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historicalcost
or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are

recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets, (i.e., those

reported by governmental activities) the Village chose to include all such items
regardless of their acquisition date. The Village was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these assets through backtrending (i.e., estimating the
current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using an

appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated
acquisition year). As the Village constructs or acquires additional capital assets each

period, including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical
cost. The reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs which are

essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the capacity
or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate. In the
case of donations, the Village values these capital assets at the estimated fair value ol'
the item at the date of its donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset

or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are

constructed. lnterest incurred during the construction phase ofcapital assets of
business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets

constructed. Property, plant and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Building and building improvements
Improvements
Water d istribution system
Sewer distribution system
Vehicles, equipment and fumiture
Intangible assets

Infrastructure

l0 - 50
r0 - 35

l0-40
40

2-25
5- l0

50
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave of proprietary funds and

governmental activities is recorded as an expense and liability of those funds as the

benefits accrue to employees.

j. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are repofted as

liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or
proprietary fund financial statements. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as

issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs

are reported as deferred charges and amortized overtheterm of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and

discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face

amount of debt issued is reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs, whether or
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.

k. Fund Balance/Net Assets

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds repoft nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are either not spendable in form or legally or contractually
required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance are reported for
amounts constrained by legal restrictions from outside pafties for use for a specific
purpose, or externally imposed by outside entities. None of the restricted fund
balance result from enabling legislation adopted by the Village. Committed fund
balance is constrained by formal actions of the Village's Board of Trustees, which is

considered the Village's highest level of decision making authority. Formal actions
include resolutions and ordinances approved by the Board. Assigned fund balance

represents amounts constrained by the Village's intent to use them for a specifìc
purpose. The authority to assign fund balance has been delegated to the Village
Manager by the Village Board of Trustees. Any residual fund balance is reported as

unassigned.

The Village's flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest
level of constraint are expended first. If restricted or unrestricted funds are available
for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additionally, if different levels of
unrestricted funds are available for spending the Village considers committed funds
to be expended first followed by assigned and then unassigned funds.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k. Fund BalanceÂrlet Assets (Continued)

The Village has established fund balance reserve policies for its general fund. The

Ceneral Fund targets six months of operating expenditures as unassigned fund

balance. The Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds do not have

established fund balance limits due to the nature of the transactions accounted for in
these funds.

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net assets are legally
restricted by outside parties for a specific purpose. Net assets have not been

restricted by enabling legislation adopted by the Village. Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt, represents the book value of capital assets less any long-term debt

principal outstanding issued to construct capital assets.

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds,

except the pension trust funds. Each fund's portion of this pool is displayed on the

financial statements as "cash and investments." In addition, investments are separately

held by several of the Village's funds. The deposits and investments of the pension trust
funds are held separately from those of other funds. The investments are governed by

three separate investment policies; one policy for the Village adopted by the Village Board

and one policy each for the Police and Firefìghters' Pension Funds approved by their
respective boards.

The Village's investment policy authorizes the Village to make deposits/invest in insured

commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S

agencies, insured credit union shares, money market mutual funds with portfolios of
securities issued or guaranteed by the United States or agreements to repurchase these

same obligations, short-term commercial paper rated within the three highest
classifications by at least two standard rating services, tllinois Funds and IMET.

Illinois Funds is an investment pool which was created by the lllinois State Legislature

under the control of the State Comptroller that maintains a S I per share value which is
equal to the participants fair value and the Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET),
a not-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant to the Illinois Municipal Code and

managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating members. IMET is not

registered with the SEC as an investment company. lnvestments in IMET are valued at

IMET's share price, the price for which the investment could be sold.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

The Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds can invest in the same securities as the Village,
plus the following: certain non-U.S. obligations (corporate debt securities), Illinois
municipal corporations tax anticipation warrants, veteran's loans, obligations of the State

of Illinois and its political divisions, Illinois insurance company general and separate

accounts, mutual funds and equity securities.

It is the policy of the Village to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the highest
investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands

of the Village and conforming to all state and local statues governing the investment of
public funds, using the "prudent person" standard for managing the overall portfolio. The
primary objective of the policy is safety (preservation of capital and protection of
investment principal), liquidity and yield.

a. Village Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the

event of a bank's failure, the Village's deposits may not be returned to it. The
Village's investment policy requires pledging of collateral with a fair value of I l0%
of all bank balances in excess of federal depository insurance. At April 30,2012,the
Village had bank balances of $16,032 that were uninsured and uncollateralized.

b. Village Investments

In accordance with its investment policy, the Village limits its exposure to interest
rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating funds and

maximizing yields for funds not needed within a l5-month period. The investment
policy limits the maximum maturity length of investments in the general fund and

the special revenue funds to l5 months from date of purchase. Investments in other
funds may be purchased with maturities to match future projects or liability
requirements. In addition, the policy requires the Village to structure the investment
portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations,
thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the open market prior to matur¡ty.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

b. Villagelnvestments(Continued)

The Village limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security
will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in shor-t-term

commercial paper rated A+ to AAA by Standard and Poor's. Illinois Funds and the

Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund are rated AAA by Standard and Poor's.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the

counterpafty to the investment, the Village will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the

Village's investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to

custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with
the underlying investments held by a third party acting as the Village's agent

separate from where the investment was purchased or by the trust department of the

bank where purchased, in the Village's name. Illinois Funds and the money market
mutual fund are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk - The Village's investment policy limits investments to
the amount of the portfolio that can be invested in any one investment vehicle as

follows:

Diversification by Instrument
Percent of
Portfolio

U.S. Treasury obligations (bills, notes and bonds)
U.S. government agency securities and instrumentalities
of government sponsored corporations

Bankers acceptances (BAs)
Repurchase agreements (REPOs) (monies in the public funds or
other money market funds are not to be included in this limitation)

Certificates of deposit (CDs) commercial banks/savings and loans

Certificates of deposit (CDs) credit unions
Illinois Public Funds (or similar types of investments/money
market pools)

Commercial paper (CP)

100%

50o/o

25%

25%
r00%
t00%

s0%
t0%

Diversification by Financial Institution

Bankers Acceptances (BAs) - no more than25o/o of the total portfolio with any one

institution.

Repurchase Agreements (REPOs) - no more than25o/o of the total portfolio with any

one institution.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

b. Villagelnvestments(Continued)

Diversification by Financial Institution (Continued)

Certificates of Deposit (CDs) - Commercial banks, savings and loan association,
credit unions - no more than 50o/o of the total portfolio with any one institution.

Local Government Investment Pool - The Illinois Public Funds or similar type of
investment/money market pools - no more than 50o/o.

Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the

event of a bank's failure, the Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds' deposits may
not be returned to them. The Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds' investment
policies do not require pledging of collateral for all bank balances in excess of
federal depository insurance, since flow-through FDIC insurance is available for the

Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds' deposits with financial institutions.

d. Police Pension Fund Investments

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Police Pension

Fund's debt securities as of April 30,2012:

Investmont Maturities Y
lnvestment '['ypc l:air Value l-ess than I 6- l0 More than l0

c.

U.S. 1'rcasury obligations
[J.S. agency obligations
Corporate bonds
Municipal bonds

1.o'l'^L

s 2,332,007 $
447,154

1,076,ó03
68,490

893,3 r9 $
239,523
8{t5,341

30.764

838,598 $
93,314

t91,262
37,726

600,090 $
It4,3l7

s 3,924,254 $ ó00.090 $ 2,048,947 $ I,160,900 $ ¡ 14,3 l7

In accordance with its investment policy, the Police Pension Fund limits its exposure

to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating
funds and maximizing yields for funds not needed within a one-year period. The
investment policy does not limit the maximum maturity length of investments in the

Police Pension Fund.

The Police Pension F-und limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a
debt security will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in
obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government or securities issued by agencies of
the U.S. Government that are explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the U.S.

Government. The U.S. Treasury and U.S. agency obligations are rated AA, the

money market funds are rated AAA and the bond mutual funds are rated AAA.
Illinois Funds is rated AAA by Standard and Poor's.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN'|S (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

d. Police Pension Fund Investments (Continued)

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the

counterparty to the investment, the Police Pension Fund will not be able to recover
the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its
exposure, the Police Pension Fund's investment policy requires all security
transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery
versus payment (DVP) basis with the underlying investments held by a third party

acting as the Police Pension Fund's agent separate from where the investment was

purchased in the Police Pension Fund's name. Illinois Funds, insurance contracts
and bond mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk - The Police Pension Fund's investment policy limits the

amount of the portfolio that can be invested in any one investment vehicle to 50% of
the portfolio.

Firefighters' Pension Fund Investmentse

The following table presents the investments and maturities of the Firefighters'
Pension Fund's debt securities as of April 30, 2012:

lnvcstrncnt Maturities (in Ycars)

lnvestment Type 6 - l0 More than l0Irair Value l.ess than I l-5

[J.S.'l'reasury obligations
[J.S. agency obligations
Corporate bonds
Municipal bonds

1'O'f'^t.

284,631 $

82,301
289,130

208,050 s
40,t l4
76,852
10.758

$ 492,681 $
129,009
365,982

2 1.0 l3

s
6,594

0.255

s 1.008.685 $ s t7$ 335.774 $ 6.s94

In accordance with its investment policy, the Firefighters' Pension Fund limits its
exposure to interest rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for
operating funds and maximizing yields for funds not needed within a one-year
period. The investment policy does not limit the maximum maturity length of
investments in the Firefighters' Pension Fund.

The Firefìghters' Pension Fund limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the

issuer of a debt security will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily
investing in obligations guaranteed by the U.S. Government or securities issued by
agencies of the U.S. Government that are explicitly or implicitly guaranteed by the

U.S. Government. The U.S. agency obligations are rated AA and the money market
funds are rated AAA. Illinois Funds is rated AAA by Standard and Poor's.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

e. Firefighters' Pension Fund Investments (Continued)

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the

counterparty to the investment, the Firefighters' Pension Fund will not be able to
recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. To
limit its exposure, the Firefighters' Pension Fund's investment policy requires all
security transactions that are exposed to custodial credit risk to be processed on a
delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with the underlying investments held by a third
party acting as the Firefighters' Pension Fund's agent separate from where the

investment was purchased in the Firefighters' Pension Fund's name. Illinois Funds,

insurance contracts and bond mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of oredit risk - The Firefighters' Pension Fund's investment policy
limits the amount of the portfolio that can be invested in any one investment vehicle
to 50%o of the portfolio.

3. RECEIVABLES

Proper-ty taxes for 201 I attach as an enforceable lien on January l,20ll on propefty values

assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the subsequent fiscal year
(by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared by the County and issued on

or about February 1,2012 and August 1,2012 and are payable in two installments, on or
about March 1,2012 and September 1,2012. The County collects such taxes and remits
them periodically. The allowance for uncollectible taxes has been stated at 3Yo of the tax
levy and 5% of the debt service levy to reflect actual collection experience.

The 2012 taxlevy, which attached as an enforceable lien on propefty as of January l,
2012,has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30,2012, as the tax has not yet

been levied by the Village and will not be levied until December2012 and, therefore, the

levy is not measurable at April 30,2012.

The following receivables are included in due from other govemments on the statement of
net assets:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Income taxes
Sales taxes
Utility taxes
MFT allotment
9- l- I fees

Grants

$ 463,817
412,743
168,993
30, I 89
4,000

13,558

$ l,o9TOTAL
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4, CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2012 was as follows:

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress

Land
Land right of way

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
lmprovements
Street infrastructure
Storm sewers
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Improvements
Street infrastructure
Storm sewers
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES CAPITAL
ASSETS, NET

BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated
Building and building improvements
Water distribution system
Sewer distribution system
Parking improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

$ 3,6s3,422 $ 2,450,770
s39,948

7.57s.298

$ 221,816 $ 5,882,376
- s39,948
- 7.s7s.298

I t.768.668 2.450,770 221.8t6 13.997.622

5,898,888
2,s30,018

I1,633,273
|,695,557
5.546.892

5,898,888
2,530,0 r 8

I1,633,273
1,695,557
6.464.2t9t.370.923 453.596

27.304.628 1.370.923 4s3.s96 28.221.955

3,6l g,l59
1,548,346
4,080,067
1,243,646
3.444.390

r 30,848
58,637

187,209
21,912

585.1 l 5 4s3.596

3,749,007
1,606,983
4,267,276
1,265,558
3.575.909

Total cap¡tal assets being depreciated, net t3,370,020 387,202

13.934.608 983.721 4s3.s96 14.464-733

13,757,222

$ 25.138.688 S 2.837.972 $ 221.8t6 $ 27.754,844

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

$ l,370,735 $ $ $ 1,370,735
193 999 193 999

t.564.734 193 999 t.370.735

9,386,936
15,227,759
3,872,654
1,775,449

548,647

193,999
214,096

13,790

9,386,936
15,227,759
4,066,653
1,989,545

562,437

30,81r,44s 42t,88s
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANCE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTI VITIES (Continued)
Less accumulated depreciation for

Building and building improvements
Water distribution system
Sewer distribution system
Parking improvements
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

GOVERNM ENTA L ACTI VITIES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

$ 1,379,1 l0
7,359,472
1,800,736
1,764,215

$ 196,183 $
384,223

54,125
8,493

s 1,575,293
7,743,695
I ,854,861
1,772,708

5t I 498
8l

89

lt5 l3

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 17,996,414 (236,230) t7.760.184

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTI VITIES CAPITAL
ASSETS, NET $ 19,561,148 $ (236,230) $ t93.999 $ r9.130.9r9

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as

follows:

s 87,242
410,970
485,509

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES $ 983,721

5. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and

destruction of assets and omissions; injuries to employees; illnesses of employees;and
natural disasters.

The Village purchases medical insurance from a private insurance company and
pafticipates in a municipal risk management pool for general liability coverage. Premiums
have been displayed as expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. The amount of
settlements did not exceed the insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years.

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (tRMA)

The Village participates in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA).
IRMA is an organization of municipalities and special districts in northeastern Illinois,
which have formed an association under the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperations
Statute to pool their risk management needs. IRMA administers a mix of self-insurance
and commercial insurance coverages; property/casualty and workers' compensation claim
administration/litigation management services; unemployment claim administration
services; extensive risk management/loss control consulting and training programs and a
risk information system and financial reporting service for its members.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA) (Continued)

The Village's payments to IRMA are displayed on the financial statements as

expenditures/expenses in appropriate funds. Each member assumes the first $2,500 of
each occurrence and IRMA has a mix of self-insurance and commercial insurance at

various amounts above that level.

Each member appoints one delegate, along with an alternate delegate, to represent the

member on the Board of Directors. The Village does not exercise any control over the
activities of IRMA beyond its representation on the Board of Directors.

Initial contributions are determined each year based on the individual member's eligible
revenue as defined in the by-laws of IRMA and experience modification factors based on
past member loss experience. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of
IRMA attributable to a membership year during which they were members. Supplemental
contributions may be required to fund these deficits.

6. LONG-TERM DEBT

a. General Obligation Bonds

The Village issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and

construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued

for general government activities. These bonds; therefore, are reported in the
proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary revenues.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of
the Village. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Iì¡nd Debt
Retircd bv

IJalances
May I

[Jalances

Ânril 30
Current
Portionlssuances Rcductions

$2,785,000 
^ltcmateRevenue Iìefìrnding Bonds

dated December 22, 2005 due
in annual installments from
$135,000 to $295,000 plus

intercst from 3.20Yo lo 3.90Yo

through December 1,2017.

.I.O,TAT- GENERAL
OBLIGAI'ION BONDS

Scrvice $ 1,830,000 $ s 235.000 s 1.595.000 $ 240,000
Debt

$ r.830,000 $ $ 235.000 $ 1.595.000 $ 240.000

Utility taxes are pledged for the retirement of the General Obligation Bonds
(Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2005. Property tax levies have been abated to

date.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

b. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Year
Ending

April 30,

Alternate Bonds

Principal Interest

2013
2014
2015
2016
20t7
2018

$ 240,000 $
250,000
260,000
270,000
280,000
295,000

60,305
5l,545
42,295
32,545
22,285
I l-505

c

TOTAL $ 1,595,000 $ 220,480

Other Changes in Long-Term Debt

Changes in other governmental activities long-term liabilities during the fiscal year

were as follows:

Govemmental Activities

Balances
Mav I

Balances
Additions Retirements Aoril 30

Current
Portion

General obligation bonds

Net pension obligation - IMRF

Net pension obligation -
fire pension

Other postemployment
benefit*

Compensated absences
payable*

TOTAL

$ r,830,000 $

71,733 30,478

$ 235,000 $ 1,595,000 $ 240,000

- 102,211

13,036 21,497

79,506 26,877

34,533

105,383

70.315 638.127 127.349708.442

s 2.70t"717 $ 78.852 $ ls$ 2.475.254 s367-349

* The Village's General Fund has historically been used to retire the compensated

absences and other postemployment benefit liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

6. LONG-T'ERM DEBT (Continued)

c. Other Changes in Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

Balances
May I Additions Retirements

Balances
April30

Current
Portion

Net pension obligation - IMRF

Other postemployment benefit

Compensated absences
payable

TOTAL

$ 43,040 $

7,531

18,288 $

2,579

61,328 $

l0,l l0

$

I 44,880 8.708 136.172 43,737

$ 195,45t $ 20,867 $ 8,708 $ 207,610 S 43,737

7, INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

a Transfers between funds during the year were as follows:

Primary Government

Fund
Transfers

In

'l'ransfers

Out

General
Motor FuelTax
Emergency Telephone Systems Board
Asset Forfeiture
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Parking

$ z 10,000

262,519
1,500,622

303,765
100,000

1,062,519
800,622

50,000

303,765
t 60,000

$

a

TOTAL ALL FUNDS s 2,376,906 s 2,376,904

$700,000 transferred to the Capital Projects Fund from the General Fund. This
transfer represents the General Fund's portion of infrastructure maintenance
and improvements.

S 100,000 transferred to the Parking Fund from the General Fund. This transfer
funds the additional costs associated with the general maintenance and

operations of the parking structure.

$50,000 transferred to the General Fund from the Emergency Telephone
Systems Board Fund. This transfer is to offset the costs of personnel

attributable directly to the operation of the emergency telephone system.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

a. (Continued)

a $800,622 transferred to the Capital Projects Fund from the Motor Fuel Tax
Fund. This transfer is for funding infrastructure maintenance and
improvements.

$303,765 transferred to the Debt Service Fund from the Capital Projects Fund.

This transfer is for funding the Alternate Revenue Bonds. The bonds were
issued to fund the completion of the residential street light program.

b Due From/To Other Funds

Primary Government

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General
General

Foreign Fire Ins.
Asset Forfeiture

$ 770
5,207

TOTAL

$770 and 95,207 due from the Foreign Fire Insurance and Asset Forfeiture
Funds, respectively, to the General Fund relates to operating activity from both

funds. These amounts will be repaid within one year.

8. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

a. Litigation

The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these

lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the Village's attorney, the

resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the fÏnancial
condition of the Village.

b. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and

adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed
claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the

applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the

grantor cannot be determined at this time, although the Village expects such

amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

s 5,977
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEN1'S (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

The Village contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the Illinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system;

the Police Pension Plan which is a single-employer pension plan and the Firefighters'
Pension Plan which is also a single-employer pension plan. The benefits, benefit levels,

employee contributions and employer contributions for all three plans are governed by
Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be amended by the Illinois General

Assembly. None of the pension plans issue separate repofts on the pension plans.

However, IMRF does issue a publicly available report that includes financial statements

and supplementary information for IMRF as a whole, but not for individual employers.
That report can be obtained fiom IMRF on-line at www.imrf.org.

a. Plan Descriptions

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

All employees (other than those covered by the Police or Firefighters' Pension Plans

or SLEP) hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly
standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members. IMRF provides two
tiers of pension benefìts. Employees hired prior to January l, 201 l, are eligible for
Tier I benefits. For Tier I employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of
service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced benefits) or after age

60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual

retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to | 213%o of their
fìnal rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to l5 years, and2o/o for
each year thereafter.

Employees hired on or after January l, 201 l, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For
Tier2 employees, pension benefits vest after l0 years oflservice. Participating
members who retire at age 62 (reduced benefìts) or after age 67 (full benefits) with
l0 years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable

monthly for life, in an amount equal to I 2l3Yo of their final rate of earnings, f-or each

year of credited service up to l5 years, and2o/o for each year thereafter.

IMRF also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all
other requirements are established by state statute. Participating members are

required to contribute 4.50%o of their annual salary to IMRF. The Village is required
to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the IMRF as specifìed by
statute. The employer contribution flor the year ended December 31,201 I was

I I .460/0 of covered payroll.
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9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Sheriffls Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP)

SLEP provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January l,
2011, are eligible for Tier I benefits. For Tier I employees, having accumulated at

least 20 years of SLEP service and terminating IMRF participation on or after
January l, 1988, may elect to retire at or after age 50 with no early retirement discount
penalty. SLEP members meeting these two qualifications are entitled to an annual

retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to2.50%o oftheir final
rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 32 years or 80% of their fìnal
rate of earnings. For those SLEP members retiring with less than20 years of SLEP
service, the regular IMRF pension formula applies.

Employees hired on or after January 1,201I, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For
Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating
members who retire at age 50 (reduced benefits) or after age 55 (full benefits) with
ten years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefìt, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to 2.5o/o of their final rate of earnings, for each

year of credited service up to 30 years of service to a maximum of 75Yo.

SLEP also provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all
other requirements are established by state statute. Participating members are

required to contribute 6.5Yo of their annual salary to SLEP. The Village is required
to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to fund the IMRF as specified by
statute. The employer contribution rate for the calendar year 201I was I 5.45Yo of
covered payroll.

Police Pension Plan

Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan. Although this is a

single-employer pension plan, the defìned benefits and employee and employer
contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-l) and

may be amended only by the lllinois legislature. The Village accounts for the Police
Pension Plan as a pension trust fund. At April 30,201l, the Police Pension Plan

membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not
yet receiving them

Current employees
Vested
Nonvested

32

20
7

TOTAL

-38-
59



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Police Pension Plan (Continued)

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefìts through two tiers of benefits as

well as death and disability benefits. Tier I employees (those hired prior to
January I , 20 I I ) attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable
service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the
salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the
last day, whichever is greater. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50Yo of
such salary for each additional year ofservice over 20 years up to 30 years to a
maximum of 75.00%o of such salary. Employees with at least eight years but less

than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced
benefit. The monthly benefit of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of
service after January l, 1977 shall be increased annually, following the first
anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years,

by 3.00% of the original pension and 3.00% compounded annually thereafter.

Tier2 employees (those hired on or after January 1,2011) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual
retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the police offrcer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the
last 120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Police officers' salary for pension purposes is
capped at $ I 06,800, plus the lesser of % of the annual change in the Consumer Price
Index or 3.00% compounded. The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50Yo of
such salary lor each additional year ofservice over 20 years up to 30 years to a
maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at

or afler age 50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., Yzo/o for each month under 55).
The monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police offìcer shall be increased annually at age 60
on the January Itt after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the
pension starting date, whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually,
each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3.00o/o or lz of the change in the

Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.

Employees are required by ILCS to contribute 9.91o/o of their base salary to the
Police Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20
years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interest. The Village is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to finance the plan and the administrative costs as actuarially determined
by an enrolled actuary. Effective January l,20ll, the Village has untilthe year
2040 to fund 90% of the past service cost for the Police Pension Plan. For the year
ended April 30, 2012,the Village's contribution was37.40o/o of covered payroll.
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9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefìghters' Pension Plan

Fire sworn personnel are covered by the Firefighters' Pension Plan. Although this is
a single-employer pension plan, the defined benefits and employee and employer

contribution levels are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 514-l) and

may be amended only by the lllinois legislature. The Village accounts for the

Firefighters' Pension Plan as a pension trust fund. At April 30,2011, the

Firefighters' Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not
yet receiving them

Current employees
Vested
Nonvested

27

l0
9

TOTAL 46

The Firefighters' Pension Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of
benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Tier I employees (those hired prior
to January I , 20 I l) attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of
creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one-

half of the salary attached to the rank held at the date of retirement. The annual

benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such salary for each additional year of service

over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum of 75.000/o of such salary. Employees

with at least ten years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire atorafter
age 60 and receive a reduced benefit. The monthly benefit of a covered employee
who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1, 1977 shall be increased

annually, following the first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon

reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3.00% of the original pension and 3.00%

compounded annually thereafter.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAI- STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

a. Plan Descriptions (Continued)

Firefi ghters' Pension Plan (Continued)

Tier2 employees (those hired on or after January l,20ll) attaining the age of 55 or
older with ten or more years of creditable service are entitled to receive an annual

retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the firefighter during the 96 consecutive months of service within the last

120 months of service in which the total salary was the highest by the number of
months of service in that period. Firefighters'salary for pension purposes is capped

at $ 106,800, plus the lesser of '/z of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index
or 3.00% compounded. The annual benefìt shall be increased by 2.50% of such

salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years to a maximum
of 75.00o/o of such salary. Employees with at least ten years may retire at or after age

50 and receive a reduced benefit (i.e., Vzo/o for each month under 55). The monthly
benefît of a Tier 2 firefìghter shall be increased annually at age 60 on the January l't
after the firefighter retires, or the fìrst anniversary of the pension stafting date,

whichever is later. Noncompounding increases occur annually, each January

thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3.00o/o or % of the change in the Consumer
Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.455Yo of their base salary to the

Firefighters' Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less

than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded
without accumulated interest. The Village is required to fìnance the plan and the

administrative costs as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective
January l,20ll,theVillagehasuntiltheyear2040to fund90%ofthepastservices
costs for the Firefighters' Pension Plan. For the year ended April 30, 2012,the
Village's contribution was 53.84% of covered payroll.

b. Summary of Signifìcant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting

The fìnancial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employee and employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in
which the employee services are performed. Benefits and refunds of the plans are

recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Investment income is recognized as earned.

Gains and losses on sales and exchanges of fixed income securities are recognized on

the transaction date.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLTNOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

b. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters (Continued)

Signifi cant Investments

There are no significant investments (other than U.S. Government guaranteed

obligations) in any one organization that represent 5.00% or more of plan net assets

for either the Police or Firefighters' Pension Plans. Information for the IMRF is not
available.

Plan Organization Amount

Police Pension

Plan

Transamerica
Met Life
ING Golden Select
Nationwide
Pacific Life Insurance
Manulife Financial
Kemper Scudder

$ 1,409,782
955,661

1,836,312
683,214

1,607,093
845,563

9,894

g 7,347,519

Orsanization Amount

Firefighters' Pension

$5 765

Administrative Costs

Administrative costs for both the Police and Firefighters' Pension Plans are financed
primarily through investment earnings.

ING Golden Select
Pacific Life Insurance
Nationwide
Transamerica
Putnam Allstate Advisor
Met Life Bullet

s 1,792,767
1,199,536

433,720
967,728
762,283
478.731
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

c.

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Amortization method

Amortization period

Signi ficant actuarial assumptions
a) Rate ofretum on

present and future assets

b) Projected salary increase -
attributable to inflation

c) Additionalprojected
Salary increases -
seniority/merit

d) Postretirementbenefit
increases

Annual Pension Costs

Employer contributions have been determined as follows:

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Sheriffls Law
Enforcement

Personnel
Police

Pension
Firefighters'

Pension

December 3 l,
2009

Entry-age
Normal

5 Year
Smoothed

Market

Level
Percentage of

Payroll,
Closed

30 Years,
Open

7.50%
Compounded

Annually

4.00%
Compounded

Annually

December 31,
2009

Entry-age
Normal

5 Year
Smoothed

Market

Level
Percentage of

Payroll,
Closed

30 Years,
Open

7.50%
Compounded

Annually

4.00o/o

Compounded
Annually

April30,
20lt

Entry-age
Normal

Level
Percentage of

Payroll,
Closed

30 Years,
Closed

7.0%
Compounded

Annually

3.000/o

Compounded
Annually

2.00Yo

3.00%

April30,
20n

Entry-age
Normal

Level
Percentage of

Payroll,
Closed

30 Years,
Closed

7.0%
Compounded

Annually

3.00%
Compounded

Annually

2.00%

3.00o/o

Market Value Market Value

. Ùo/oto l0o/o .40%oto l0Yo

3.00% 3.00%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

c. Annual Pension Costs (Continued)

Trend Information

Trend information gives an indication of the progress in accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due.

For
Fiscal
Year

Illinois
Municipal
Retirement

Sheriffs Law
Enforcement

Personnel

Annual pension cost
(APC)

Employer contributions

Percentage of APC contributed

NPO (asset)

Annual pension cost
(APc)

Employer contributions

Percentage of APC contributed

2010
201 I

20t2

2010
20lt
20t2

17,026
18,797
19,005

2010
20n
20t2

2010
20n
2012

s 422,810 S

555,736
564,406

s 422,810 $
452,152
503,448

r00.00%
81.36%
89.20%

$
t43A6s
204,423

Police
Pension

17,026
18,797
19,005

r00.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Firefighters'
Pension

$

For
Fiscal
Year

20r0
20lt
20t2

20t0
20n
2012

s 563,847 $
812,318
774,579

2010
20tl
2012

8 564,934 $
822,408
789,262

99.81%
98.77%
98.14%

s (74,s98) $
(64,900)
(50,217)

593,567
773,527
794,693

587,972
760,590
773,196

99.06%
98.33%
97.29%

(5,389)
13,036
34,533

NPO (asset)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

c. Annual Pension Costs (Continued)

Net Pension Obligation

The Village's annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Police and

Firefighters' Pension Funds for the year ended April 30, 2012were as follows:

lllinois
Municipal

Retirement*
Police

Pension
Firefighters'

Pension

Annual required contributions
Interest on net pension obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual pension cost
Contributions made

Decrease in net pension obligation (asset)
Net pension obligation (asset), beginning ofyear

NET PENSION OBLIGATION (ASSET),
END OF YEAR

$ 561,337 $
t0,760
(7,69t\

790,945 $
(4,543)
2.860

794,3ss
913

i574\

564,406
503,448

789,262
774.579

794,693
773.196

60,958
t43,46s

14,683
64.900)

2t,497
13.036

s 204,423 $ 17) $ 34.s33

* A portion of the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund net pension obligation is

allocated to the LaGrange Public Library.

In an effort to retain retirement costs, beginning in 2010, IMRF offered members an

opportunity to phase-in contribution rate increases. The phase-in plan provides
municipalities the flexibility to moderate the significant increases in the employer
contribution rate while maintaining the commitment to fully fund the pension plan

over a reasonable time period. The Village is participating in the phase-in funding
option, resulting in a temporary NPO.

The funded status and funding progress of the plans as of Decembet 31,201 I for
IMRF and April 30,201 I for Police and Firefighters' Pension Funds were as

follows:

lllinois
Municipal
Retirement

Sheriff s Law
Enforcement

Personnel
Police

Pension
Firefighters'

Pension

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value ofplan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL)

Funded ratio (actuarial value ofplan
assets/AAL)

Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered

payroll

$ 13,061,674 $
9,262,764

3,798,910

70.92o/o
4,259,317 $

89.19o/o

-45-

$ 26,610,209
15,543,656

I I,066,553

58.41o/o

s 2,17t,946

509.52o/o

$ 19,504,709
9,050,478

10,454,23t

46.40o/o

$ 1,412,8 l9

740.960/o

$

295,413
228,323

67,090

77.29o/o
l2l,46l

55.24o/o



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

c. Annual Pension Costs (Continued)

Net Pension Obligation (Continued)

Police
Pension

See the schedules of funding progress in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to financial statements for additional information
related to the funded status of the plans.

d. Summary Financial Statements

Schedule of Net Assets as of April 30,2012.

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

U.S. Government and agency
securities

Insurance contracts
Equities
Corporate bonds
Municipalbonds

Receivables
Accrued interest

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to general fund

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Firefighters'
Pension Total

$ 495,850 s 168,142 $ 663,992

2,779,161
7,347,519
3,564,351
1,076,603

68,490

621,690
5,634,765
2,127,110

365,982
21,013

3,400,851
12,982,284
5,691,461
1,442,585

89,503

33,721 8,253 41,974

15.365,695 8,946.955 24.312.650

106,527 88.209 194.736

106,527 88,209 194,736

$ I 5,259, 168 $ 8,858.746 $ 24.117.914
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

d. Summary Financial Statements (Continued)

Schedule of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended April 30, 2012.

Police Firefighters'
Pension Pension Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer
Employee
Miscellaneous

$ 774,579 S

210,126
7l

773,196 $
138,777

l14

1,547,775
348,903

185

Total contributions

Investment Income
Net appreciation in fair value of

investments
Interest income
Less investment expense

Net investment income

Total additions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Administrative expenses
Miscellaneous

Totaldeductions

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST
FOR PENSION BENEFITS

May I

April 3l

984,776 912,087 1,896,863

89,799
154,948
(51,437\

43,919
57,438

Q8.206)

133,098
212,386
09,643\

192,690 73.1 5 1 265.84t

1,177,466 985W

1,451,251
2,000
8,702

1,165,982 2,617,233
2,000 4,000
8,987 17,689

t.461.953 l. 176.969 2.638.922

(284,487) (191,731) (476,218)

15,543,655 77 24.594.132

$ 15,259,168 $ 8,885.746 $ 24.117.914
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

IO. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

a. Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Village provides
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single-
employer defined benefit plan (the Plan). The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions are governed by the Village and can be

amended by the Village through its personnel manual and union contracts. The Plan
is not accounted for as a trust fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to
account for the Plan. The Plan does not issue a separate report. The activity of the
Plan is reported in the Village's governmental and business-type activities.

b. Benefits Provided

The Village provides pre and post-Medicare postretirement health insurance to
retirees, their spouses and dependents (enrolled at time of employee's retirement).
To be eligible for benefits, the employee must qualify for retirement under one of the
Village's three retirement plans. The retirees pay the blended premium. Upon a

retiree becoming eligible for Medicare, the amount payable under the Village's
health plan will be reduced by the amount payable under Medicare for those
expenses that are covered under both.

c. Membership

At April 30,2012, membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving
benefits

Terminated employees entitled
to benefits but not yet receiving them

Active employees - vested
Active employees - nonvested

TOTAL

r0

62
34

r06

Participating employers

d. Funding Policy

The Village is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of
benefits that will become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not
contribute to the plan until retirement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. OTHERPOSTEMPLOYMENTBENEFITS (Continued)

e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village first had an actuarial valuation performed for the Plan as of May 1,2009
to determine the funded status of the Plan as of that date as well as the employer's
annual required contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012.
Because the Village has fewer than 200 participants, a valuation is performed every
three years in accordance with GAAP. The Village's annual OPEB cost, the
percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for 2012 andthe two preceding years was as follows:

Fiscal
Year

Ended

Annual
OPEB
Cost

Employer
Contributions

Percentage of
Annual OPEB

Cost
Contributed

Net OPEB
Obligation

2010
201t
20t2

$ 45,363 $
45,835
46,318

16,863

16,863
16,863

37.20% s
36.80%
36.40%

57,064
86,037

115,492

'fhe net OPEB obligation as of April 30,2012 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

AnnualOPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

$ 44,884
4,302

(2,868)

46,3 t8
16,863

29,455
86,037

NET OPEB OBLIGATION, END OF YEAR $ I 15,492

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the Plan as of April 30,

2012 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

$ 835,685

$

835,685
0%

7,133,744
11.71%
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

See the schedules of funding progress in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to fìnancial statements for additional information
related to the funded status of the plan.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported

amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the

future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the

healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan

and the annual required contributions of the ernployer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are

made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents

multi-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is

increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial methods and assumptions - projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each

valuation and the historicalpattern of sharing of benefìt costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used

include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the April 30,2012 actuarial valuation, the entry-age normal actuarial cost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment rate of return of 5.0%o,

projected salary increases of 5.0% and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0%
with an ultimate healthcare inflation rate of 6.00/o. Both rates include a3.0o/o

inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Village
has not advance funded its obligation. The Plan's unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open

basis. The remaining amor-tization period at April 30,2012 was 30 years.

II. SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

The Village will be issuing General Obligation Alternate Revenue Bonds for Water
System Improvements. The Village will sell revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed

$2,200,000 with a 2}-year life with interest in August 2012.

50-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOTS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. COMPONENT UNI'| . LA GRANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY

a. Financial Information

Separate financial statements for the Library are not issued.

b. Deposits

In accordance with the Library's investment policy, the Library's monetary assets

may be placed in all instruments permitted by the lllinois Public Funds Investment
Act. This act permits deposits and investments in insured commercial banks, savings
and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, insured
credit union shares, money market mutual funds with portfolios of securities issued
or guaranteed by the united States or agreements to repurchase these same

obligations, repurchase agreements, shoft-term commercial paper rated within the
three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services and Illinois
Funds.

c Library Investments

In accordance with its investment policy, the Library limits its exposure to interest
rate risk by structuring the portfolio to provide liquidity for operating funds and
maximizing yields for funds not needed within a three-month period by utilizing
lllinois Funds.

The Library limits its exposure to credit risk, the risk that the issuer of a debt security
will not pay its par value upon maturity, by primarily investing in Illinois Funds.
Illinois Funds is rated AAA by Standard and Poor's.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterpafty to the investment, the Library will not be able to recover the value of its
investments that are in possession of an outside party. To limit its exposure, the
Library's investment policy requires all security transactions that are exposed to
custodial credit risk to be processed on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis with
the underlying investments held by a third party acting as the Library's agent
separate from where the investment was purchased or by the trust department of the
bank where purchased, in the Library's name. Illinois Funds and the money market
mutual fund are not subject to custodial credit risk.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. COMPONENT UNIT - LA GRANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY (Continued)

d. Receivables

e

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated

Land and land improvements
Total capital assets not being depreciated

$ 94,418 $ $

94,418

Property taxes for 201 I attach as an enforceable lien on January l,20ll on property
values assessed as of the same date. Taxes are levied by December of the
subsequent fiscal year (by passage of a Tax Levy Ordinance). Tax bills are prepared

by the County and issued on or about February 1,2012 and July 1,2012 and are

payable in two installments, on or about March 1,2012 and September 1,2012. The
County collects such taxes and remits them periodically. The allowance for
uncollectible taxes has been stated at three percent ofthe tax levy and 5%o ofthe debt

service levy to reflect actual collection experience.

The2012 tax levy, which attached as an enforceable lien on propefty as ofJanuary l,
2012,has not been recorded as a receivable as of April 30,2012, as the tax has not
yet been levied by the Village and will not be levied until December 2012 and,
therefore, the levy is not measurable at April 30,2012.

Capital Assets

The following is a summary of the capital asset activity for the year ended April 30,

2012:

Ending
Balances

$ 94,418
94.4t8

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

8,823,555
244,223

47,000

8,823,555
244,223

47,000

9,n4,778 9.n4,778

884, I 52
48,844
19,244

221,487 - 1,105,639
l2,2ll - 61,055
3,705 - 22,949

952,240 237,403 I ,l 89,643

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 8,162,538 (237,403) - 7,925,135

$8,256,956 g (237,403) $ $8,019,553
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. COMPONENT UNIT - LA GRANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY (Continued)

e. CapitalAssets(Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to fu nctions/programs of the govemmental activities
as follows:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Culture and recreation $ 237,403

TOTAL DEPRECIATION EXPENSE - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES S 237.403

f. Long-Term Debt

l) Bonds payable at April 30,2012 are comprised of the following:

General Oblisation Bonds

$9,320,000 2004 GeneralObligation Library Bonds, due in annual
installments of $335,000 to $655,000 from January l,2003 to
December 1,2024, interest from 3.0% to 4.3%o. While a general
obligation of the Village, the principal and interest is to be repaid
with the Library's tax levy. $ 6,805 ,000

2) Debt Service to Maturity

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal
Year

Ceneral Obligation
Library Bonds

Principal Interest

2013
20t4
20ts
2016
2017
20 r8
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$ 4t0,000 s 274,055
430,000 256,630
445,000 238,355
465,000 222,780
480,000 206,040
495,000 188,280
515,000 169,470
535,000 149,385
560,000 127,985
580,000 t 05,025
605,000 80,665
630,000 55,255
655,000 28,165

TOTAL
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. COMPONENT UNIT - LA GRANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY (Continued)

f. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

3) Changes in Long-Term Debt

Changes in long-term debt during the year ended April 30, 2012 is as follows:

Balances
May I Additions Deletions

Balances
April30

Current
Portion

General obl igation bonds

Net pension obligation -
IMRF

Unamortized premium

Compensated absences

TOTAL

$ 7,200,000 $ $ 395,000 $ 6,805,000 $ 410,000

28,693

53,557

48.563

12,192

3,826

48.563

40,885

49,731

50.76350.763 50.763

$ 7,330,813 $ 62,955 $ 447.389 $ 6.946.379 $ 460,763

g. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The Village first had an actuarial valuation performed for the Plan as of May 1,2009
to determine the funded status of the Plan as of that date as well as the employer's
annual required contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2012. The
Library's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
Plan and the net OPEB obligation for 2012 was as follows:

Fiscal
Year

Ended

Annual
OPEB
Cost

Employer
Contributions

Percentage of
Annual OPEB

Cost
Contributed

Net OPEB
Obligation

(Asset)

$April 30,
April30,
April 30,

2010
20n
2012

2,418 $
2,359
2,398

124.650/o $
t27.76%
l25.7Yo

788)

2,398
aJ 0r4

(6r6)
( I ,788)

s (2,404)

3,014
3,014
3,014

(
(

,1 33)

(2,404

2,427
(8e)
60

)

The net OPEB obligation as of April 30,2012 was calculated as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

$

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Decrease in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

NET OPEB OBLIGATION (ASSET), END OF YEAR
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12. COMPONENT UNIT - LA GRANGE PUBLIC LIBRARY (Continued)

g. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress: The funded status of the Plan as of April 30,
2012 was as follows:

$

$

47,665Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL)
Covered payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

47,665
-%

-o/o

See the schedules of funding progress in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to fìnancial statements for additional information
related to the funded status of the plan.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are

made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to financial statements, presents

multi-year trend infbrmation that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is

increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefìts.

Actuarial methods and assumptions - projections of benefits for financial reporting
purposes are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer
and plan members) and include the types of benefìts provided at the time of each

valuation and the historical pattem of sharing of benefit costs between the employer
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used

include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

In the May 1,2012 actuarialvaluation, the entry-age normalactuarialcost method
was used. The actuarial assumptions included an investment rate of return of 5.0%,
projected salary increases of 5.0o/o and an initial healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0%
with an ultimate healthcare inflation rate of 6.0Yo. Both rates include a3.ÙYo

inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Village
has not advance funded its obligation. The Plan's unfunded actuarial accrued
liability is being amoftized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period at April 30,2012 was 30 years.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE. BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original
Budget

Final
Budset Actual

REVENUES
Taxes

Property
Sales

Other
Intergovernmental
Fines, licenses and permits
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFTCTENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

orHER FTNANCTNC SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

ETSB Fund
Debt Service Fund

Transfers (out)
Asset Forfeiture
Capital Projects Fund
Parking Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

12,059,793 12,059,793 12,047,403

$ 6,125,020
1,7 51,479
1,314,002
1,385,228
1,090,965

75,000
328,100

$ 6,125,020 $

1,751,479
1,314,002
1,385,228
1,090,965

75,000
328, I 00

5,938,932
1,809,302
1,254,094
1,414,150
1,062,973

27,285
540,667

2,072,598
7,965,669
1,727,477

2,097,598
7,900,669
1,727,477

2,078,237
7,785,698
1,699,774

11,665,744 11,725,744 11,552,709

394,049 334,049 494,694

50,000
160,000

(700,000)
(100,000)

50,000
160,000

(700,000)
(100,000)

50,000
t 60,000

(262,5t9)
(700,000)
(100,000)

(590,000) (590,000) (852,519)

$ (195,951) S (255,951) (357,825)

7,007,518

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original
Budget

Final
Budeet Actual

REVENUES
Taxes

State motor fueltax
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
None

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers (out)

Capital Projects Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

409,000 409,000 456,170

409.000 409.000 456.170

0,525,203). (1,s2s.203\ (800.622\

(1,525,203) (1,525.203\ ß00,622\

$ (l,l16,203\ $ ( l.l 16.203) (344,452)

1,829,575

$ 1,48 5.123

$ 405,000
4,000

$ 405,000 $

4.000
45 1,901

4,269

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30,2012

Schedule of Funding Progress

Calendar
Year

(r)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entrv-Aee

(3)
Funded

Ratio

(4)
Unfunded

(Overfunded)
AAL

(UAAL)
(oAAL)
t2) - lr)

(s)
Covered
Pavroll

UAAL
(oAAL)

¿rs a

Percentage
ofCovered

Payroll
ø\ /(5\0\/

2010

20n

Schedule of Employer Contributions

2006

2007

2008

2009

Fiscal
Year

$ 9,543,307

10,446,779

7,189,854

8,190,145

8,552,699

9,262,764

$ 9,853,367

I l,l3 1,041

10,764,452

12,034,081

12,248,866

13,061,674

96.85% S 310,060

93.85% 684,262

66.790/o 3,574,598

68.06% 3,843,936

69.82% 3,696,167

70.92% 3,798,910

$ 3,330,775

3,',Ì04,026

3,949,910

4,220,084

4,186,745

4,259,317

93r%

18.47%

9050%

91.09%

88.28%

89.19o/o

Percentage

Contributed
Employer

Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARc)

2007$345,735$345,735

2008 353,6t4 353,614

2009 372,465 372,465

2010 422,810 422,810

20n* 452,152 554,883

2012* 503,448 561,337

* The Village has elected to participate in IMRF's optional phase-in plan.

(See independent auditoy's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

SHERIFF'S LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April30,20l2

Schedule of Funding Progress

Calendar
Year

(l)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entry-Age

(3)
Funded

Ratio

(4)
Unfunded

(Overfunded)
AAL

(UAAL)
(oAAL)
(2) - fl)

(s)
Covered
Payroll

UAAL
(oAAL)

asa
Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) / (s)(t) /

2008

2009

2010

20n

Schedule of Employer Contributions

2007

Fiscal
Year

$ I 15,296 $

14t,527

163,287

194,523

228,323

t26,503

176,021

219,347

261,895

295,413

9t.14% $

80.40%

74.44%

74.280/o

77.29%

n,207 $

34,494

56,060

67,372

67,090

10.20o/o

30.30%

46.20o/o

53.48%

55.24o/o

Percentage

Contributed

109,914

I13,828

121,334

125,974

l2l,46l

2007

2008

2009

2010

20t I

$

Employer
Contributions

15,3 I I

17,023

t4,618

17,026

18,797

19,005

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARc)

$ 15,31 I

17,023

14,618

17,026

18,797

19,005

100.00%

100.00%

r00.00%

100.00%

100.00%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

POLICE PENSION FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April30,2012

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
April30,

(t)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entry-Age

(3)
Funded
Ratio

(t) t (2)

(4)
Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
(2) - (l)

(s)
Covered
Payroll

UAAL
asa

Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) / (s)

2006 $14,973,591 S20,05t,960

2007 15,821,3 l8

15,482,324

12,755,497

14,405,306

15,543,656

20,937,302

2008 21,921,736

2009 23,129,888

2010 23,911,338

20tt 26,610,209

Schedule of Employer Contributions

74.670/o $

75.57o/o

70.63%

55.15%

60.24o/o

58.41%

5,078,369

5,1 I 5,984

6,439,411

10,374,391

9,506,032

I1,066,553

s 1,735,564

1,920,639

2,016,671

2,088,122

2,112,137

2,171,946

292.61%

266.37o/o

319.3l%o

496.83o/o

450.07o/o

509.52%

Percentage

Contributed

99.63%

97.43%

98.69%

99.81o/o

98.61o/o

Fiscal
Year

Employer
Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

2007

2008

2009

20t0

20ll

s 530,333

459,277

482,475

563,847

812,3 l8

774,579

s 532,305

471,380

488,890

564,934

823,760

790,945

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLACE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April30,20l2

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
April30,

(l)
Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entry-Age

(3)
Funded

Ratio
(t) / (2)

(4)
Unfunded

AAL
(UAAL)
(oAAL)
(2) - (l)

(s)
Covered
Payroll

UAAL
asa

Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) / (s)

2006 $ 8,776,758

9,219,172

g,gg4,33l

7,518,844

8,452,039

9,050,478

$ 14,062,301

15,335,206

15,919,958

17,125,131

17,622,336

19,504,709

62.4t% $ 5,285,543

60.12% 6,116,034

56.50% 6,925,627

43,91% 9,606,287

47.96% 9,170,297

46.40% 10,454,231

$ 1,185,3 l8

1,240,965

1,302,909

1,243,750

1,429,539

l,4l2,glg

445.92%

492.88%

s31.55%

77236%

641.94%

739.960/o

Percentage
Contributed

2007

2008

2009

20 r0

20n

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal
Year

Employer
Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

2007

2008

2009

2010

20tl

g 482,634

476,960

536,622

587,972

760,590

773,196

$ 471,556

486,327

542,901

593,567

773,525

794,355

102.35%

98.07%

98.84%

99.06%

98.33%

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April30,2012

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Valuation

Date
April30,

(l)
Actuarial
Value of

Plan
Assets

(2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)

Entry-Age

(3)
Percentage

Funded
(t) /Q)

(4)
Unfunded

(Overfunded)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(2) - (l)

(s)
Annual
Covered
Payroll

(6)
Underfunded
(Overfunded)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

asa
Percentage

ofCovered
Payroll
(4) / (5)

2009 $ - s 50t,973 0.00%$ 501,973 $7,133,744 7.04%

2OIO N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

2OII N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

20t2 - 835,685 0.00% 835,685 7,133,744 ll.7lo/o

N/A - Information is not available as an actuarial valuation was not performed.

Information for prior years is not available as the Village's first actuarial valuation was performed April 30,

2009 and the Village did not have an actuarialvaluation performed as of April30,20l0 orApril30,20l l.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Fiscal
Year

Employer
Contributions

Annual
Required

Contribution
(ARC)

Percentage

Contributed

2009 $ 16,863 8 45,427 37.12%

2010 16,863 44,884 3757%

20tt 16,863 44,884 37.570/o

2012 16,863 72,065 23.400/o

lnformation for prior years is not available as the Village's first actuarial valuation was performed May l,
2009.

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANCE, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

April 30,2012

BUDGETS

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted

for the General, Special Revenueo Debt Service, Capital Projects, Enterprise, Internal Service and

Pension Trust Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

All departments of the Village submit requests for appropriation to the Village Manager so that a

budget may be prepared. The budget is prepared by fund, function and activity and includes
information on the past year, current year estimates and requested appropriations for the next
fiscal year.

The proposed budget is presented to the governing body for review. The governing body holds
public hearings and may add to, subtract from or change appropriations, but may not change the

form of the budget.

The budget may be amended by the governing body. The Village Manager is authorized to
transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any adjustments that

alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the governing body.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. During the year,

four supplementary appropriations were necessary.

The following funds actual expenditures exceeded the fund's appropriations

Fund Appropriations Actual

Asset Forfeiture
General

$$
12,525,744

19,877
12,615,228

-63-



MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund - The chief operating fund of the Village, which accounts for all activities of the
general govemment except for those accounted for in another fund.

Motor Fuel Tax Fund - A special revenue fund established to account for the municipal portion
of motor fuel tax revenues collected and distributed by the State of Illinois, which are restricted
to pay for street improvements, maintenance and repairs.

The Capital Projects Fund - established to account for the costs of various infrastructure
improvements to village property. These costs are financed by transfers from the General and
Motor FuelTax Funds, grants and bond proceeds.

The Debt Service Fund - established to account for resources that are used to repay general long-
term debt obligations.



VILT,AGE OF LA CRANGE, ILLINOIS

GENERAI- FUND
SCI{EDUI,E OF REVENUES AND OTHER I.-INANCINC SOURCES . BUDGEI'ÂND AC'TUAL

For the Year Ended April 30,2012

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

TAXES
Property
Property - road and bridge
Replacement

Sales and local use - NHR
Municipal utility
Simplified telecommunication

Total laxes

TNTERCOVERNMENTAL
Shared income tax
Grants - State of lllinoís
Granls - IDOT - highway rnaintenance

Grants

Total intergovemmental

FINES, I-ICENSES AND PERMITS
Vehicle
Animal
Ëiusiness

Liquor
Elevator inspection fees

Building pennits
Filing/zoning fees

Contractor licensing fees

Fire - plan review fees

Franchise fee - Comcast cable

Sprint antenna lease

Village violation fines

Compliance violation fi nes

Circuit court lines
Pound fees

False alarm fincs
DUI fines

Alarm user fees

Accident reports

I'otal fincs, liccnses an<! pcrrnits

INVES'I'MENT INCOME

MISCELLANEOUS
Auction proceeds

Pistol range fees

Administration refuse credit
Commercial refuse license

Ambulance transport fees

La Grange Road depot - sublet

Miscellaneous

Total miscellaneous

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
'['ranslers in

Emergency'lelephone Systems Board Fund

Debt Service Fund

'Iotal other fìnancing sources (uses)

$ 6,000,69s
124,32s
214,002

|,751,478
s50,000
5s0.000

$ 6,000,695 $

t24,325
214,002

1,751,478
550,000
s50,000

5,8 I 6,ó55
t22,277
240,920

l,809,302
477,806
535.3ó8

9.r90.500 9.190,500 9,002,328

1,248,670

I,100
ó4,500
70,958

1,248,670

I,100
ó4,s00
70,958

t,267,303
I, t00

63,873
I r ,874

t.385.228 1.385.228 1.4t4.t50

245,000
10,000

30,000
3s,000
ó,000

250,000
7,500

48,000
I,000

I 80,000
35,965
90,000
60,000
50,000
2,000
5,000
3,000

r 9,000

245,000
r0,000
30,000
3s,000
6,000

250,000
7,500

48,000
r,000

r 80,000
35,9ó5

90,000
60,000
50,000
2,000
5,000
3,000

19,000

233,458
9,996

30,307
46,750
ó,900

253,089
900

56,633
I,960

208,81 8

35,966
66,285
41,290
41,287

ó50
4,475
2,634

r9,355

r.080.965 t.080,965 t,062,973

75.000 7s.000 27,285

1,000 1,000 768
2,000 2,000

25,000 25,000 43,299
25,000 25,000 30,000

2t5,000 2 t5,000 234,019
3,ó00 3,ó00 2,700

5ó,500 56,500 229,881

328,t00 328,t00 540,6ó7

50,000
I ó0,000

50,000 50,000
tó0,000 160,000

2 I 0,000 2 r 0.000 2 t0.000

s t2269393 $ t226ein $ t22

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLACE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original
Budget

Final
Budget Actual

CENERAL COVERNMENT
Personnel
Supplies and materials
Operations and contractual
Capitaloutlay

Total general government

PUBLIC SAFETY
Personnel
Supplies and materials
Operations and contractual
Capitaloutlay

Total public safety

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS
Personnel

Supplies and materials
Operations and contractual
Capitaloutlay

Total highways and streets

Total expenditures

TRANSFERS
Transfer to Asset Forfeiture Fund
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund
Transfer to Parking Fund

s 1,202,852
38,950

780,776
50,020

s 1,202,852 $
38,950

805,776
s0.020

1,182,589
33,791

823,712
38. l 4s

2,072,598 2,097,598 2,078,237

7,115,61I
98,200

376,202
275,656

7,145,611
98,200

381,202
275,656

7,044,360
I I 1,864

370,688
258,786

7.865.669 7.900.669 7.785.698

960,977
57,000

569,212
140,288

960,977
57,000

569,212
140.288

965,000
66,917

524,239
t32.618

|,727,477 I,727,477 1,688,774

11,665,744 11,725,744 11,552,709

700,000
100,000

700,000
100,000

262,519
700,000
100,000

Total transfers 800,000 800,000 1,062,519

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS S 12,465,744 $ 12,525.744 S 12.615.228

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANCES IN FUND BALANCE. BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Original
Budget

Final
Budset Actual

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

Grant proceeds

Contribution from property owners
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capitaloutlay

Resurfacing
Other

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

General Fund
Motor FuelTax Fund

Transfers (out)
Debt Service Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

1,755,166 1,755,166 634,427

s 1,747,566
600

2,000
5,000

$ 1,747,566 $

600
2,000
5,000

594,694
I,190

t75
38,368

1,341,769
2,244,000

1,341,768
2,244,000

727,551
750,791

3,585,768 3,585.768 1.478.342

( 1,830,602) ( 1,830,602) (843,9 t 5)

700,000
1,525,203

700,000
1,525,203

700,000
800,622

(303,765) (303,765\ (303,765)

1,921,438 1,921,438 1,196,857

$ 90,836 $ 90,836 352,942

533,073

(See independent auditods report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLTNOIS

DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April30,2012

Original
Budget

Final
Budset Actual

REVENUES
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service

Principal
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Capital Projects Fund
Transfers (out)

General Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE TN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE, MAY I

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 30

303,765 303,765 303,765

(303,665) (303,665) (303,687)

303,765 303,765 303,765

060,000) (160"000) 060.000)

143,765 143.765 143.76s

$ (159,900) $ (1s9,900) (159,922)

170,422

$ 10,500

$ 100 $ r00 s 78

100 100 78

235,000
68,765

235,000
68,765

235,000
68,765

(See independent auditor's report.)
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS

Foreign Fire Insurance Tax Fund - A special revenue fund established to account for the
collection of the State Foreign Fire Insurance Tax and related expenditures to provide equipment,
materials and services necessary to support the core functions and essential activities of the Fire
Department.

Emergency Telephone Systems Board (ETSB) Fund - A special revenue fund established to
account for all operations of the E-91I emergency telephone service provided by the Village.

Asset Forfeiture Fund - A special revenue fund established to account for the revenues received
through asset forfeiture programs and the related expenditures.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

April 30,2012

Foreign

Insurance

Emergency
Telephone

Systems
Board

Asset
Forfeiture

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

Fire

Tax

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Other

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

FLIND BALANCES
Restricted for public safety

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

s 47. r 70 $ 178.925 S 2('7.832 S 493.927

$ $ 1,660 $ $ 1,660

5.9775.207

770 1.660 5 .207 7.637

46.400 t77.26s 262-625 486.290

46,400 177,265 262.625 486.290

s 47.170 $ 178.925 s 267.832 S 493.927

$ 47,170 $ t74,925 $

4,000

267,832 $ 489,927

4.000

770

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FTJNDS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Foreign Fire
Insurance Tax

Emergency Telephone
Svstems Board

Budeet

Asset
Forfeiture

$

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ 19,839
277,043

19,607
495

REVENUES
Taxes

Charges for services
Asset forfeiture
Investment income

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public safety

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

oTHER FTNANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in (out)
General Fund

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FL]ND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, MAY I

FUND BALANCES, APRIL 30

Budset Actual Budset Actual

$ 17,000 $ 19,839 $ $
230,000

1.600

277,043

93

t7,275 19.865 231.600 277.t36

29,450 15.896 205.343 I 8l .591

29-450 15.896 205.343 l8l,59l

02^175\ 3-969 26.257 9s-545

rs0.000) (50.000)

ts0-000) (50.000)

$ 02.t75) 3,969 S (23,743) 45,545 $

42,431 t31,720

s 46.400 $ t77.265

(See independent auditor's report.)
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Actual

$

26275

lg,sol
376

l9-983 316.984

19.877 217.364

t9-877 217.364

106 99.620

262.s19 2t2.sl9

262.5t9 212.519

262,625 312,139

t74.l5t

s 262,625 $ 486,290



PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Water Fund - An enterprise fund established to account for all operations of the water utility
servíces provided by the Village.

Parking Fund - An enterprise fund established to account for all operations of village parking lots
and meters.

Sewer Fund - An enterprise fund established to account for all operations of the sewer utility
servíces provided by the Village.

Equipment Replacement Fund - An internal service fund established to account for all vehicle
and equipment replacement activities of the Village.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PROPRIETARY FLINDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

For the Year Ended April 30.2012

Funds

Water
Budset Actual

OPERATING REVENUES
ïVater sales

Sewer fees

Water meter installation
Sewer connection fees

Delinquent penalties

Fire lines
Parking meter collections
Parking decal sales

Parking fìnes

Charges for services
Miscellaneous revenue

Toøl operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services

Supplies and materials
Contractual services
Capital outlay
Other

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

Rrrdoet

$ 3.525,000 $

20,000

¡z,ooo
r r,000

Sewer
Budset Actual

$

4¡0,000

6,000

Internal Service

Budset Actual

96r.900 853,915

853.915

3.32r,6r0 $

38,940

+z,iog
12,370

$$$$
373,883

5,600

5r5,r l7 5t5,lt7
r00 2 916 34.970

3.593.100 3.418.705 7l 1.000 702.431 4ló,000 379,483 515.117 515,r r7

1,237,576
30,527

I ,853, r 56
9r,893

r00,000
446,000
r65,000

685,999
14,500
92,416

293,408

8 r,678
44t,255
144,528

687,878
n,937
47,769

233,004
900

279,542
6,500

37,u6
87,247

286,077
7,186

33,646
79,744

1,279,228
30,300

t,897,326
2,388,555

9.700

5.605, r09 3,2

(2.012.009) I

995

t9.t47 r.086.323

(375.323\

981.488 4 r 0,405 406,653 961,900

(279-057\ 5.595 Q7.170\ (446,783\ (338,798)
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Entemrise Funds Intemal Service

Water Parking Sewer Equipment Replacement

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual

1,628 $ 16,000 $ 4,630 $ r,400 $ 591 $ 33.000 $
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income
Bond proceeds

Gain on sale of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS

TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.
BUDGETARY BASIS

ADJUSTMENTS TO GAAP BASIS
Depreciation
Capital assets capitalized

Total adjustnrents to GAAP basis

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, MAY I

NET ASSETS, APRIL 30

t ?o¿ n00 t-628

29t,991 201,18ó

$ 29 r,991

s 4,000 $

2,300,000

r6.000

(359,323)

r00,000

4 670

(274,427)

100,000

(204,843)
214.096

9.253

(r65,r74)

t0-841-587

591

(s7,242)
6.895

(50.347)

(76,926)

2-430-579

s 2.353.653

33.000

12,153

137-573

149.726

(st2,547\
s95.529

82.982

(r06,090)

5.002.8 r 0

r.400

6,995 (26,579) (4t3,783) (189,072)

201.186 s 1259.323) fi74-427t $ 6.995 Q6.579\ $ (413.783) (189,072\

(396,030)
6,895

(389. r 35)

( r 87,e4e)

8.641.63 r

$ 8.453.682 $ 10.676.413

(See independent auditor's report.)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Police Pension Fund - A pension trust fund established to account for pensions paid for police
officers.

Firefighters' Pension Fund - A pension trust fund established to account for pensions paid for
firefighters.

Special Assessment #269 Fund - An agency fund established to account for bonds issued and the
collection of special assessments to service these bonds, which are used to pay for the benefited
owner's portion of costs associated with the construction of street improvements.

Special Assessment #270 Fund - An agency fund established to account for bonds issued and the
collection of special assessments to service these bonds, which are used to pay for the benefited
owner's portion of costs associated with the construction of street improvements.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLTNOIS

FIDUCIARY FTINDS

COMBINTNG STATEMENT OFNET ASSETS

April30,20l2

Pension Trust
Asencv

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at fair value

U.S. Government and agency

securities
Insurance contracts
Stocks
Corporate bonds
Municipalbonds

Receivables
Assessments

Accrued interest

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Due to General Fund

Due to bondholders
Due to properly owners

Total liabilities

33,721 8.2s3 41,974

t5,36s,69s 8.946.955 24.312.650 49.517

106,527 88,209 194,736 29,331
20,186

106.527 88.209 194.736 49.5t7

$ 15.259.168 $ 8.858.746 $ 24,n7,914 $

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Total
Asencv

2

49,516 2,083 51,599

2.084 5 r.60 r

29,331
22,269

I

$ 495,850 $ 168,142 $ 663,992 $ l$ 1$

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension

621,690
5,634,765
2,127,ll0

365,982
21,013

Total
Pension Trust

Special
Assessment

#269

Special
Assessment

#270

2,779,161
7,347,519
3,564,351
1,076,603

68,490

3,400,851
12,982,284
5,691,461
1,442,585

89,503

2,083
I

NET ASSETS $

2.084

$

5 t,60r



VILLAGE OF LA CRANGE,ILLINOIS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended April 30,2012

Police
Pension

Firefighters'
Pension Total

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer
Employee
Other

Total contributions

Investment income
Net appreciation in fair value

of investments
Interest

Total investment income

Less investment expense

Net investment income

Totaladditions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Administrative expenses

Miscellaneous

Total deductions

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)

NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR
PENSION BENEFITS

May I

April30

984,776 9t2.087 r.896.863

$ 774,579 $
210,t26

7l

773,196 $
138,777

lt4

1,547,77 5

348,903
185

89,179
t54,948

43,919
57.438

133,098

212.386

244,127 10t,357 345,484

(51,437) (28,206) (79,643)

192,690 73.1 5 1 265.84t

1,177,466 985,238 2,162,704

1,451,251
2,000
8,702

1,165,982
2,000
8,987

2,617,233
4,000

17,689

I,461,953 l,176.969 2.638"922

(284,487) (191,731) (476,218)

15,543,655 9,050,477 24,594,132

$ 15,259,168 $ 8,85

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

AGENCY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

For the Year Ended April 30, 2012

Special Assessment #269

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Assessments receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to General Fund
Due to bondholders

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Special Assessment #270

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Assessments receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to bondholders
Due to properly owners

TOTAL LIABILITIES

All Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments
Assessments receivable

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Due to General Fund
Due to bondholders
Due to property owners

TOTAL LIABILITIES

l$
49.516

$

$ s $

s 2.084 S s

$ 2,083 $
I

$

s 2$
51.599

$

s sr,60r s

$ 29,331 $
22,269

I

$

s s l.60l s s

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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s 49.517 $ - $ - $ 49.sr

$ 29,33t $
20. I 86

$ $ 29,331
20. I 86

$ $ I
49.5t6

$ 49,s17 $ - $ - $ 49.517

I

2,083
I

2,083
$

s 20ß4

$ 2,083

$ 2.084$ - $ - $ 2.084

$ 2

5l-599

- s - $ 51,é01

$ 29,331
22,269

I

s 5 t.60t



COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY



VILLACE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

COMPONENT UNIT - LIBRARY
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND BALANCE SHEET

April 30,2012

Balance
Sheet

Statement

Adjustments of Net Assets

ASSETS

Cash
Receivables

Property taxes
Prepaid items
Deferred bond issuance costs
Net other postemployment benefit asset

Capital assets

Not being depreciated
Being depreciated

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable

Unearned/deferred property taxes

Due within one year
Bonds payable

Compensated absences payable

Due in more than one year
Net pension obligation - IMRF
Bonds payable

Unamortized bond premium

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCENET ASSETS
Net assets

Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt

Nonspendable for prepaid items

Unassigned fund balance/net assets

Total fund balance/net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE/I{ET A SSETS

$ 3,439,677 $

1,312,032
5,096

s 3,439,677

1,312,032
5,096

I15,477
2,404

n5,477
2,404

94,418
7,925,t35

94,418
7,925,135

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS

$ 4.756.805 $ 8.137.434 $ t2.894.239

$ 4,1 13 $

26,602
$ 4,1 l3

26,602
I 14,190

2,691,745
I 14,190

2,691,745

410,000
50,763

40,985

6,395,000

410,000
50,763

40,885

6,395,000
49-73249-732

2,722,460 7,060,570 9,783,030

1,t64,821
(5,096)

1,164,821

5,096
2.029.249 r ) 1.946.388

2,034,345 1,076,864 3,111,209

$ 4.7s6.80s $ 8.r

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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VILLACE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

COMPONENT UNIT . LIBRARY
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Year Ended April 30, 201 2

Originaland
Final

Budset Actual
Statement

Adiustments ofActivities

REVENUES
Taxes

Property taxes - current
Replacement taxes

Fines and forfeits
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Donations
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES
Culture and recreation
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures/expenses

NET CHANGE IN FUND
BALANCENET ASSETS

FUND BALANCENET ASSETS, MAY I

FUND BALANCENET ASSETS, APRIL 30

2,728.612 2,7t3,749 2.713.749

249,242
(395,000)

2,128,132

290.842

2,728,612 2,564,732 (145,758) 2,418,974

$ 2,655,989
l6,l l6
31,000
10,000

$ 2,619,396 $
18,767

35,303
6,670

$ 2,619,396
19,767

35,303
6,670

5,000
r 0.s07

3,391
30,222

3,391

30.222

2,042,770
395,000
290,842

1,878,890
395,000
290,842

$ 149,017

r "885.328

145,758

931.106

294,775

2.8t6.434

$ 2,034,345 $ 1,076,864 $ 3,1 I1,209

(See independent auditor's report.)
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SUPPLEMENTAL DATA



VILLAGE OF LA CRANGE, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE IN FORCE

April 30,2012

Insured
Description
ofCoverage

Limits
ofCoveraee

Expiration Date
of Policy

Village of
La Crange

Village of
La Grange
Public Library Property - building

Property - contents
Automobile
General liability

General Liability
-Professional Liabi lity
-Police Professional
-Employee Benefìts
-Abuse/Molestation

Auto Liability
-Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist

Public Offi cials L,iability
-Wrongful Acts
-Employment Practices

Workers' Compensation
-Employer's Liability

Firs[ Party Property - All Risk
Crime

-Employee Theft
-Forgery, Alteration and Counterfeit Curency
-Credit Card Forgery
-Computer Fraud
-Non-Faith ful Performance

Public Officials Bonds

s10,000,000

$10,000,000
$500,000
$l0,ooo,ooo

Statutory

$2,500,000
$250,000,000

$5,000,000
$5,000,000
$s,000,000
$5,000,000
$2,000,000
Statutory

$8,423,340
s5,770,170
$1,000,000
$l,000,000 per occurrence

$2,000,000 aggregate

t2t3ut2

t2t3t/12

t2t3Ut2

t2l3vt2

t2l3t/t2
t2t3vt2

t2t3Ut2

4/30t2012
4t30t2012
4t30/20t2
4t30/20t2
4/30t2012

4/30t2012
4130/2012

4130/2012
4t30t2012
4130120t2

Crime
Employee dishonesty
Forgery or alteration
Theft, disappearance and

destruction
Workers' compensation
Boiler and machinery

$50,000
$50,000

st0,000
$500,000
s1,000,0000

(See independent auditor's report.)
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

LONG-TERM DEBT REQUIREMENTS
2OO5 ALTERNATE REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS

April30,2012

Date of Issue

Date of Maturity
Authorized Issue

Denomination of Bonds
Interest Rates

Interest Dates
Principal Maturity Date
Payable at

June 1,2006
December 1,2017
$ 2,785,000
$ 5,000

3.20%-3.90%
June I and December I
December I
First National Bank of La Grange

FUTURE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST REQUIREMENTS

Tax Lew Interest Due onTax
Levy
Year TotalPrincipal Interest June I Amount December I Amount

20lt
20t2
20t3
2014
20t5
2016

$

s 1,595,000 s 220,480 $ 1,815,480

240,000 $
250,000
260,000
270,000
280,000
295,000

60,305 $

51,545
42,295
32,545
22,285
I 1.505

300,305
30 t,545
302,295
302,545
302,285
306.505

20t2
20t3
2014
20ts
20t6
20t7

$ 30,153
25,773
21,148
16,2'73

I1,143
5,753

20t2
2013
2014
20l s
20t6
20t7

$ 30,152
25,772
21,147
16,272

I I ,142
5,752

s I 10,243 $ I 10,237

(See independent auditor's report.)
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Village's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as

a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and
required supplementary information displays about the Village's overall financial health.

Contents Page(s)

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the Village's financial performance and well-being have been changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village's
most significant local revenue source, the propefty tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the Village's current levels of outstanding debt and the
Village's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic lnformation
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the Village's fìnancial
activities take place.

Operating Information
'lhese schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the Village's financial report relates to
the services the Village provides and the activities it performs.

79-86

87-92

93-97

98-99

I 00-l 02

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The Village implemented GASB
Statement No. 34 in2004; schedules presenting government-wide information include
information beginning in that year.



VILLAGE OF LA GRANCE, ILLINOIS

NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT

Last Nine Fiscal Years

2006 2007Fiscal Year

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Invested in capital assets

net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL COVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Invested in capital assets

net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Invested in capital æsets

net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

$ r2,050,626 $ r2.950,634

1 s?4 257 2.977 .233

$ 15.574.883 g t5.927.867

g 20,4t7,n7 $ 19,942,728

3.730.552 3.691-422

$ 20,093,344 $ 19.588,533 $ 19,5ó1,148

1,204.708 2.977.756 2.352.649

s2s.3s4_782 S28.027.048 $25.599.045 528.774.232 $31.782.708 $36.829.845 534.704.873 $35.256.815 #REF!

2004

$ r5,307,433
4,376,702
s.670.647

$ 27,358,059
4.376,702
9.194.904

2005

$ t5,ó56,94r
2,690,783
I 679 724

s 28,607,575
2,690,783

t2.656-557

$ 18,930,s07
2,t35,9M
4 512594

$ 20,269,210

3.216.791

s 39,t99,717
2,135,944
7 749 185

$ t9.045.027
2,570,3t5
7- r s8.890

s 39,462,144
2,570,3 r 5

10.889.442

2008

$ r9,493,061
2,t4t,6s0

10.14'ì.997

$ 39,435,789
2,14t,650

t3-839-419

2009

$ r9,623,9s4
2,799,6t4

14.406.277

s 39,7t7,298
2,799,614

r 7-610-985

20t0

s 2t,47t,377
2,03 t,415

I1.202-081

$ 4r.059,910
2,03t,4t5

t4.t79.837

20lt

$ 23,308,688
2,436,668
9-51t-459

$ 42,869,836
2,436,668

l r.864.108

2012

s 26,t59,844
#REF!
9.570.437

$ t9,r30,9r9

2352j29

#REF!
lt 923 266

s 23-486-001 s 24.t47-669 $ 23-634.t50 $ 23.298.052 S 22.566.289 S 21,913,797 S 21,483,748

s 45,290,763

s40.929.665 $43.954.915 $49.085.04ó $52.92t.90t $55.416,858 $ó0,127,897 557,271,162 $57,170,612 #REF!
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2004 200s 2006

EXPENSES
Governmental activities

Ceneral government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Economic development
Interest

Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Parking

TOTAL PRIMARY
GOVERNMENT EXPËNSES

PROCRAM REVENUES
Governmental activities

Charges for services
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

'Iotal governmental activities
program revenues

Business-type activities
Charges for services

Water
Sewer
Parking

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total business-type activities
program revenues

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
PROCRAM REVENUES

Total governmental activities expenses

s 1,768,632 $ 1,590,186 $ 1,845,464

5,426,684 5,860,890 6,119,447
1,891,727 2,413,158 2,464,050

25,940 961,240 13,063

406,753 420,036 506,152

9,5t9,736 I I r0 t0-948.t76

3,017,602

642,094

2,825,014
302,694
624,7t2

2,863,93 I

329,252
742,020

Total business-type activities expenses 3,659,696 3,752,420 3,935,103

s 13,179,432 $ 14,997,930 $ 14,883,279

$ 944,325 $
404,968
29t,437
547,480
75,162

941,040 $
520,864
289,781
570,739

732,t23
535,871
258,926
509,208

1,483,176

2,263,372 2,322,424 3,519,304

3,049,273 2,779,585
425,389
653,966

2,943,231
459,666
638,705625,946

3,675,2t9 3,858,940 4,041,602

-80-

$ 5,938,591 $ 6,181,364 $ 7,560,906



2007 2008 2009 20r0 20n 2012

$ 1,937,230 $
6,642,436
2,017,568

99,775
432.004

2,308,329 $
6,905,170
3,304,975

r s0,253
353.797

2,304,578
7,211,t28
2,829,506
1,195,475

241.8t9

$ 2,403,960
7,464,482
3,502,763
5,575,820

92.3

$ 2,219,004 $
8,21 I ,120
3, I 88,321

2,177,656
8,124,562
2,162,386

65^63257 73 ^3 43

I t,129,0t3 13,022,524 13,782,506 r 9.039.382 13.69 r.788 t2.530.236

2,892,482
379,052
871.378

3,157,557
489,657

939.593

3,167,287
492,746
947,992

3,412,349
454,813
987.368

3,612,540
460,477

989.5 l7

3,608,282
457,000
972.23s

4.t42.912 4.586.807 4.608.025 4.8s4.530 5.062.534 5.037.5 l7

s ts.271.925 $ 17.609,331 $ 18,390,531 s 23.893.9t2 S 18.754.322 g 17.567.753

$ 855,298 $
534,768
246,045
464,571

969,3 r 8 $
587,66s
261,949
462,184
126,962

763,975
664,944
262,899
442,249

3.33 r,705

$ 507,135 $
694,998
269,777
428,546

1.330.9 I I

569,433 $
664,840
3 13,878

463,735
1.947.29t

606,493
698,1 l 8

344,560
453,001

2.316.228

2.100.682 2,408,078 s,465,772 3.231.367 3.959.t77 4.418.400

2,687,286
434,7|
652,490

2,657,000
447,297
637,171

3,034,837
413,261
641,t22

2,938,394
408,242

645,361

3,216,520
396,770
681,449

3,4 r 8,70s
379,483
702,431

3.774.487 3.741.468 4.089.220 3.99 .997 4.294.739 4.500.619

s 7.223.364 $ 8.253.916 $ 8.919.019$ 5.875.169 $ 6.t49,s46 g 9,554,992
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (Continued)

Last Nine Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2004 2005 2006

NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES
Govemmental activities
Business-type activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
NET (EXPENSES) REVENUES

GENERAL REVENUES AND OTHER
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Govemmental activities

Taxes
Property
Sales

Utility
Other

lnvestment earnings
Gain from the sale of property

Tif surplus distribution
Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Contributions
Transfers

Total business-type activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
CHANCE IN NET ASSETS

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

$ (7,256,364) $ (8,923,086) S (7,428,872)
t5.523 06-520 06.499

$ (7,240,84r) $ (8,8 16.566) S (7.322.373\

$ 5,918,478
1,305,869

5 t 8,635
1,793,357

165,706
62,051

$ 6,253,695 $
1,304,241

525,999
t,992,829

264,467

504,t2t
750,000

7,310,714
1,424,058

6t6,230
2,140,81 I

54r,r86

308,435
(7,340,s72)

455,807

10,219,903 I1,595,352 5,000,869

56,776

222,952
716,736

7.340.s72

46,708 246.464 7.451.635

$ r0.266.611 $ il,84 r.816 s t2.452.504

43,t96
3,512

102,850

8,2t3

s 2,963,539
62.23t

$ 2,672,266
s2-984

$ (2,428,003)
7.558^ I 343

$ 3,025,770 $ $ 5.t30.t3r
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2007 2008 2009 2010 20t I 2012

$ (9,028,33t) $(10,614,446) $ (8,316,734) $(15,808,015) $ (9,732,61l) $ (8,1I1,836)
ß68.42s\ (845.339) (5 r 8.805) (862.53 J\ (767.79s\ t536.898)

$ (9.396.756) $fl 1,459,785) $ (8,835,539) $fi6.670.548) Sfl0.500.406) $ (8.648.734)

$ 7,598,1 l6 $
1,651,702

555,717

2,144,077
751,162

7,704,022 $
I,733,078

589,944
2,347,610

69t,733

8,028,635 $
1,707,932

587,064
2,305,612

467,220

8,423,435 $
1,585,276

476,791
2,049,516

143,462

5,873,3 r r $
1,687,782

525,432
2,012,352

68,239

5,958,771
I,809,302

477,806
776,288

32,302

368,376
(865,632)

656,535
(r00,000)

367,408
( 100,000)

747,885
356,678

( r 00.000)
217,437

( r00.000)
334,943

( 100.000)

t 2,203,5 I 8 13,622,922 13,363,871 13,683,043 10,284,553 9,289,412

t64,461 30,770 15,303 6,849

765,632
t00,000

ló8,t l7
3,67s

60,028
r00,000

82,556
l5t

t00,000 r00.000 r 00.000 r00.000

1.030.093 33 r,820 182,707 130.770 I15.303 r0ó.849

$ 13.233.ólt $ 13.954.742 $ 13.546,s78 $ r3.8r3.8r3 $ 10.399.856 S 9.396.26r

$ 3,175,187 $
661.668

3,008,476 $
t5 r 3.5 l9)

5,047,137
(336.098)

$ (2,124,972) $ 551,942 $
rc52.492\

|,177 ,576
r430.049)(73 .763)

$ 3.83ó.855 g 2,494,957 $ 4,711,039 $ t2.85ó.735) S fl00.s50) s 747.527
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?no? 2004

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FI.JNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005 2006 2007

$ 4,064 S 2,342 $ $

2009 20t0

$ t09,441 $ 221.t l0
- 747.885

2008 201 I

s 262,520 $

747,885

2012Fiscal Year

GENERAL FI.JND

Reserved/restricted
Assigned tbr economic development
Unreserved/unassigned

TOTAL GENERAL FI.JND

ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FTJNDS

Reserved/restricted
Unreserved/assigned, reported in

Special Revenue Funds
Debt Service Funds

Capital Project Funds

TOTAL ALL OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL FI.JNDS

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements

$ $

s

747,885

t9 'l 997 n3

7s6.sot $8.022.50t $8.284.283 58.372.573 $8.263.032 $8.295.70r $7.796,407 57,356,604 $7,007,518 56,649,693

$4,2ó0,890 S5.957,189 S4,270.833 $5.369,ó00 $5,405,719 57.t77,304 $1,817.67ó $2.t74,148 S1,981.913

2,804,128
r r 8.233
oo, a{7

s

$3 9t7.2t8 S

11AL î R4Á O?Á rt¿r O11ì ¿O¿ OO5 948.656 1.210.242 963.773 533,073 886,015

s.637.330 S6.804.125 54.122-775 $5.773.605 $ó.354.375 $8.387.546 52.781,449 52,707,221 52,867,928
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year 2003 2004 200s 2006

REVENUES
Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment income
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Economic development
Capitaloutlay
Debt service

Principal
Interest
Other charges

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFTCIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Bonds/notes issued

Payment to escrow agent

Sale of capital assets

I t,555,841 12,201,926 13.003.120 r4.46 r.138

$ 9,082,933 $

750,240
448,301

3t5,234
959. l 33

9,536,340
892,242
520,658

7,754
164,177

r.080.7s5

$ t0,089,912
l,l86,l l6

683,948
73,803

26t,037

$ I 1,504,355
1,061,222

790, I 50
4,490

533,690
567.231708^304

2,511,220
4,576,854
1,209,181

6l,643
2,125,554

340,000
904,690

1,717,903

5,382,334
1,321,57 |

25,940
495,995

945,000
389,122

1,685,933

5,623,998
1,339,215

961,240
I ,303,175

975,000
440,046

1,749,674

6,087,869
I,469,547
7,353,634
2,709,028

1,765,991
424,772
25.6t9

tl.729.t42 10.277.865 12.328.607 21.58ó.134

(173,301) 1,924,061 674,513 (7,124,996)

3,235,100
(2,584,521)

2,077,621
(2,077,621)

62.051

2,791,582
(2,041,582)

3,717,221
(3,717,22t)
7,285,000

(2,751,342)

Total other fìnancing sources (uses) 650,579 62,051 750.000 4.533.658

NETCHANGE IN FUND BALANCES s 477.278 $ 1.986.r 12 $ I .424-513 $ (2.5 9l .338)

DEBT SERVICE AS A PERCENTAGE OF
NONCAPITAL EXPENDITURES 12.08o/o 16.260/o 13.82o/o 14.63%

Note: Income taxes were reclassified from taxes to intergovernmental.

Data Source

Audited Financial Statements
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2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt 20t2

$ I1,960,303
1,005,086

622,774
92,342

744,105
503.879

$ 12,379,089

1,056,762

868,921
3,867

696,667

809.96r

s 12,s72,204
932,583

3,91 8,84 I

257,985
465,282
528.012

$ 12,535,018

949,402
8 t 8,416
245,379
167,452

t-210-271

$ 10,098,872 $

1,050,567
1,509,578

237,t52
68,242

368.247

9,022,167
1,062,973
2,480,352

278,233
31,807

s79.530

t4,928,489 r 5,805 -267 t8.674.907 15.92s.938 13 13.455.062

I ,878, I 39
6,429,965
1,494,714

865,407

365,292

1,792,209
459,132

2,221,861
6,835,548
1,745,562

319,410
1,587,401

t,994,437
387,609

2,209,157
7,057,583
2,017,805
|,195,475

573,839

3,682,363
304,808

2,321,048
7,575,382
I ,8 12, 198

5,575,820
2,453,339

2,010,000
124,051

2,n3,519
7,859,624
t,677,999

220,000
76,575

2,078,237
8,003,062
1,688,774

235,000
68,765

1,708,255 1,478,342

r 3.284.858 r 5.091.828 17.041.030 2r.871.838 13-655.972 13.552.180

1.643.631 7t3-439 1.633.877 (5.94s.900) l4l t97. r r 8)

3,070,016
(3,170,0 t 6)

4,088,400
(4,188,400)

4,666,171
(4,766,171)

4,367,701
(4,467,701)

1,053,956
(1,153,956)

1,854,387
( 1,954,387)

( 100.000) ( 100.000) fl00.000) fl00.000) 000.000) fi00.000)

$ 1.s43.631 $ 613,439 $ 1,533,877 $ (6.04s.900) $ ø23.3t4',) $ 097,118)

2t.48% 20.50% 31.680/o ll.32o/o 2.55o/o 2.56%
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLTNOIS

ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OFTAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Levy Years

Levy
Year

Residential
Property

Commercial
ProoerW

Industrial
ProperW

Railroad
Propertv

Total
Direct
Tax
Rate

Estimated
Actual

Taxable
Value

TotalTaxable
Assessed

Value

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

$248,388,284

347,995,834

349,081,445

369,950,841

488,848,094

488,870,503

519,735,586

612,239,451

659,634,278

662,256,327

s 32,686,261

36,844,395

35,398446

30,444,985

35,494,867

35,293,781

36,339,481

39,233,415

79,941,557

75,586,633

$ 36,014,190

40,577,653

40,350, I 55

42,100,262

47,006,177

45,438,649

45,642,872

49,040,791

45,670,865

43,014,350

$ 639,846

758,643

384,898

360,926

350,788

365,256

423,061

468,882

534,963

532,201

s 3 17,728,58 I

426,176,525

425,214,944

442,857,014

571,699,926

569,968, I 89

602, l4 I ,000

700,982,539

785,781,663

781,389,51I

$ 953,185,743

1,278,529,575

1,275,644,832

1,328,571,042

1,715,099,778

1,709,904,567

1,806,423,000

2,102,947,617

2,357,344,989

2,344,168,533

1.3070

1.4200

1.5600

t.2690

1.33 l5

1.3032

1.1240

t.0629

1.0629

1.0978

Note: Property in the Village is reassessed each year. Property is assessed at33o/o of actual value.

Data Source

Office of the County Clerk
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Tax Levv Year

VILLAGE DIRECT RATES+
General
Police Pension

Firc Pension

Library
Total Direct Rate

OVERLAPPING RATES*
La Grange Park District
County of Cook/Health Facilities
Forest Preserve District of Cook County
Consolidated Elections
Township of Lyons
General Assistance Lyons
Road and Bridge Lyons

Lyons Mental Health
Suburban T B Sanitarium
Metro Water Reclamation Dist. of Greater Chicago

Des Plaines Valley Mosquito Abatement District
La Grange Highlands Sanitary District
South Lyons Sanitary District
School District # 102

School District # 105

School District # 106

Lyons Township High School #204

DuPage Community College District #502

La Grange Special Service Area#4a
La Grange Special Service Area#7

* Property tax rates are per $100 ofassessed valuation
**201 I tax rates are estimated

Data Source

0.90ó3
0.0680
0.0747
0.2580

0.9024
0.09 r 7
0.09 l9
0.3340

0.8694
0.r0r2
0.0964
0.4930

0.6943
0.0942
0.0835
0.3970

0.73 r0
0.08r r

0.090 r

0.4010

0.6010
0.08 r 0

0.0850
0.3570

0.5345

0.0970
0.0974
0.3340

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMEN'|S

Last Ten Levy Years

0.7492
0.0834

0.0860
0.4129

0.3 590
0.t220
0.0ó00

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 201 l+*

t.3070 t.4200 r.5600 1.2690 1.3315 t.3032 t.1240 1.0629 1.0629 1.0978

0.5345
0.0970
0.0974
0.3340

0.3330
0.3940
0.0490
0.02 t0
0.0470
0.0020
0.0330
0.0760

0.26t0
0_01l0
0.1770
0.0880
2.5590
2.3830
2.2490
r.49r0
0.2040

0.5596
0.099 r

0.0961
0.3430

0.2980
0. r 560
0.06 r 0

0.0330
0.0050
0.0350

0.0850
0.0060
0.37 r 0

0.0r r0
0.2660
0.0970
3. t830
r.99r0
2.9530
r.85 t 0

0.2t70
t.44 t 0

0.3520
0.r4r0
0.0590
0.0290
0.0350

0.0020
0.0370

0.0880
0.0040
0.36 r 0

0.0 r 20

0.2210
0.r0r0
3.2980
2.0540
3.0930
I.9r40
0.2270

0.0350
0.0020

0.0370

0.0880
0.0040
0.36 r 0

0.0 r20
0.22t0
0.t0t0
3.2980
2.0540
3.0930
I .9 140

0.2270

0.0360
0.0020
0.0370

0.0900
0.00 r0
0.3470
0.0 r 20

0.2 t 90
0.0980
3.3750
2.3420
3.0640
r.8930
0.2250

0.0330
0.0030
0.0340

0.08 r 0

0.0050

0.2840
0.0120
0. r 950
0.09 r 0

2.9390
2.3780
2.6t50
1.6570

0.20ó0

0.4070
0.4460
0.0530
0.0120
0.0330
0.0030
0.0340

0.0810

0.2630
0.0 r 20
0. r950
0.0900
2.8830
2.3220
2.5590
I .ó 170

0.2080

0.04ó0
0.0020
0.0320
0.0740

0.2520
0.0 r 20

0.1770
0.08 r 0

2.7040
2. I 350
2.3420
t.4820
0. r 930

0.3330
0.3940

0.0490
0.02 r0
0.0470
0.0020
0.0330

0.0760

0.2ó r 0

0.01r0
0.1770
0.0880
2.5590
2.3830
2.2490
r.49t0
0.2040

0.0480

0.0020
0.0330

0.0780

0.3520
0.r4r0
0.0590

0.42 t 0

0. I 030
0.0570

0.3540
0.4 r 50

0.05 r 0

0.3450

0.4230
0.05 r 0

0.2740
0.0r r0
0. I 860

0.0950
2.6290
2.4920
2.3190
1.5450

0.2r r0

0.2190 0.2040 0.1550 0.1480 0.1320 0.1320 0.1440

Cook County Clerk's Office
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

20t2 2003

Taxoaver

Taxable
Assessed

Value

Percentage

of Total
Village
Taxable
Assessed

Valuation

Taxable
Assessed

Value

Percentage

of Total
Village
Taxable
Assessed

ValuationRank Rank

La Grange rd Investor

Columbia/LG Memorial Hospital

Burcor Properties

Grayhill Manufacturing Co.

CNC

Sambell La Grange

SBC/Ameritech

Bank One

Crozich, LLC

Campap

DPA Management

Bank One

Nicor

D.R. Brooks, B&B Investments

Data Source

Office of the County Clerk

r 1.03% $

2 0.75o/o 3,208,914

3 0.690/o 963,981

4 0.58o/o 1,577,046

5 0.53o/o 2,l4l,l9l

6 0.47o/o 949,998

7 0.34o/o 779,336

I 0.29o/o

9 0.260/o

l0 0.25o/o

580,712

0.00% 454,860

0.00o/o 522,522

0.00% 1,057,41I

5.19% $ 12,235,971

$ 8,089,699

5,874,772

5,460,731

4,538,358

4,167,227

3,699,307

2,660,945

2,257,596

2,058,809

|,957,039

5

3

2

6

7

0.00o/o

0.75o/o

0.23o/o

0.37%

0.50o/o

0.22o/o

0.t8%

0.000/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

0.14%

0.r l%

0.12%

0.25o/o

I

t0

9

4

$ 40,764,483 2.620/o

-89-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Levy Years

Levy
Year Tax Levied

Collected Within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections
Percentage in Subsequent

Amount of Levy Years

Total Collections to Date

Percentage

ofLevyAmount

200t $ 4,458,021 S 2,049,046 45.96% $ 2,384,764 $ 4,433,810 99.460/o

2002 4,332,096 1,969,415 45.460/o 2303,041 4,272,456 98.620/o

2003 4,640,642 2,107,849 45.42o/o 2,482,807 4,590,656 98.92o/o

2004 4,719,149 2,137,996 45.30% 2,549,648 4,687,644 99.33%

2005 4,915,684 2,206,774 44.89o/o 2,673,959 4,880,733 99.29o/o

2006 5,180,586 2,320,565 44.79o/o 2,774,958 5,095,523 98.36%

2007 5,427,546 2,446,303 45.07o/o 2,887,144 5,333,447 98.27%

2008 5,362,830 2,544,434 47.45o/o 2,744,670 5,289,104 98.630/o

2009 5,784,985 2,949,638 50.99% 2,708,992 5,658,630 97.820/o

2010 5,942,227 2,840,177 47.80o/o 2,963,117 5,803,294 97.660/o

Data Source

Village records
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Fiscal Yea¡

General merchândise

Food

Drinking and eating places

Apparel

Fumiture&H.H.&Radio

Lumber, building hardware

Automobile and filling stations

Drugs and miscellaneous retail

Agriculture and all others

Manufacturers

TOTAL

Village direct sales tax rate

Data Source

Illinois Department of Revenue

2002

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLTNOIS

SALES TAX BY CATEGORY

Last Ten Fiscal Years

200s 2006

$ $ $

2003 2004

$

t4t.3l7

228,286

t6.290

102,822

22,450

63.855

214,767

180.32t

It9.015

2008 2009

s

257,825

268,963

22,80t

79,960

r2,5t0

88,979

215,379

218,312

8.782

2007 2010

262.087

313,646

14.3 t 9

74,627

32,267

I I8.40t

224,771

t87,929

13.422

20n

276,748

333,052

16,392

78,104

34,s66

tzt,2l8

227,733

196,243

14.302

$ s s $$

7t,470

202,945

I 1,094

I 0 1,920

24,914

67,582

t44,880

l5 r,366

r0.064

t76,371

246,232

19,468

108,059

19,732

65,303

238,780

r60,9r6

2ß.355

204.827

244,501

23.992

112,483

20,934

64.s23

257,632

r83.959

(42.689\

217,012

256,971

27,986

109,393

r8,076

69,975

277,016

179,305

7.154

23s.537

258.766

24,t20

92,077

12.867

75.846

279,326

223.038

12.117

262,831

260,860

17,875

56,782

42,981

80,924

225,938

222,628

12.390

$ 78ó.23s St.089.123 $r.063.216 $r.070.r62 $r.r62,888 $r,213,694 $r,233,s11 $t,183,209 5t,24t,469 $1,298,3s8

I nîo/^ 1.00o/o 1.00o/o 1.00o/o 1.00% 1.00o/o l.OOo/o 1.00o/o 1.00o/o 1.00o/o
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2012 20tt 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 200s 2004 2003

0.25o/o 0.25o/o 0.25% 0.25% 0.25o/o 0.25o/o

DIRECT
Village of La Grange

OVERLAPPING
State of Illinois
Cook County
Regional Transportation authority
Village of La Grange

Total overlapping

TOTAL SALES TAX RATE

Data Source
Illinois Department of Revenue

5.00o/o

L00o/o

1.25o/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

1.25o/t

l -25o/o

t.00%

5.00o/o

1.75%
t.25%
1.00o/o

s.00%
1.75%
1.25o/o

r.00%

5.00o/o

1.00o/o

1.00o/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

O-75o/o

1.00o/o

l -00o/o

5.00o/o

0.75o/o

l-0Ûo/o

1.00o/o

5.00o/o

0.75o/o

1.00%
l-00o/o

5.00o/o

0.75o/o

1.00o/o

1.00%

5.00o/o

0-75o/o

1.00o/o

1.00o/o

8.250/o 8.50% 9.000/o 9.000/o 8.00% 7,750/o 7.75% 7.750/o 7.75% 7.750/o

8.50% 8.75yo 9.25o/o 9.25o/o 8.25o/o 8.00% 7.75o/o 7.75o/o 7.75o/o 7.75o/o
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLTNOIS

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDTNG DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Percentage

Fiscal General Tax Installment General Installment Total of
Year Obligation Increment Notes Obligation Notes Capital Primary Personal Per

Ended Bonds Revenue Bonds Payable Bonds Payable Leases Government Income* Capita*

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012

$ 4,650,000 $

4,305,000
3,930,000
3,610,000
3,225,000
2,765,000
2,260,000
2,050,000
1,830,000
1,595,000

$ 6,000,000
5,400,000
4,800,000
7,919,009
6,51 1,800

4,977,363
l,goo,o00

$$$ $ 10,650,000
9,705,000
8,730,000

11,529,009
9,736,800
7,742,363
4,060,000
2,050,000
1,830,000
1,595,000

0.33% $

0.36%
0.40%
0.30%
0.36%
0.45o/o

0.86Yo

1.70o/o

t9l%
2.19%

34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887

Note: Details of the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements.

* See the schedule of Demographic and Economic Statistics on page 98 for personal income and population data.

Personal income is the largest sole source income type, usually either property or sales tax. In the case of special districts, it may be fees.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLTNOIS

RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

General
Obligation

Bonds

Less: Amounts
Available

In Debt
Service Fund

Percentage of
Estimated

ActualTaxable
Value of
Property*

Per

Total Capita

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
20t0
20ll
2012

$ 4,650,000 $
4,305,000
3,930,000
3,610,000
3,225,000
2,765,000
2,260,000
2,050,000
I,830,000
1,595,000

1t8,233
122,052
121,528
144,564
160,783
169,393
169,527
1 70,1 89
170,422

10,500

$ 4,531,767
4,182,948
3,802,472
3,465,436
3,064,217
2,595,607
2,090,473
1,879,81I
1,659,578
1,584,500

$ 129.90
l r9.90
108.99

99.33
87.83
74.40
59.92
53.88
47.57
4s.42

0.48%
0.33%
0.30%
0.26%
0.18%
0.14%
0.t0%
0.08%
0.07%
0.07%

Note: Details of the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements.

* See the schedule of Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property on page 87 for
property value data.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLTNOIS

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

April30,2012

Governmental Unit
Gross
Debt

Percentage

Debt Applicable
to the Village of

La Grange (l)

Village of
La Grange

Share

of Debt

Village of La Crange

Cook County
Cook County Forest Preserve

Metropolitan Water Reclamation District
Lyons Township High School#204
School District # 106

School District # 102

$ 1,595,000 100.00% s 1,595,000

3,814,460,000
101,935,000

2,495,259,000
7,565,000
5,363,012

0.4t%
0.41%
0.42%
0.20%
10.15%
48.40%

15,639,286
417,934

10,480,088
1 5,1 30

544,346
18,960,70039,175.000

6,463,7 57,012 46,057,484

TOTAL $ 6,465,352,012 $ 47,652,484

(l) Determined by ratio of assessed valuation of property subject to taxation in the Village to
valuation of properly subject to taxation in overlapping unit.
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VILLAGE OF LA CRANCE, ILLINOIS

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005 2006 2007Fiscal Year

Debt limit
Total net debt applicable to limit

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

TOTAL NET DEBT APPLICABLE
TOTHE LIMITAS A PERCENTAGE
OF DEBT LIMIT

2003 2004

$ 36,757,898
l-475.000

s36.7s7,725
1.275.000

$ 38.r96,4r7
r0.370.000

$ 49.309,r r9
9.805.000

s 49.869.744
9.220.000

s64,987,869
7.580.000

$ 68,420,543
7.200.000

2008

$ 49,93ó.006
8.600.000

2009

s 60,459,744
7.945.000

2010 201 I 2012

s 68,04r,720
6.805.000

s35 282-898 53s.482.72s 527-826-4t7 $39.504.n9 540.649.744 $41.33ó.006 552-5t4.744 557.407-869 $ó1.220.543 S6t-236-720

4.01% 3.4'10/" 2'l.l5o/" 19.88o/o 18.49o/o l'1.22o/o 13.l4o/" ll.660/o 10.52o/o 10.00%
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Water Svstem Imorovement Bonds

Fiscal
Year

2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
20tl
20t2

Water
Charges

and

Other

Less

Operating
Expenses

Net
Available
Revenue

Special
Debt Service Assessment

Principal Interest Coverage Collections

Special Assessment Bonds 269/270

Debt Service
Principal Interest Coverage

$$ s $ $ N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

$ 102,212

124,253
I16,590
76,113
45,561

47,442
35,097
23,792

825

$ 78,000 $

139,000

81,000
61,000
59,000
38,000
25,000
68,000

24,601 $
17,669
I1,336
10,478
7,109
5,196
3,441
2,516

I
0.79
1.26

1.06

0.69
l.l0
1.23

0.34

Note: Det¿ils of the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to financial statements.

Water Charges and Other includes investment earnings but not tap on fees.

Operating expenses do not include interest or depreciation.
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Population (l)

Personal
Income

Per

Capita
Personal

Income (l)
Unemployment

Rate (2)

2012
20tt
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
200s
2004
2003

15,550
15,550

15,608

15,608
15,608
15,608

15,608
15,608

15,608
15,608

$ 542,492,850 s
542,492,850
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296
544,516,296

34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887

34,887
34,887
34,887
34,887

7.10%
7.40%
7.30o/o

4.400/o

3.40%
3.t0%
4.20%
430%
4.70%
4.600/o

(l) U.S. Bureau of Census. Data based on 2010 and 2000 Census.

(2) Illinois Department of Employment Security.

-98-



VILLACE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2012 2003

Employer
Number of
Employees

Percentage
of Total
Village

Population
Number of
Employees Rank

Percentage

of Total
Village

PopulationRank

Adventi st/La Grange Hospital

Lyons Township High School

Grayhill

School District 105

Meadowbrook Manor

Lexington Health Care Center

Village of La Crange

JP Morgan Chase

Musser

Billet Specialties, Inc

First National Bank of La Grange

Data Source

Village records

I 7.05o/o 1,000

2 3.84% 6s0

3.360/o 400

t.28% 180

0.96% 125

0.70o/o 102

0.69% l16

0.42% 75

0.38% 60

0.3s%

55

6.41%

4.160/o

2.560/o

1.150/o

0.80%

0.65%

0.74o/o

0.48%

0.38o/o

0.00o/o

l0 0.35o/o

1,100

600

525

200

150

109

107

65

60

55

55

2

J

4

5

7

6

8

9

3

4

5

6

7

I

9

l0

0.35o/o
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Function/Prosram

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Administration
Finance
Community development

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police

Ofücen
Civilians-parking

Fire
Firefighters and officers
Civilians

PUBLIC WORKS
Public works
Water
Sewer

Data Source

Village budget oftice

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE, ILLINOIS

FULLTIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 20tt 2012

JJ

J

2l

4
5

4

JJ

4
5

5

4
5

5

4
5

4

4
5

5

l4
9
2

4
5

6

35

3

4
5

5

35
J

2t

t4
9
2

99

34
J

2l

l4
9
2

97

34
5

20

t4
9

2
96

34
Ĵ

20

t4
9
2

96

34
J

20

96

4
5

6

35
J

2l

4
5

6

4
5

6

35
JJ

l9

t4
9

2

93

20

t4
9
2

94

t4
I
2

99

t4
9
2

99

21

l4
9
2

99

- r00-



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE.ILLTNOIS

OPERATING INDICATORS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005 2006 2007 20t2Function/Prosram

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police

Index/non-index crimes cleared
Parking violations
TrafIìc violations

Fire
Emergency responses

Fire prevention activ¡ty
PUBLIC WORKS

Street sweeping (miles)
Snodice control (hours)

WATER
Water main breaks
Average daily consumption (gal.)
Service leaks

SEWER
Catch basins repaired/replaced

4.567
700

4,750
840

4.557
r.l l0

4.203
1,147

2003

1,879

t,007

4,171
983

25

1,5n,710
t0

2004

232
t2,717
4,470

139

10.968

2,310

il0
9.r68
2.107

ilt
9,319
1,643

t.968
t,173

l3t
9,200
2,488

2,009
703

4,839
33t

1,94t
500

1,832
542

3,988
1,213

4l
I, t96,2 t 8

2

u9

r86
t't,725
3.990

160

11,824
3,092

1,965
1,399

30

t,379,043
l4

22

149

7,654
2,580

2.022
8ó0

3.570
l.l9l

JJ
r,195,3 r8

9

384

t3l
8,36t
r,6t9

r,901
822

2008 2009

2.027
306

2010 20r r

152
7,381
2,049

27
1,400,447

7

t0

2.074
703

42
1.491,7t9

t3

75

47

I,318,699
44

JJ

73

1.296.690
l9

28

4,209
t,517

35

1,279,s32
t2

9

4,607
609

30
l,ló8,8r3

l4

345

Data Source

Village budgets and various V¡llage departments
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Function/Prosram

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police

Stations
Patrol units

Fire
Fire stations
Fire engines
Ambulances
Aeial ladder truck

PUBLIC WORKS
Collector streets (miles)
Residential streets (miles)
Streetlights
Traffic signals

IüATER

Water mains (miles)
Fire hydrants

WASTEWATER
Sanitary sewers (miles)
Storm sewers (miles)

Data Source

Various Village departments

2003 2004

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE,ILLINOIS

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2005 2006 2007

8

45

1,796
t7

70
560

2009 2010 20n2008 2012

8

45

1,796
t7

8

45

1,796
l7

I

7

I
')

2

I

7

I
2
)
I

I
7

I
2
2
I

I
7

I
2

2

I

I

7

I

2

2

I

I
6

I

2
2
I

I

6

I

2
)
I

I
6

I

2

2
I

I
6

I

2
2

I

I

6

I
)
2

I

70
560

39
I

70
560

39
8

I
45

r,796
t7

8

45
1,796

l7

8

45

1,796
l7

8

45

1,796
l7

8

45

1,796
t7

8

45
1,796

t7

8

45
1,796

t7

70
560

39
8

70
560

39
I

70

560

39
I

70
560

39
8

70
560

39

I

70

s60

39
8

70

560

39
8

39
8
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MANAGERNS REPORT



TO

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Administrative Offices

RT

Village President, Village Clerk,
Board of Trustees, and Village Attorney

FROM: Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager and

Lou Cipparrone, Finance Director

DATE: October 8,2012

RE: PRE-BUDGET DEVELOPMENT \ryORKSHOP - REVENUES

OVERVIEW

We have scheduled a series of pre-budget development workshops to provide the Village Board
with an opportunity to discuss fiscal objectives in advance of the development of the Village
budget for FY 2013-14 and the corresponding five-year financial plan.

More specifically, during the budget adoption process for the current FY 2012-13, we heard from
the Village Board concems with the financial sustainability of the General Fund over the long
term (i.e. - operating expenses exceeding the CPI, which caps the percentage increase in the
Village's annual property tax levy.) We additionally heard individual Trustee comments related
to budget issues which also directly impact General Fund sustainability such as: revenue

increases should only be directed to fund capital projects rather than support operations;
questions regarding the level of staff allocation to the Water Fund; and a general dislike for
revenue increases. All of these discussion points result in pressures on the General Fund that
cannot be mitigated without revenue increases or expenditure reductions within the latter years

of our current five-year financial plan.

'We have attempted to identify the major issues expressed by individual members of the Village
Board as they relate to the development of future Village budgets. However, we note for the

Village Board as a whole that these individual interests compete with the allocation of limited
resources in the General Fund.

The goal of these pre-budget development workshops, therefore, is to discuss, prioritize, and

perhaps even synthesize into budget policy, these individually held opinions, so that disciplined
consensus direction can be provided to Village staff.

To a large extent, these pre-budget development workshops are a carry-forward of the continued

budget discussion from June 2012. In recognition of that dynamic, we have attached the

following documents as appendices for your convenient reference:

,'b
tg



Executive Committee Report
RE: Pre-budget Development Workshop - Revenues

October 8,2012-Page2

Appendix 1 - Executive Committee Report dated June I I,2012,

Appendix 2 - excerpt from Board of Trustees regular meeting minutes -Monday, June I1,2012.

INTRODUCTION - REVENUES

The purpose of this pre-budget development workshop is to discuss Village revenues. As you
know, the Village has aggressively cut expenses, reducing the cost of Village government since
May 1, 2009, by over $1.4M. Most recently, the Village Board amended the FY 2012 -13
Village budget by cutting an additional $162,000 in expenditures. This action resulted in
deferring the proposed increase in the Village's utility tax (for electricity and natural gas) by two
years to FY 2014-15. Through a combination of these expense reductions and user fee deferral,
the Village is projected to generate surpluses in each of the next five years, thereby modestly
beginning to rebuild reserves in the General Fund.

As we have heard comments from individual Board members expressing reservations with
revenue increases in the future, we thought it would be appropriate to review with you: (l) some
of the major revenue sources previously identified for discussion; and (2) the need to consider or
implement those revenue increases.

Propertv Tax

Property taxes represent the largest single revenue source within the General Fund, (48%). As a
non-home rule municipality, Village of La Grange property taxes are subject to the property tax
extension limitation act or "tax caps", which limits the annual cumulative levy increase to the
lessor of 5Vo and the previous year CPI. The property tax cap was first imposed on non-home
rule communities in the mid-1990's. A municipality may only increase its tax levy in excess of
the tax cap limit by approval of residents via referendum.

Since the property tax cap was first imposed, the Village has increased the annual property tax
levy as allowed under the law, which is an average of 2.4Yo per year. If the Village did not levy
as permitted under the law, the allowable increase would in effect be forever "lost", and could
not be "recaptured" as part of the subsequent year tax levy. The significance of this levy
dynamic is two-fold.

First, the lost revenue would have a significant compounding effect, even if performed just once.
For example, if the Village adopted a zefo percent increase for the 2012 property tax levy rather
than the allowable 3Yo increase as planned under the projected tax cap, the result would be
reduced revenue for operations of $130,000 for the subsequent fiscal year. As the Village cannot
go back and recapture the lost revenue, the impact of a zerc percent levy increase for only one
year results in the cumulative loss of property tax revenues in excess of $1.5 million over the
next 10 fiscal years, (even if the Village were to continue to levy allowable increases in
subsequent years over the same time period.)

)
È
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175,000

125,000

75,000

Executive Committee Report
RE: Pre-budget Development Workshop - Revenues

October 8,2012 - Page 3

GeneralFund operating Surplus / (Deficft)

-+Current Budget

I25,000 
l

-25,000 tY 2072-L3 tY 20t3-74 20r4-L5 tY 2

-75,000

-125,000

tY 20I6-L7 -l-Without 370 CPlin

rY 2013-14

-*--W/O 3o/oCPl &Lo/o

Utility Tax in

FY 2014-15
-175,000

-225,0@

-275,0æ

Stated another way, this lost revenue would be equivalent to eliminating one Full-time Police
Officer position &rcyer.

Second, the lost revenue could negatively impact future Village Boards, perhaps requiring new
or increased alternative revenues to be implemented to offset this loss.

In addition, it also remains critical to capture new growth in the year it becomes available.
Otherwise, it will also become part of the succeeding years' base EAV and not subject to an
increased levy in future years.

In summary, while the Village Board has the legislative discretion to adopt a property tax levy in
an amount less than what is allowed under the tax cap, such an action would result in two
consequences. First, it would have an immediate and negative impact by adding fiscal stress to
the General Fund which is only beginning to stabilize as a result of the cost-containment plan.
Second, it would have long-term consequences by impacting the ability of future Village Boards
to generate revenues.

While presentation of this revenue item has been intended to be an informational piece to further
explain the Village's practice for levying its property tax amounts, it would be appropriate at this
time, because of the severe impact of a change, for the Village Board to provide consensus
direction if the Board intends to change this long-held policy in December or in future years.

ï
?,

\r

Funding gap continues going
f orward, growi ng 2.5/o annually
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Utilít.v Tax

On June 11,2012, the Village Board continued its discussion of the FY 2012-13 Village budget.
There was considerable discussion regarding fiscal objectives, personnel and non-personnel
expense reductions, and an amusement tax in lieu of an increase in the utility tax (on electricity
and natural gas). At the conclusion of the discussion it was the consensus of the Village Board
to approve several budget adjustments/expenditure reductions for FY 2012-13 and, in the
process, postpone the utility tax increase to FY 2014-15.

V/ith the cost containment plan in place for the foreseeable future, ild with no significant
changes in Village services anticipated, the 1.0% utility tax increase (for electricity and gas)
included in the current 5-year financial plan remains critical for the Village in order to generate
sufficient revenues to meet ongoing and increasing operating costs.

If the utility tax is not implemented as anticipated, it will result in the General Fund going into a
deficit spending position in each of the three remaining years of the Village's current five-year
financial plan by approximately $25,000, $50,000 and $100,000, respectively.

Amusement Tax

During the continued budget discussion on June ll, 2012, potential revenue enhancement
concepts were presented. One item which was discussed at some length was an amusement tax
applicable to movie theater tickets. While there were split opinions concerning the imposition of
an amusement tax, those members of the Village Board who spoke in disfavor were strongly
opposed. Recognizing this opposition, the consensus direction was to expend a limited amount
of resources to gather some additional information and to report findings back to the Village
Board.

In follow-up to the continued budget discussion, we asked the theater owners how an amusement
tax would effect theater operations. The theater owners stated that they felt it would be
detrimental to the theater business as the cost of the amusement tax would not be able to be
absorbed by the theater due to their slim operating margin. If the amusement tax was added to
ticket prices, it would increase the cost of admission closer to that of first-run theaters. The
theater owners believe that this would negatively impact attendance.

In addition, the theater owners stated that the movie studio's share of ticket sales (35-40%) is
based on gross revenues and that it is the owners' understanding that the studios would
participate in any increase in revenue generated by a local amusement tax. If this were the case,
the theater owners would need to absorb the additional cost paid to the movie studios in order for
the Village to receive the total fee from the amusement tax, which as previously stated is not
possible due to the theater's slim operation margin. Alternatively, an amusement tax in the
amount of $.50 cents per ticket, as proposed for discussion purposes, would need to be increased
by 35%-40%o, to $.70 cents, in order to generate the additional revenue for the Village as

originally projected.

Finally, the theater owners noted that they are the only business in the Village which currently
pays an amusement tax imposed by Cook County. The County amusement tax is 3% of the
admission fee. This fee is collected directly by Cook County. The County amusement tax has

already been factored into current ticket pricing. We note that in contrast, a Village amusement b
t0,1

\0



Executive Committee Report
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October 8,2012 - Page 5
tax in the amount of $.50 cents would be equal to lÙYo, as a percentage of the average ticket
price.

We also spoke to Village Attorney Mark Burkland as to legal considerations involved with
establishing an amusement tax. Attached for your information is a legal memorandum on this
subject. In summary, (1) the Village may establish such a tax, even if only applicable to one
business, and has two basic options -- a general amusement tax or a more specific cinema tax;
and (2) certain exemptions could be made so as not to tax charitable organizations, school
events, community theater productions, or amateur movie showings.

Non-Home Rule Sales Tax

As an amusement tax does not appear to have support of the Village Board, consideration of
increasing the Village's non-home rule sales tax would be a viable alternative. As a matter of
general tax policy: (1) a majority of the tax will be paid by non-residents; and (2) thus, this
revenue enhancement would lessen the overall tax burden for Village residents.

The Village has the statutory ability to levy up to a full 1.0% in non-home rule sales tax, and can
do so in quarter percent increments (0.25,0.50, 0.75, 1.0). The Village currently collects a0.25
percent non-home rule sales tax that was approved by referendum. The tax was implemented on
July 1, 2006. This tax has consistently generated $250,000 per year in revenue for the Village.
Proceeds from the tax fund the operation and maintenance of the parking structure. The balance
of the proceeds provides funding for operational expenditures in the General Fund.

While there was some apprehension in the business community that the tax would negatively
effect large purchasing decisions, the tax has been absorbed and its impact as a practical matter is
negligible - (e.g. - $.25 on a $100 dining bill).

An additional 0.25 percent increase in the non-home rule sales tax would generate an additional
$250,000 in annual sales tax revenues.

Any increase in the Village's non-home rule sales tax would require approval by Village
residents via voter referendum. As general voter sentiment appears to be anti-tax, putting forth
such a proposal to taxpayers would be ill-timed.

Future Revenue Opportunities

The following are potential revenue opportunity concepts for the future which we would like to
note for the Village Board at this time.

The residential streetlight bond issue will be defeased in FY 2017-18. This means that
the General Fund will realize $300,000 in "new"/unassigned annual revenue beginning in
FY 2018-19. This may be a means to restore the historical $1.0M annual transfer from
the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund, which is currently at a reduced amount of
S700,000 per year due to the cost containment plan.

Home Rule. The purpose for making a brief reference to this item here is to acknowledge
for the record that: (a) it was raised during aFY 2012-13 budget workshop session as a
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October 8,2012 - Page 6
concept to generate new revenue for the Village, especially from non-residents, and (b)
that the Village Board was unanimously and vigorously opposed to the concept.

"Innovative Financing". While not exactly a revenue item, "innovative financing" is an

emerging term used to describe the opportunity to leverage public-private partnership in
non-traditional ways to fund major capital projects or as an alternative to source service
delivery/operations. One potential opportunity for using this method of financing is to
fund sewer infrastructure improvements within each of our three major drainage basins.
We hope to explore this concept further over the course of the next fiscal year as time
permits.

PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION

As you can see, there are not many revenue-generation options available to the Village as a non-
home rule community. The property tax is one of the few taxes which the Village can increase

annually to sustain operations (i.e. - in order to continue to deliver high quality, core local
government services). Even so, however, our ability to increase the property tax levy can only
be done on a very limited basis.

The Village budget for FY 2012-13 as amended and the corresponding five-year financial plan is
a disciplined financial management strategy for the Village. We continue to advocate a balanced
approach to budgeting whereby trends of existing revenues will be annually evaluated so as to
defer, but not necessarily eliminate, the utility tax increase from consideration within our rolling
five-year financial planning period. Current revenue sources appear to be slowly recovering (e.g.

- sales tax, income tax), yet remain fragile. Should Village finances stabilize, the Village
Board would then have the added flexibility to consider increasing the utility tax as a means to
restore vacant positions, especially in public safety, in advance of a full economic recovery.

H:\cbenjamin\EXECMEMO\prebudgetdevelopmentworkshoprevenues.ecr.doc
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Memorandum
Date:

To:

From:

Re:

October 2,20L2

Robert J. Pilipiszyn

Mark E. Burkland
Betsy L. Gates

Village Authority to Establish an Amusement Tax

A. State Law Authorization to Impose Tax

The Illinois Municipal Code authorizes the Village to license, tax, and regulate
"theatricals and other exhibitions, shows, and amusements" and "all places for eating or
amusement."

Sec. 11-42-5. The corporate authorities of each municipality may license, tax,
regulate, or prohibit hawkers, peddlers, pawnbrokers, itinerant merchants,
transient vendors of merchandise, theatricals and other exhibitions, shows, and

amusements and may license, tax, and regulate all places for eating or
amusement. No municipality may impose a tax under this Section, or impose
any other amusement or exhibition tax, on ticket Sales, membership fees, or any
other charges for attending exhibitions or attractions associated with a zoological
park authorized under Section 40 of the Cook County Forest Preserve District
Act, nor may any municipality impose a duty to collect a tax under this Section, or
any other amusement or exhibition tax, on any owner or operator of a zoological
park authorized under Section 40 of the Cook County Forest Preserve District
Act.

65 ILCS 5l1I-42-5. Section LL-42-5 does not set a limit on the amount of this tax.

Under a separate section of State law, the Village also may tax "athletic contests

and exhibitions carried on for gain" based on gross receipts from admission ticket sales.

Sec. 11-54-1. The corporate authorities of each municipality may license, tax,
and regulate all athletic contests and exhibitions carried on for gain. This tax shall
be based on the gross receipts derived from the sale of admission tickets, but the
tax shall not exceed 3% of the gross receipts. No municipality may impose a tax
under this Section, or impose any other amusement or exhibition tax, on ticket
sales, membership fees, or any other charges for attending exhibitions or
attractions associated with a zoological park authorized under Section 40 of the
Cook County Forest Preserve District Act, nor may any municipality impose a

duty to collect a tax under this Section, or any other amusement or exhibition tax,
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on any owner or operator of a zoological park authorized under Section 40 of the
Cook County Forest Preserve District Act.

65 ILCS SllL-l4-L. Section 11-õ4-1 sets a limit on this tax of a rate not to exceed 3

percent of the gross receipts. It is our understanding that the Village is not currently
considering a tax under Section 11-54-1 on athletic contests and exhibitions.

B. Villase's Current Licensine Reeulations

The Village currently requires a person to obtain a license and pay an annual
license fee to conduct public amusements or operate places of amusement, but the
Village does not impose a tax on admission fees. The ViIage's licensing requirement for
places of amusement extends to, among other things, public athletic events, theatrical
performances, movies, concerts, dances, pool or billiard halls, and bowling alleys.

Attached are two alternative draft ordinances establishing a tax on admission
sales for amusements in the Village. The first alternative is an ordinance that would
establish an 'Amusement Tax" applicable to any public entertainment in the Village at
which an admission fee is charged. The second alternative is an ordinance that would
establish a "Cinema Tax" applicable only to movie theaters within the Village. This
memorandum summarizes the contents of both draft ordinances and identifies some of
the issues that the Village may consider in analyzing the ordinances and proposed

taxes.

C. Draft Ordinances Imposine Amusement Tax

We have prepared two ordinances for your consideration. The first ordinance
would impose a tax broadly on admission fees paid for various events. This tax would
be somewhat parallel to the Village's current licensing regulations. The second

ordinance is focused on a tax applicable to movie theater tickets.

1. General Amusement Tax Ordinance

The draft Amusement Tax ordinance would impose a tax on a "production,
entertainment, performance, or exhibition that is open to the general public and for
which an admission fee is charged." The tax can be calculated in more than one way.
We have shown the tax, just for example, as a percentage of the gross receipts
generated by admission fees. It is our opinion that the Village also could impose a tax
at a fixed amount, such as 26þ per ticket for example.

Similarly to the Village's current regulations and licensing structure for
amusements, this tax would apply to various amusements including movies, live
theater productions, concerts, public speakers, and other types of shows and
entertainment. The tax would apply only to productions and events that are open to

t
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the general public and for which tickets are sold or admission is charged. (Note that
the draft ordinance does not include restaurants.)

The Amusement Tax primarily would affect businesses in the Village that
regularly engage in the business of selling tickets to amusements. There currently may
be only one such business in the Village-the La Grange Theatre. The tax also would
apply to certain special events. For example, if a business or organization hosts a

public concert, lecture, film festival, play, or other performance in the Village, the tax
would apply to revenue generated by ticket sales or admission fees for the event. The
draft ordinance does include exemptions for events that are held by, or solely for the
benefit of, charitable organizations and for amateur productions and events such as

community theater productions, schools concerts and plays.

2. Cinema Tax

The draft Cinema Tax ordinance would impose a tax only on the ticket sales of
movie theaters and other cinematic exhibitions. Again, the tax can be calculated in
more than one way, and we have shown it as a percentage of the gross ticket sales

receipts just for example.

To our knowledge, the La Grange Theatre is the only existing business that
would be affected by the Cinema Tax. The tax would apply equally, however, to any
movie theater that may be established in the Village in the future. The tax also would
apply to movie showings or film festivals conducted outside of a movie theater, if the
event is open to the general public and an admission fee is charged. As with the
Amusement Tax, the draft ordinance exempts events conducted by or solely for the

benefit of charitable organizations and amateur movie showings.

+
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VILLAGE OF I"A GRANGE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 36
OF THE I"A GRANGE CODE OF ORDINANCES

REGARDING AMUSEMENT TAXES

WHEREAS, the Village of La Grange is authorized by Section LL-42-6 of the
Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS 6lll-42-5, to license, tax, and regulate theatricals,
exhibitions, sho\Ã/s, amusements, and places for amusement, among other things; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange
have determined that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Village to impose
a new tax on amusements and places for amusement within the Village as provided in
this Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of La Grange, Cook County and State of lllinois, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this
Ordinance as the findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Amendment of Code Chapter 36. Chapter 36 of the La Grange
Code of Ordinances, titled "Taxation," is hereby amended to add new Sections 36.70
through 36.78 as follows:

AmusementTax

Section 36.70 Definitions

For the purposes of Sections 36.70 through 36.78, the following definitions apply
unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning:

ADMISS/ON FEES: Fees, charges, or payments made to purchase a ticket or
otherwise to enter or obtain admission to a place or event.

AMUSEMENI: Any production, entertainment, performance, or exhibition that is
open to the general public and for which an admission fee is charged. The term
does not include (i) any amateur productions or events or (ii) any production or
event conducted by or for the sole and exclusive benefit of a charitable
organization.

GROSS RECEIPTS: The considerat¡on received, valued in money, whether
received in money or otheruvise, for admission fees to amusements or places for
amusement.

OWNER Any person having an ownership interest in, or conducting the
Operation of, an amusement or place for amusement, or any person who allows

0,
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another person or entity to conduct an amusement or place for amusement on
the owner's property, by agreement or othenrise.

PERSON: Any natural individual, firm, partnership, association, joint stock
company, joint venture, public or private corporation, limited liability company,
club, fraternal organization, or a receiver, executor, trustee, conservator or other
representative appointed by order of any court.

PLACE FOR AMUSEMENT: Any public place, or place where the public is
admitted, where an admission fee is charged for the privilege of viewing or
attending one or more amusements.

Section 36.71 Tax lmposed

There is hereby levied and imposed on owners of places for amusement
a tax at the rate of [one] percent of gross receipts received by the owner
of a place for amusement on or after 2012

The owner of a place for amusement may collect an amount from persons
who pay admission fees at the place for amusement equal to the tax
imposed on the owner by this Section.

The tax levied by this Section must be paid in addition to any and all other
taxes and charges.

lf admission fees are paid on credit, then the owner will be liable for
payment of the tax imposed by this Section on the date the owner
receives payment for the sale.

Section 36.72 Books And Records; lnspection; Gontents

The Village s Finance Director or Treasurer, or any person designated by them
as a deputy or representative, may enter the premises of any place for
amusement for inspection, examination, copying, and auditing of books and

records including but not limited to lllinois retailers' occupation tax returns and

lllinois service occupation tax returns filed with the lllinois Department of
Revenue, in order to effectuate the proper administration of the tax imposed by
Section 36.71, and to assure the enforcement of the collection of the tax imposed

þy Section 36.71. To the extent reasonably possible, the Village's
representatives will schedule entries in a manner that is least disruptive to the
business of the place for amusement.

It is unlawful for any person to prevent, hinder, or interfere with the Village's
Finance Director or Treasurer or any of their duly designated deputies or
representatives in the discharge of their duties pursuant to this Section. Every
owner is required to keep accurate and complete books and records to which the
Village Finance Director and Treasurer and their deputies and representatives
will have full access at all times, which records must include a daily sheet
showing the amount of gross receipts received during that day.

3.

4.
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Reporting; Transmittal Of Tax Revenue By Owner;
Delinquency

1

Section 36.73

(b)

The owner or owners of each place for amusement must file tax returns
showing the gross receipts received during each calendar month period
on forms prescribed by the Village's Finance Director. A return for each
calendar month is due on or before the first day of the second month afrer
the taxes have been collected (for example, the return for January is due
on or before March 1, the return for February is due on or before April 1,

and so on). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the owner of the place for
amusement is allowed to file lllinois retailers' occupation tax and lllinois
service occupation tax returns with the lllinois Department of Revenue at
intervals that are greater than monthly, then that owner will be allowed to
file tax returns for the tax imposed by Section 36.71 with the Village at the
same greater intervals. At the time of the filing of a tax return, the owner
must pay to the Village Finance Director all taxes due for the period to
which the tax return applies. Acceptance by the Village of any amount
tendered in payment of the tax is without prejudice to any claim, demand,
or right to account for any deficiency of taxes paid or owed by the owner,
manager, or operator.

lf for any reason any tax due pursuant to Section 36.71 is not paid when
due, then penalties and interest thereon will be imposed in accordance
with the provisions of Section 36.78.

Every owner filing tax returns pursuant to this Section must pay to the
Village, at the time of filing such return, the full amount of the tax imposed
by Section 36.71,|ess only a commission of one percent of the amount of
the tax, which the owner is allowed to retain to reimburse the owner for
the expenses incurred in keeping records, billing, preparing, and filing
returns, remitting the tax, and supplying data to the Village at the Village's
request. No commission may be claimed or retained by an owner for
taxes not timely paid to the Village.

Section 36.74 Transmittal Of Excess Tax Collections

The following are considered excess tax collections:

(a) any amount collected on a sale not subject to the tax imposed
pursuant to Section 36.71, but which amount is purported to be
the collection of tax imposed pursuant to Section 36.71; or

any amount collected on a sale greater than the amount of the tax
imposed pursuant to Section 36.71.

2

3.

1

2. lf an owner collects an excess tax and for any reason does not return the
excess tax to the purchaser who paid the excess tax before the owner
files a return for the period in which the amount was paid, then the owner
must account for the amount of that excess tax collection and every other
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such excess tax collection and pay that amount to the Village, along with
any tax properly collected pursuant to Section 36.71.

Section 36.75 Registration

Every owner maintaining a place
the office of the Village Clerk by
an owner, whichever is later.

in the Village must register with
201_-, or the date of becoming

for amusement

Section 36.76 Collection

Whenever any person fails to pay the tax imposed by Section 36.71, the Village
Attorney, on request of the Village Manager, shall bring or cause to be brought
an action to enforce the payment of said tax on behalf of the Village in any court
of com petent jurisdiction.

Section 36.77 Suspension or Revocation of Licenses; Opportunity
for Hearing

The Village Manager may suspend or revoke all Village licenses held by any
owner who has failed to pay, or willfully avoided the payment of, any tax imposed
by Section 36.71, in accordance with the following provisions:

1. The owner may request a hearing before the Village Manager on the
suspension or revocation of a Village license pursuant to this Section by
filing a written request for such hearing with the office of the Village Clerk
within seven days after the date of the notice of license suspension or
revocation.

2. Upon receiving a request for a hearing, the Village must schedule the
hearing for a date not more than 21 days after the Village received the
request. The Village must notifo the owner of the time, date, and location
of the hearing by telephone, by mail, or in person as the circumstances
require, not less than 7 days in advance of the hearing.

3. After reviewing all relevant evidence presented at the hearing, the Village
Manager shall determine, based on a preponderance of the evidence,
whether lawful authority exists for the suspension or revocation of any
Village licenses pursuant to this Section. The Village Manager must
record this determination and the basis for the determination in writing,
and must provide the owner with a copy of the wrítten determination.

4. No suspension or revocation of any license under this Section may or will
be deemed or applied to release or discharge the owner from civil liability
for the payment of the tax or from prosecution for any offense giving rise
to the suspension or revocation.

Section 36.78 Penalties

I Any person found guilty of violating, disobeying, omitting, neglecting, or
refusing to comply with or unlawfully resisting or opposing the

4 ü
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enforcement of any of the provisions of Sections 36.71 through 36.78,
except when otherwise specifically provided, on conviction thereof shall
be punished by a fine of not less than $200.00 nor more than $750.00 for
the first offense and not less than $500.00 nor more than $750.00 for the
second and each subsequent offense in any 180-day period.

2. ln addition to any other penalty that may be imposed, any tax due
pursuant to Section 36.71 that is not paid when due is subject to the
following penalties and interest:

(a) A penalty of 7.5% added to the amount of any tax unpaid and
uncollected; and

(b) An interest rate of 1.25o/o added per month to the amount of any
tax unpaid and uncollected.

3. Each day on which a person continues any violation of Sectíons 36.71
through 36.78, or permits any such violation to exist after notification
thereof, constitutes a separate and distinct offense.

Any owner subjected to the penalties provided for by this Section will not
be discharged or released from the payment of any tax due.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance will be in full force and effect after
its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law.

PASSED this 

- 

day of 2QL_,

AYES

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this day of 20t_.

Elizabeth Asperger, Village President

ATTEST

Thomas Morsch, Village Clerk

4.
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VILI,AGE OF LA GRANGE

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 36
OF THE LA GRANGE CODE OF ORDINANCES

REGARDING CINEMA TAXES

WHEREAS, the Village of La Grange is authorized by Section IL-42-6 of the
Illinois Municipal Code, 65 ILCS S|LI-42-5, to license, tax, and regulate theatricals,
exhibitions, shows, amusements, and places for amusement, among other things; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of La Grange
have determined that it is appropriate and in the best interests of the Village to impose
a new tax on cinemas and cinematic exhibitions within the Village as provided in this
Ordinance;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the President and Board of Trustees
of the Village of La Grange, Cook County and State of lllinois, as follows:

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this
Ordinance as the findings of the President and Board of Trustees.

Section 2. Amendment of Code Chapter 36. Chapter 36 of the La Grange
Code of Ordinances, titled "Taxation," is hereby amended to add new Sections 36.70
through 36.78 as follows:

Cinema Tax

Section 36.70 Definitions

For the purposes of Sections 36.70 through 36.78, the following deflnitions apply
unless the context clearly indicates or requires a different meaning:

ADMISSION FEES: Fees, charges, or payments made to purchase a ticket or
othenruise to enter or obtain admission to a place or event.

CINEMA: Any public place, or place where the public is admitted, where an
admission fee is charged for the privilege of viewing one or more motion pictures
or other cinematic exhibitions. The term does not include (i) any amateur
cinematic exhibition or (ii) any cinematic exhibition conducted by, or for the sole
and exclusive benefit of, a charitable organization.

GROSS RECEIPTS: The consideration received, valued in money, whether
received in money or othenruise, for admission fees to cinemas.

OWNER: Any person having an ownership interest in, or conducting the
operation of, a cinema, or any person who allows another person or entity to
conduct a cinema on the owner's property, by agreement or othenrise.

I
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PERSON: Any natural individual, firm, partnership, assoc¡ation, joint stock
company, joint venture, public or private corporation, limited liability company,
club, fraternal organization, or a receiver, executor, trustee, conservator or other
representative appointed by order of any court.

Section 36.71 Tax lmposed

There is hereby levied and imposed on owners of cinemas a tax at the
rate of [one] percent of gross receipts received by the owner of a cinema
on or after 2012.

The owner of a cinema may collect an amount from persons who pay
admission fees at the cinema equal to the tax imposed on the owner by
this Section.

The tax levied by this Section must be paid in addition to any and all other
taxes and charges.

lf admission fees are paid on credit, then the owner will be liable for
payment of the tax imposed by this Section on the date the owner
receives payment for the sale.

Section 36.72 Books And Records; lnspection; Gontents

The Village's Finance Director or Treasurer or any person designated by them as
a deputy or representative, may enter the premises of any cinema for inspection,
examination, copying, and auditing of books and records including but not limited
to lllinois retailers' occupation tax returns and lllinois service occupation tax
returns filed with the lllinois Department of Revenue, in order to effectuate the
proper administration of the tax imposed by Section 36.71, and to assure the
enforcement of the collection of the tax imposed by Section 36.71 . To the extent
reasonably possible, the Village's representatives will schedule entries in a

manner that is least disruptive to the business of the cinema.

It is unlawful for any person to prevent, hinder, or interfere with the Village's
Finance Director or Treasurer or any of their duly designated deputies or
representatives in the discharge of their duties pursuant to this Subsection.
Every owner is required to keep accurate and complete books and records to
which the Village Finance Director and Treasurer and their deputies and
representatives will have full access at all times, which records must include a

daily sheet showing the amount of gross receipts received during that day.

Section 36.73 Reporting; Transmittal Of Tax Revenue By Owner;
Delinquency

The owner or owners of each cinema must file tax returns showing the
gross receipts received during each calendar month period on forms
prescribed by the Village's Finance Director. A return for each calendar
month is due on or before the first day of the second month after the
taxes have been collected (for example, the return for January is due on
or before March 1, the return for February is due on or before April 1, and

I
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so on). Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the owner of the cinema is
allowed to file lllinois retailers' occupation tax and lllinois service
occupation tax returns with the lllinois Department of Revenue at intervals
that are greater than monthly, then that owner will be allowed to file tax
returns for the tax imposed by Section 36.71 with the Village at the same
greater intervals. At the time of the filing of a tax return, the owner must
pay to the Village Finance Director all taxes due for the period to which
the tax return applies. Acceptance by the Village of any amount tendered
in payment of the tax is without prejudice to any claim, demand or right to
account for any deficiency of taxes paid or owed by the owner, manager,
or operator.

lf for any reason any tax due pursuant to Section 36.71 is not paid when
due, then penalties and interest thereon will be imposed in accordance
with the provisions of Section 36.78.

3. Every owner filing tax returns pursuant to this Section must pay to the
Village, at the time of filing such return, the full am ount of the tax imposed
by Section 36.71, less only a commission of one percent of the amount of
the tax, which the owner is allowed to retain to reimburse the owner for
the expenses incurred in keeping records, billing, preparing and filing
returns, remitting the tax, and supplying data to the Village at the Village's
request. No commission may be claimed or retained by an owner for
taxes not timely paid to the Village.

Section 36.74 Transmittal Of Excess Tax Gollections

1. The following are considered excess tax collections:

(a) any amount collected on a sale not subject to the tax imposed
pursuant to Section 36.71, but which amount is purported to be
the collection of tax imposed pursuant to Section 36.71; or

(b) any amount collected on a sale greater than the amount of the tax
imposed pursuant to Section 36.71.

lf an owner collects an excess tax and for any reason does not return the
excess tax to the purchaser who paid the excess tax before the owner
files a return for the period in which the amount was paid, then the owner
must account for the amount of that excess tax collection and every other
such excess tax collection and pay that amount to the Village, along with
any tax properly collected pursuant to Section 36.71.

Section 36.75 Registration

Every owner maintaining a cinema in the Village must register with the office of
the Village Clerk by
whichever is later.

2012, or the date of becoming an owner,

2
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Section 36.76 Collection

Whenever any person fails to pay the tax imposed by Section 36.71, the Village
Attorney, on request of the Village Manager, shall bring or cause to be brought
an action to enforce the payment of said tax on behalf of the Village in any court
of com petent jurisdiction.

Section 36.77 Suspension or Revocation of Licenses; Opportunity
for Hearing

The Village Manager may suspend or revoke all Village licenses held by any
owner who has failed to pay, or willfully avoided the payment of any tax imposed
by Section 36.71, in accordance with the following provisions:

The owner may request a hearing before the Village Manager on the
suspension or revocation of a Village license pursuant to this Section by
filing a written request for such hearing with the office of the Village Clerk
within seven days after the date of the notice of license suspension or
revocation.

Upon receiving a request for a hearing, the Village must schedule the
hearing for a date not more than 21 days after the Village received the
request. The Village must noti! the owner of the time, date, and location
of the hearing by telephone, by mail, or in person as the circumstances
require, not less than seven days in advance of the hearing.

3. After reviewing all relevant evidence presented at the hearing, the Village
Manager shall determine, based on a preponderance of the evidence,
whether lawful authority exists for the suspension or revocation of any
Village licenses pursuant to this Section. The Village Manager must
record this determination and the basis for the determination in writing,
and must provide the owner with a copy of the written determination.

4. No suspension or revocation of any license under this Section may or will
be deemed or applied to release or discharge the owner from civil liability
for the payment of the tax or from prosecution for any offense giving rise
to the suspension or revocation.

Section 36.78 Penalties

Any person found guilty of violating, disobeying, omitting, neglecting, or
refusing to comply with or unlawfully resisting or opposing the
enforcement of any of the provisions of Sections 36.71 through 36.78,
except when otherwise specifically provided, on conviction thereof shall
be punished by a fine of not less than $200.00 nor more than $750.00 for
the first offense, and not less than $500.00 nor more than $750.00 for the
second and each subsequent offense in any 180 day period.

ln addition to any other penalty that may be imposed, any tax due
pursuant to Section 36.71 that is not paid when due is subject to the
following penalties and interest:

2
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(a) A penalty of 7.5o/o added to the amount of any tax unpaid and
uncollected; and

(b) An interest rate of 1.25% added per month to the amount of any
tax unpaid and uncollected.

Each day on which a person continues any violation of Sections 36.71
through 36.78, or permits any such violation to exist after notification
thereol constitutes a separate and distinct offense.

Any owner subjected to the penalties provided for by this Section will not
be discharged or released from the payment of any tax due.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Ordinance will be in full force and effect after
its passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form in the manner provided by law.

PASSED this 

- 

day of 20L2.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED this day of 2012.

Elizabeth Asperger, Village President

ATTEST:

Thomas Morsch, Village Clerk
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
Administrative Offices

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT

TO

RE:

FROM

DATE:

Village President, Village Clerk,
Board of Trustees, and Village Attorney

Robert J. Pilipiszyn, Village Manager

June ll,2012

FY 2OI2.I3 VILLAGE BUDGET 2.0

OVERVIEW

At the Village Board meeting held on April 9,2012, it was the consensus of the Village Board to
table the adoption of the resolution approving the FY 2012-13 Five-Year Operating and Capital
Improvement Budget due to the defeat of the proposed 1.0olo increase in the municipal utility
taxes for gas and electricity which would have become effective July l, 2012.

The defeat of the proposed 1.0% increase in the utility tax was not anticipated based on
prevailing comments from the Village Board throughout the budget development process
("grudgingly support") and the subsequent adoption of the municipal utility tax on
telecommunications. The defeat of the proposal created an annual shortfall of revenue of
$175,000 per year. Absent Village Board direction as to what progr¿rms, services or
expenditures should be cut to offset that shortfall, and given that the start of the new fiscal year
was quickly approaching, staff revised the final FY 2012-13 budget by postponing the proposed
utility tax increase on gas and electricity to FY 2013-14.

On April 23, the Village Board approved a budget for FY 2012-13 with this revision. That
approval was conditioned on the expectation that a continued budget discussion would be
convened in the near future. At that time, President Asperger asked the Trustees to submit their
individual thoughts in advance of the workshop, as to what services and expenses should be cut,
so that they could be evaluated for consideration by the Village Board as a whole.

COST CONTAINMENT PLAN

To provide additional context for the continued budget discussion, we felt it would be helpful to
summarize the steps taken by the Village over the past several years to reduce expenditures in

Èt,
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-Page2response to recessionary conditions. The budget reductions enumerated below are limited to

expenditures within the General Fund.

Annual One-Time

FY 2009-10

Village's management team initiated steps to reduce operating
expenses below authorized budget levels to curb spending

Reduced transfer to Capital Projects Fund by $100,000 ($1M to
$eooK)

FY 2010-11

Personnel Expense Reductions

Maintain three F/T vacancies across Police (0), Fire (1), &
DPw (2)

Eliminated P/T position in Community Development

Second DPW position vacant, hired P/T meter reader to fill
vacancy llllltl due to early retirement of Police Dept. Lt.

Second FFÆaramedic position vacant for approx. 6 mos. due to
resignation & retirement

Reduction in hours for Blding. Inspector, effective llllll
Salary freeze for VM (no general wage adjustment or merit
increase)

N on-P er s o nnel Exp ens e Re duc tio ns

Reduced transfer to Capital Projects Fund by $200,000 ($900K
to $700K) resulting in elimination of newly implemented sewer
lining program 90K & manhole replacement program 35K; also
reduced annual maintenance programs: sidewalks (50K to l5K);
sewer televising (35K to 25K); & crack fill program (25K to
20K); & reduced funding for future infrastructure projects

No annual transfer to ERF

Extended replacement cycle for squad cars from 2 to 3-years;
one-time trial

Reduced funding for PT Police Officer Program from 90K to
45K

Eliminated "canopy of lights"

N/A

100,000

275,000

25,000

5,000

200,000

45,000

75,000

50,000

5,000

275,000

75,000

" 
{*}'

t,

10,000



FY 20tt-12

P ers onnel Expens e Reductions

Non-union employee general wage adjustment reduced from 10,000
2.75% to 2.0o/o

Negotiated reduced contractual increase wÆire Union from 3.0% 15,000
to 2.3Yo &, l% increase contract extension in FY 2013-14,in
exchange for no layoff provision

Negotiated reduced contractual increase dDPW Union from 15,000
2.75%to2.0Yo

Increased employee contributions for health insurance for 50,000
single/family from free/7.5o/oto IÙYo of total premiums; &
increased employee co-pays to reduce insurance renewal from
lSYoto budgeted 7.5%

Salary freeze for the Village's management team - Assistant 25,000
Village Manager, Finance Director, Community Development
Director, Director of Public Works, Police Chief and Fire Chief (
no general wage adjustment or merit)

Salary freeze for Village Manager (no general wage adjustment 10,000
or merit) second consecutive year

Eliminated P/T positions in Finance & Water

Reduced Bldg. Inspector hours from 75 bi-weekly to 60 Q0%)

Non- P er s onne I Exp e ns e Re duc t ions

Eliminated YMCA membership & EAP

Conduct tree wrapping every other year, rather than arurually

Village Board did not approve GIS, included in budget

FY 2012-13

P ers onnel Expens e Reductions

Increased employee contribution for health insurance from 10%
to I2Yo of total premiums

Salary freeze for Village Manager (no general wage adjustment
or merit increase) 3'o consecutive year

Executive Committee Report
RE: FY 2012-13 Village Budget 2.0

June I1,2012 - Page 3

Annual One-Time

20,000

40,000

15,000

10,000

7,500

5,000

25,000

10,000

,È
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Total Budget Reductions Year-to-Date

GRAND TOTAL

Executive Committee Report
RE: FY 2012-13 Village Budget 2.0

June 11,2012-Page4
Annual One-Time

897.500 500.000

$1,397,500

The cost containment plan reflected the Village Board's to maintain funding for
þieh quality core services delivery and , it has been the
Village's intent up to this point to not affect and to restore the vacated full-time positions
once financial conditions improve to a sustainable level. This recovery plan was further
endorsed by the Village Board in discussing and approving mid-term contract changes with the
Fire and Public V/orks Unions, which included "no layoff'provisions.

The Village's cost containment plan includes the commitment !o continue to evaluate staff
effrciencies and staffrng needs thróugh.agþn, techno

In addition, we initiated, with support of the Village Board, a consolidation effort involving
public safety services. A study was performed across FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12 which
concluded that sufficient compatibility existed between the Villages of La Grange, La Grange
Park and W'estem Springs to share public safety services. Proposals for a technical study to
create a combined dispatch facility between the three study participants are cunently being
evaluated. Should a combined dispatch facility be implemented, a natural progression to merge
police and fire services can be expected to follow.

In conclusion, the Village's cost containment efforts to date have resulted in expenditure

annual tax was 2.3o/o (4.1%;0.1o/o and2.7Yo), and the onl¡¡ increase in
was a 0to FY 2010-11. A 1.0olo increase in the V illage's

tax was tn 2009-10 as a necessary revenue enhancement in the fufure
(effective FY 20I2-I3) to stabilize Village finances over the long term, but it has not been fully
enacted.

FRAMEWORK - CONTINUED BUDGET DISCUSSION

Attached you will find two sets of spreadsheets - one labeled "Potential Non-Personnel
Expense Reductions" and the other labeled "Potential Personnel Expense Reductions". The
spreadsheets are divided into four columns labeled as follows: Budget Activity, Cost Analysis,
Operational Impact and Staff Comments.

Budget Activit_v

Within the Budget Activity column, we have created four sub-headings in roughly ascending
order of financial, operational and policy implications. Those headings are as follows:

þ
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Miscellaneous Expenditures; Programs and Services; Personnel; and Structural Changes. Under
each of the headings, we have listed potential budget expenses which if eliminated or reduced
could result in a cost savings to the Village.

At President Asperger's direction to the Village Board, the identified budget activities are a
combination of Trustee-generated proposals/concepts raised during the budget development
process and expenses identified by staff over the course of time in shaping the cost containment
plan The list is not meant to be all-inclusive or exhaustive. Instead, it is intended to facilitate
the Village Board's discussion

Finally, the definition of each budget activity is straightforward with the exception of reductions
in staff. "Reduce" can either be by attrition or involuntary.

Cost Analvsís

We generally evaluated the budget activities beginning as a gross cost within the budget,
followed by what expsnses if any would still be or reasonably expected to continue to be
incurred by the Village, to arrive at the net cost savings.

Many of these measures are one time, lump sum expense savings. While this may help with the
now-projected deficit for FY 2012-13, it does not address fiscal stress related to reducing
recurring expenses.

Operational Impact

This column is intended to provide the Village Board with an objective staff assessment as to
how the expense reduction would impact operations. One-time expense reductions generally
result in very little impact.

For those expenditure reductions involving Village services or staff, we have done our best to
describe how we could continue to provide some level of service to residents.

Staf Comments

This is an opportunity to provide the Village Board with qualitative information, including policy
analysis and recommendations where appropriate.

With respect
more appropri

to personnel expenses we would like to make some general statements that are

atëÎ@icated in a staff reportratherth@

O The Village has operated for many years as a lean organization. We do not rapidly
expandorcontractiik"th.private,""io,'Therei@ement''.Amaþrity
of our employees work literally "on the street". V/e also have working supervisors up to
and including Department Heads. Consequently, we are of the opinion that staffrng
levels should not be reduced.

î
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@ Department Heads are concerned about service de
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livery should additional staff cuts be

made. The two issues are: to effecti deliver the core service (how well
something is done);
staff and additional

response with less

required to to increased citizen criticism
for not meeting service expectations)

J Should a reduction in workforce be an area of interest to the Village Board, then we need

to be mindful that every Village employee provides a valuable service. Police Officers,
Firefighter/Paramedics, Public Works employees and Community Development
Department inspectors are most visible. Less visible yet equally critical to daily
operations are technical and support staff.

The adopted budget anticipates one retirement in FY 2013-14 with no replacement.
Should making a permanent reduction in workforce be aî area of interest to the Village
Board, then we need to be mindful of this budget assumption in order to have a net effect
on the budget.

Finally, as information for the Village Board, we anticipate one, maybe two voluntary
separations this fiscal year.

Cutting staff, whether first-line field or administrative positions, would result in the following
general impacts:

operational burden would be shifted onto remaining staff including supervisory
personnel and the management team

depending on which positions and how many positions, services to residents and

support to the Village Board will be impacted, at a minimum in the form of a

delayed response

depending on service levels desired by the Village Board, cutting full-trme
positions may still require some amount of operational support such as part-time
staff, use of consultants or contractual services, thereby mitigating cost savings.

4.
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Morale has been adversely affected by the continued budget discussion.

-..¡#
iõãffirnent plan is evaporating, and is being replaced by fear and anxiety

Buy-in to the
Retention of

cost
staff, a

including members of the management team, may become an issue. In addition, there may bea
ln culture which has prided itself on customer service. The consequence

---.-_a in the delivery of Village servlces.

Should budget reductions involving staffing levels be an area of interest to the Village Board, we

would request general direction and the opportunity to identify specific position reductions.

È
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At the l|day 14,2012 Yillage Board meeting, it was the consensus of the Village Board to table
the purchase of new police squad cars pending further discussion regarding the FY 20t2-13
budget. At that time, the recommendation to return to replacing squad cars on a two-year cycle
was based on the following factors: increased maintenance costs in year 3 of ownership,
(approximately $24,000 in total; approximately $15,000 over budget), more downtime for repairs
and maintenance impacting department operations, reliability/safety concerns, and officer
confidence in driving/operating the vehicle under emergency conditions.

It was also based on an analysis comparing budget actual purchases and maintenance
expenditures over the past five years (last two-year replacement cycle, and current three-year
cycle). While a total net savings of $9,000 was identified, we believed that this savings was
misleading because the cunent trade-in value was unusually high for a three-year old vehicle.
Using historical data as a constant, the net savings between a three-year cycle and a two-year
cycle decreased to approximately $3,000; a savings we thought to be diminimus when taking
into consideration the qualitative factors expressed by Chief Holub.

In order to determine the most economical replacement cycle of squad cars, staff performed an
analysis comparing the estimated cost of replacing squad cars at a 2, 3 and 4 year interval over
an extended l2-year period. The analysis is not intended to be an all-inclusive life-cycle cost
analysis for the pu{pose of determining which vehicle provides the best combination of features
compared to overall cost, but rather an estimate of the cost of replacing and maintaining the
squad cars over varying periods of time.

Replacement costs are based upon the purchase of the new Chevy Caprice Police Pursuit Vehicle
(PPV) which is more expensive than the discontinued Ford Crown Victoria model. As the
Village has no actual experience with the Chevy Caprice PPV, maintenance costs are based upon
the most recent experience with the Ford Crown Victoria squad cars over the 2-year replacement
cycle during FY 2007-08 to FY 2008-09 and the most recent 3-year replacement cycle from FY
2009-10 to FY 20lI-I2. Maintenance costs are estimated to further increase in year four due to
additional wear of the vehicles. Trade-in values are estimated and anticipated to decrease as the
vehicles are retained for an additional year(s). It is important to note that the trade-in values of
the squad cars are significantly less than passenger cars due to the extensive/excessive wear on
the engines.

Using cost of ownership as the principal determining factor, we could reconìmend replacement
of the squad cars on a 3-year cycle due to the estimated cost $15,000
gg"ullv. Atthough the@ffit of the squad cars on a jl-year cycle results in an
savings of $5,000 annuallv, the estimatecl downtime for the vehicles in year four clue to
additional required repair and maintenance is projected to have a negative impact on department
operations.

At this
squad cars wi e

Police Department
return to the Village

7
,"fro
\0

your concurrence to proceed with thewe ask for

Board for approval on a request to purchase

te



@

Executive Committee Report
RE: FY 2012-13 Village Budget 2.0

June I1,2012 - Page 8

In addition to expense reduction, we continue to evaluate potential revenue enhancements.
Again, to provide context, we thought it would be helpful to review what has been
doneþroposed over the last several years.

Amusement Tax

In 2009, the Village Board discussed the concept of imposing an amusement tax as a means by
which to service debt or secure loan repayment for the theater renovation project. Based on
ticket sales, it was estimated that a 50 cent ticket tax would generate approximately $80,000 in
gross revenue each year, or approximately $800,000 in gross revenue over a ten-year deblloan
repayment schedule. At that time, it was the consensus of the Village Board not to adopt an
amusement tax for the following reasons:

Keep the theater affordable for children and families

Wanted to see how the theater would operate after the renovation project without having
the customer base being influenced by pricing changes.

Studio licensing based on gross receipts including taxes.

Concern that total cost of ticket would adversely affect marketplace position among
similarly-situated sub-first run theaters.

No policy consensus as to the use of the tax proceeds - form of loan repayment or
source of funding for economic development.

The amusement tax concept has been regularly referenced in the budget message as a potential
future source of sustainable funding for the Village's economic development efforts over the
long term. In addition to the theater, we have discussed the implications of an amusement tax
upon an existing business who may offer entertainment from time-to-time, and the impact upon
attracting new businesses with entertainment interests.

As part of the budget process, a suggestion was made that the Village should consider the
amusement tax as a funding source for general Village operations in lieu of an increase in the
utility tax, because its impact would not be as localized assuming a majority of theater patrons
are non-residents.

'We 
offer the following comments on that suggestion:

We believe that some of the reasons identified by the Village Board in 2009 to not
impose an amusement tax still apply today.

I
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still keep the general admission price below $6.00 may not necessarily undermine or
adversely affect the limiting factors previously considered by the Village Board, but we
should explore the potential impact on theater operations anew to examine possible
unintended consequences.

Village staff recently conducted the annual meeting with the theater owners to review
operations over the past year. While more information will be forthcoming under a

separate memorandum, stated succinctly, the theater has experienced an increase in
attendance, with a corresponding increase in revenues to cover the increased cost of
(expanded) operations since the renovation project.

We should also explore the potential impact thaf a proposed amusement tax would have
on other businesses, existing and desired.

As a matter of tax policy, we would continue to recommend the use of amusement tax
proceeds towards economic development, rather than general Village operations.

If the tax policy objective is to consider revenue enhancements which shift a majority of the tax
burden onto non-residents, then examining an increase in the non-home rule sales tax may be a
more effective source of generating revenue for Village operations.

FISCAL OBJECTIVES

Financial Policies

In the course of the continued budget discussion, it may be appropriate for the Village Board to
examine whether a basic change in financial policy is at issue. Is it the Village Board's
sentiment that the cost of Villãge govemment is the primary/sole determining faãtor in the
delivery of core services? This would be a shift in policy direction, and clarification is required
in order to assist staff in managing customer service expectations.

Financial Planninq

Staff is seeking consensus direction from the Village Board as to its financial planning objectives
as a result of this continued.discussion, as follows:

Short-term - Is it the Village Board's objective to eliminate the now-projected deficit of
$133,000 for FY 2012-13? (Assumes adoption of utility tax increase in FY 2013-14).

Long-term - Is it the Village Board's objective to eliminate the utility tax increase in
each year of the Village's five-year financial plan?

o
eÐ
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We have received conflicting direction conceming reserves, as we have heard a desire to
maintain a strong balance yet we have not been provided with the financial means by
which to re-build them.

PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION

We recommend that the Village Board consider a middle approach currently, as set forth
below, and then allow staff the opportunitv to continue to: with the
next budget develõpñãT cyclet(@ revenue of local
government revenues by the state);
increase from consideration within

defer , but not necessarily eliminate the utility tax
ve-year financial planning period. Should

economic conditions improve, it may be possible to defer the utility tax increase on an annual
basis. If conditions remain stagnant or backslide, then the Village Board can consider: further
expense reductions; enact the utility tax increase; or a combination of both.

Our preliminary recommendation involves expense reductions which do not directly reduce
programs or services effective with the adopted FY 2012-13 Village budget, which would result
in a projected surplus at the end of FY 2012-13 and add approximately $30,000 to General Fund
reserves, as follows:

No additional annual contributions to ERF for four
administrative vehicles; transfer allocation in ERF
for replacement of Administration vehicle back to
General Fund; retain Community Development
Department's administrative vehicles and replace
them on an as needed basis with available funds.

$ 33,500

Eliminate Residential Street Sign Replacement
Program; transfer budget allocation in Capital Projects
Fund to General Fund; replace signs and posts as

needed within existing Public Works line-item budget.
Sub-Total

$100,000

$133,500

1

2

J Reduce transfer to ERF by increasing reserve by one

additional year for all vehicles including police squad

cars at a3-year replacement interval.

$ 43,500 gross

$ 15,000 (less factor for add'I.

maint. on the squads)

S 28.500 net

GRAND TOTAL $162,000

To aid the Village Board in evaluating the preliminary staff recommendation and what that
package of expense reductions would look like on Village finances, attached you will find a
series of General Fund, Fund Balance Summary pages which reflect: the current budget as

adopted, inclusive of the utility tax increase effective in FY 2013-14 (Appendix A); the current

budget as adopted, exclusive of the utility tax increase over our five-year financial planning
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period (Appendix B); the current budget with staffs proposed amendments for FY 2012-13, and
deferring the utility tæc increase by one additional year to FY 2014-15 (Appendix C); and finally,
the current budget with staff s proposed amendments, exclusive of the utility tax increase over
our five-year financial planning period (Appendix D).

Department Heads
Andri Peterson, Assistant Village Manager

H:\cbenjamin\E)GCMEMO\FY20 I 2- I 3villgebudgeÉ.0.ecr.doc
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Village of La Grange

FY 20t2 - L3 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

6
I

1. Continued budget discussion,

demoralizing to staff given

S5oo,ooo in shared sacrifice.

Beginning to be viewed among Vlg

employees as a "broken promise".

DH's conducting damage control.

Conflicting direction from VB.

2. Concern with resident
perception re: public safety

3. Concern with employee

retention. Employees see dis-

investment by the Village Board.

We anticipate a change in

organizational culture.

4. Discussion runs counter to
pending personnel grants.

1. Minímum staffing requirements

& officer safety will need to be

evaluated; may become a Union

issue.

2. OT expenses anticipated to
increase.

3. Slower call handling & longer

response times anticipated.

4. Reduced patrol of residential

neighborhoods

5. Eliminate non-emergency

customer svc programs such as

vacation watch & vehicle lock-outs

6. Restructure or eliminate

S100,000 annual savings1. Reduce staff by one Police

Officer

PERSONNEL
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Village of La Grange

FY 2012 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL PERSON NEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

I

1. Continued budget discussion,

demoralizing to staff given

5500,000 in shared sacrifice.

Beginning to be viewed among Vlg

employees as a "broken promise".

DH's conducting damage control.

Conflicting direction from VB.

2. Concern with resident
perception re: public safety

3. Concern with employee

retention. Employees see dis-

investment by the Village Board.

We anticipate a change in

organizational culture.

4. Discussion runs counter to
pending personnel grants.

5. No layoff provision in Fire Union

contract thru 4/30h4

7. Eliminate discretionary
programs - crime prevent¡on,

DARE, citizens academy.

1. Minimum staffing requirements

& FF safety will need to be

evaluated; may become a Union

issue.

2. OI expenses antic¡pated to

increase.

3. Slower call handling & longer

response times anticipated.

4. Reduced response to calls for
mutualaid to be given & received.

S100,000 annual savings

1. Reduce staff by one Police

Officer (cont'.)

2. Reduce staff by one

FFlParamedic
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Village of La Grange

FY 20L2 - L3 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL PERSON N EL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS
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1. Continued budget discussion,

demoralizing to staff given

5500,000 in shared sacrifice.

Beginning to be viewed among Vlg

employees as a "broken promise:.

DH's conducting damage control.

Conflicting direction from VB.

2. Concern w/ employee

retention. Employees see dis-

investment by the Village Board

We anticipate a change in

organizational culture.

5. lncident mgmt. at the scene will
take longer, thus ant¡c¡pate

increased loss of property.

6. W¡ll need to restructure or

eliminate non-emergency

programs such as fire prevention

bureau & public education.

7. Officer development & training

willsuffer.

1. Reduction in services.

2. Delay in services (e.9. - snow

removal). Also, may alter two-

team operating model & call-in

procedures for snow removal, for
significant snow events.

s60,ooo

2. Reduce staff by one

FF/Paramedic (cont'.)

3. Reduce staff by one GUW

trEEilEUry mçr¡r¡mm srEfftrbr¡if¡iEmß
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POTENTIAL PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

s a

3. lncreased demand on dept'l
mgmt. to explain svc reduction(s)

to residents.

4. Less opportunity for training &
cross-training.

L. Continued budget discussion,

demoralizing to staff given

S500,000 in shared sacrifice.

Beginning to be viewed among Vlg

employees as a "broken promise".

DH's conducting damage control.

Conflicting direction from VB.

2. Concern with employee

retention. Employees see dis-

investment by the Village Board.

We anticipate a change in

orga nizational culture.

3. lncreased bldg activity noted

sínce e mid-March.

1. Reduced construction site

management.

2. Reduced property maintenance

enforcement

3. lncreased time for permit

issuance

4. Less responsive to homeowner

needs (scope of service &

timeliness)

S75,ooo

3. Reduce staff by one GUW

(cont'.)

4. Reduce staff by one insPector

Bilrt*IilEnfi¡tl @EW sÏEÍfrr¡miillr¡r¡

3'%



Village of La Grange

tY 20L2 - L3 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS
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5. Activity may prompt need for
3rd party svcs., thus reducíng net

savings

6. lncreased contractual costs for
plan reviews & inspections.

7. Reduced ability to address

drainage management concerns.

8. ln general, decreased abilitY to
respond to incidents

4. Reduce staff by one insPector

(cont'.)

E}.EilEfifirt @UEEE qffiI@ sl?.ffftEr¡nil!ffi

(Jr\



Village of La Grange

tY 20L2 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL PERSONN EL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS
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1. Significant change in policy

2. Significantly alters Vlg's position

w/in the marketplace

3. Mgmt. workload increases;

regular turnover; more supervisory

time

4. Limited commitment to Vlg;

reduced pride & ownership &
reduced customer svc levels.

5. Concern w/ loss of senior staff -

challenge will be retention.

6. These 2 business modelforms
do not work everywhere; more

adaptable in a pure residential

environment. ln contrast, LG has

many moving parts.

7. Would anticipate labor issues.

TBDÏBD

STRUCTURAL CHANGES

5. Conversion from FT to PT

workforce; or to contractual

workforce

mtumtfnml l¡tãFt¡ltEïtfffi srEftf¡¡rimillnr
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POTENTIAL PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

q
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1. Combined dispatch

arrangement to be studied; vendor

selection in progress

2. Shared police svcs. will be

natural pending successful

consolidation of dispatch

operations

3. Discussions re: shared fire
apparatus in progress. La Grange

leads w/not replacing its ladder

truck

1. ln progress, intent has been to
reduce command structure &

utilize cost savings to fund net
increase in body count. Enhance

svc. delivery in a way which is

budget neutral.

2. Shared svcs would be a better
time to examine net decrease in

public safety positions.

TBD

TBDTBD

TBD6. Public safety - shared svcs

7. Restructuring w/in Police &

Fire Depts.

@EMil tl?tT rìETtrE CEEI@ stEtftrI¡rär¡ìErilß
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Village of La Grange

FY 20L2 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL PERSONN EL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

q'
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1. Significant change in policy

2. Significantly alters Vlg's.

position within the marketplace.

The Village would be placed at a

competitive disadvantage as it
relates to overall compensation
package (wages & benefits).

4. Retention & recruitment of staff
will become an issue; including

management team.

5. Differential treatment between

Union & non-Union employees.

May encourage remaining non-

union employees to organize (e.g. -

Police Sgts.).

6. Fire Union contribution towards

monthly health insurance

premiums currently capped at

L2%.

3. Morale

8. Compensation & benefit

policies

) Limit total salary increase

to CPI

à Further increase emPloYee

contribution towards monthly

health insurance premiums

@æ@ @EE srEFrrffiñãriÏE
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Village of La Grange

FY 2012 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL PERSON N EL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

q.
*

7. Differential treatment between

Union line employees & non-Union

supervisory personnel

8. Changes would effect non-

union employees first, which is

only 40% of workforce & consists

of: support, technical, supervisory
personnel& mgmt. team

9. Most meaningful way to effect

"structural changes" to
compensation & benefíts is

through collective bargaining

reform.

8. Compensation & benefit

) Cap Vlg contribution towards

monthly health increase premiums

to a flat dollar amount, such as

current cost of single coverage

ErI!4Eñfr¡! I¡IIE î|IETTFF etlEEfrirlErlEræ srFrfcitiï¡illriïß
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Village of La Grange

FY 2012 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

6a.
*

1. Staff recommendation -
maintain three vehicles in Com.
Dev. Dept.; no add'|. annual
contributions; replace vehicles on
an as needed basis davailable
funds; no vehicle replacement for
Admin; take funds accumulated in

ERF & transfer into GF reserves;
any mileage reimbursement for
Admin & Fínance staff to be
absorbed into current training &
membership line-item budget.

The Community Development
Dept. will target consideration of
replacement at 65 - 70K miles;
evaluating condition annually
thereafter.

(combined w/ staff comments)Attached you willfind an exhibit
which compares the continued
practice of purchasing
administrative vehicles against
other options such as stípends or
mileage reimbursement

MISC. EXPENSES

1. Replace administrative
vehicles w/stipends or mileage

Errt¡lldilEMl+] l"?tr'trrEïI+ffi sEríIrãr¡ifülr¡fß
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Village of La Grange

tY 2OI2 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

.t

I

2. Two adm vehicles are shared
by 3 full-time inspectors (Env.

Health, Code Enforcement &
Blding lnspector). These vehicles
are in regular use. \Mrile not a
direct extension of their workplace,
such as a squad car is to Police
Officers or as a pickup truck is to
DPW, these vehicles are driven
hard by nature of the localized
travel & under conditions, in my
opinion, not reasonably
compensated through a stipend or
mileage reimbursement.

Operationally, it is easier to make a
determination for work-related
accidents & injuries while operating
a Vlg vehicle. The Vlg should
continue to retain these 2 vehicles
in its fleet.

lf the Vlg were to eliminate these 2
vehicles, possession of a personal
vehicle & at a professional grade
(i.e. - clean appearance,
operational, sedan)would need to
become a job requirement; a
condition of employment which
may not be immediately satisfied
by 2 ol our 3 inspectors.

1. Replace administrative vehicles
w/stipends or mileage (conf.)

EETWSIMS' rñtriltiE E SÍETí{FT¡IIÍET¡Tß
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Village of La Grange

tY 2Ot2 - L3 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON.PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

ç
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1,

3. The 3rd administrative vehicle
is shared by the Com. Dev.
Director & the Asst. Com. Dev.
Director as well as the inspectors.
It is also a take-home vehicle for
the Director. lf the Vlg were to
eliminate this vehicle, itwould
represent the termination of a long-
standing benefit to the Director.

4. The staff of the Admin Dept. &
Finance Dept. primarily the AVM &
Finance Director, utilize the Admin
vehicle. Travelis nominal. These
individuals will be provided
w/mileage reimbursement w/in
existing training & membership line
items.

5. Vlg vehicles help to identiff Vlg
employees; reduces the amount of
citizen reports of "suspicious
person" or "suspicious vehicle".

1. Loss ofone means of
communicating with residents

2. Older residents like information
re: new businesses; not heavy
interneUemail users; often
observed posted on the refrigerator
door.

None, Nominal productivity gain.$15,000 annualsavings

1. Replace administrative vehicles
Wstipends or mileage (cont'.)

2. Discontinue Village
Spokesman

@@u imrrtriEïtrffi EM@I@ sfErír}ãñälr¡fF



Village of La Grange

FY 20L2 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

6'\
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3. Whenever citizen feedback is
requested or news items are
published, seems more people
respond (by ref.) to Spokesman
than email blasts (560
subscribers).

Potential increase in maintenance
costs

This project involves updating the
Village's Municipal Code, as
ordinances are enacted. Hiring a
third party as proposed in the
Village budget is sensible because
of the volume of work, cross-
referencing function to be
performed as part of this process,
& convert into electronic format.
Once fully updated, the thought
would be to maintain the municipal
code in-house.

Would work Win budget; delay as
needed

None

$19,000 savings; one time only

$20,000 savings; one-time only

2. Discontinue Village
Spokesman (cont'.)

3. Reduce new equipment line-
item by 50% across alloperating
budgets for FY 2012:13

4. Defer codification project

õ



Village of La Grange

tY 20t2 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS
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1. Losesenseofplace

2. LGBA will not support & has no
interest at this time. Reasons why:

+ dilutes "La Grange" as !E_
brand

+ would look like other towns;
lose our identity

--+ who gets posted on LG Rd.
v. side streets would be a constant
source of frustration

+ consider street banners as
part of their support for CBD SSA
& non-home-rule sales tax

-+ local businesses see joint
promotions wA/lg as better use &
better stretch of advertising dollars

3. Staff recommendation would be
to continue this integral program
with no changes. Failing that, staff
would recommend to discontinue
program rather than have street
banners Wnames of sponsoring
businesses

lncreased staff time to promote &
solicit revised program structure

$12,500 savings; one time only

PROGRAMS & SERVICES

5. Street banners - implement
50/50 cost sharing program w/ LG

businesses

EEIæWI! @ilEE 0 @t@ çEïífrfi¡rälh.lE
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Village of La Grange

FY 2012 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

1. Notrecommended. Community
vitality will be reduced (core
strategic value).

1. Notrecommended. Community
vitality will be reduced (core
strategic value).

2. Lose sense of place

3. Residents & local businesses
would perceive as a reduction in
service

1. Notrecommended. Community
vitality will be reduced (core
strategic value).

2. lose sense of place

3. Residents & local businesses
would perceive as a reduction in

svc.

1. Reduced support for LGBA
would result in loss of LGBA
Executive Director

2. Reduction or cancellation of
specialevents

3. Reduced advertising &
promotion of the Vlg

4. Potential for reduced sales tax

Productivity gains:

1. 3-5 days w/time to order &
design
2. Two day project to plant; 12-15
people
3. watering
4. replanUvandalism
5. replant -1alll2-3 days, less
people

1. Productivity gain
- no contractor oversight
- no staff time to remove

$20,000 annualsavings

$25,000 annualsavings

$15,000 - every other year
beginning inFY 2012-13

7. Eliminate planting of flowers in

CBD

6. Reduce Econ. Dev. budgetby
approximately 1/3

8. Eliminate holiday tree
wrapping on LG Rd.

EEtætrilrfiÐ @EN o @I@ slErírftFirÍErirE



Village of La Grange
FY 2Ot2 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

*

1. Cost effective method to
ugment patrol operations and

specialdetails such as CBD patrol
traffic enforcement

1. Responsibility for disposal shifts
to individual homeowners

2. Fly-dumping, property
maintenance & related concerns

1. Direct reduction in special
details such as CBD patroland
traffic enforcement.

2. Specialdetails, if authorized,
would require expenditure of OT

3. Would reduce sustained
presence around schools

Productivity gain examples -
+ water system valve exercising
--+ catch basin cleaning

4. Would reduce supportive role to
patrol operations

$45,000 annualsavings

¡) $60,000 - cost of disposal;
annual savings

ii) Manpower & equipment savings
over time

9. Eliminate PT Police program

10. Free Fall Leaf P/U Program

EE}EilEfifn¡l c¡lr*ufn¡r[ SHfuETÍEET¡ÍE



Village of La Grange

tY 2012 - L3 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

1. Aesthetics of residential
neighborhoods

2. Equity re: residents who
enjoyed removal & replanting
(100% of benefit)

1. ln FY 2010-11, the Vlg created
a separate line-item in the Capital
Projects Fund to track the cost of
removing parkway trees infected
by the Emerald Ash Borer &
providing for their replacement.
The cost of replanting is estimated
to be approx. $1.8M to be
performed overan 8-12yr period.

This line-item allocation was in
addition to the tree planting line-
item in the Capital Projects Fund,
at an annual budget allocation of
approx. $50,000 peryear.

lf the EAB line-item is eliminated to
reduce Vlg expenses, we would
propose to continue Mtree
& reforestation related to the EAB

existing tree planting budget
approx. $50,000 per year

No productivity gain as EAB
reforestation program was to be
implemented w/existing staff,
would still be available as a
resource for questions on trees
located on both public property &

$1.8M savings (trees only; over 12-
yr. period)

Would still need to remove
diseased/dead trees.

11. EAB Reforestation Program
EEr$iltffiifi¡l t?¡r{üEEïI+ffi dI@ sÌEríl.t:rÍilitlrifE
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Village of La Grange

FY 2Ot2 - t3 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

Concern doverall public safety

1. See staff report for
recommendation.

1. Previously discussed as a
school directed-volunteer
opportunity.

Service leveloptions:
i) use salt supply w/o

restriction; once depleted, no more
salting

ii) ration salt usage to main
roads & at intersections in
residential areas

1. No change in manpower or
equipment

2. lncreased vehicle
accidents/incidents of public safety
throughout the Vlg such as at train
station platforms, Ogden Ave
bridge, etc.

3. lncreased service calls, despite
education process

4. Longeremergency response
times for Police & Fire

Would replace signs as needed
w/in existing operating budget

None. Nominal productivity gain
re: scheduling & staffing

$60,000 annual savings

$100,000 savings; one time only

$80,000 annual savings

12. Reduce salt purchasing
budget by 50%

13. Eliminate Residential Street
Sign Replacement Program

14. Eliminate crossing guard
program

@EW @ilEE C¡IEEEEIE@ sEnl¡lãri!üillr¡fñ
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Village of La Grange

FY 2Ot2 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

q,
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1. Extremely popular program,
dannual waiting list for
participation.

2. Program in keeping wA/illage
objective to maintain safe
residential neighborhood/
environment

Not recommended. Data required
for capital maintenance &
replacement

Delayed maintenance for aging
sewer infrastructure could result in
more expensive repairs at later
date due to total collapse.

1. Productivity gain - contractual
svc., requires staff time to manage
& oversee project.

2. Poor sidewalk conditions
increases liability/exposure,
possibly resulting in legalaction

3. Loss of residential matching
contribution, resulting in fewer
sidewalk sguares being replaced
1. Productivity gain - contractual
svc, requires staff time to manage
& oversee project..

2. lncreased svc. calls due to
inoperable sewers from less
cleaning & increase sewer
blockage 8,/or collapse.

3. Eliminates collection of data for
sewer condition & replacement
schedule
Productivity gain - contractual svc,
requires staff time to manage &
oversee project.

$15,000 annualsavings

$25,000 annual savings (Replaces
catch basin/manhole replacement
until sewer televising is complete.
Sewer Fund continues to budget
$35,000 annually for catch basin
replacement).

$100,000 annual savings,
beginning in FY 2015-16

15. Capital Maintenance

-+ sêwêr televising/cleaning

+ sewer lining

+ sidewalks
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Village of La Grange

FY 2012 - 13 Village Budget 2.0

POTENTIAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE REDUCTIONS

ç
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1. Already postponed 1, full year
payment in FY 2010-11

2. Staff annually evaluates the
replacement schedule & vehicles
scheduled to be replaced as part
budget development process.
Vehícles retained if in good
working order. For example,
sewer vactor retained 5-yrs beyond
scheduled replacement date. Also,
Police Dept. identified new parking
enforcement vehicles; reduced
ERF cost by 50%. We attempt to
strike a balance between maint
costs, operational efficiency, &
trade-in value. Replace when
needed, not because money is
available.

3. Subject to evaluation for timely
replacement of mission-critical
vehicles

4. Replace police squads as a
group; not staggered

5. Shift in policy - debt financing;
shortfalls in adequate funding, etc.

6. Great planning tool; retain
of this fund

None
OPTIONS:
1. $275,000 savings; onetime
only

2. ERF - extend replacement
schedule for all vehicles by 1 year
& reschedule squad cars from 2 to
3 yrs = $45,000 savings

3. ERF - extend replacement
schedule for all vehicles by 2 yrs -
except squads - stay at 3 yrs =
$65,000 savings

4. 112 of annual transfer =
$150,000 savings or say reduced
transfer of $50,000 per yr over 3
yrs = $150,000 savings

16. Eliminate transfer to ERF in
FY 2012-13

EMIICTilEMT' rË+rulñIïffi MfuEffiñI!
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Administrative Vehicles - Purchase vs. Stipend vs. Reimb

A - Five year Cost - Gurrent ERF Budget; based on l0 year replacement schedule

FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY2015-16 FY 2016-17
Adm 2000 Taurus 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250

CD 2003 Taurus 2,070 2,070 2,070 2,070 2,070

2007 Taurus 1,890 1 ,890 1,890 1,890 1,890

2008 Taurus 1.980 1,980 1,980 1.980 1.980

TotalAnnual Reserve 8,190 8,190 8,190 8,190 8,190

Adm Fuel/OilBudget 250 250 250 250 250

CD Fuel/OilBudget 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000

Annual Maintenance - Four vehicles 500 500 500 500 500

lnsurance - IRMA nla nla nla nla nla

Total Cost - Four vehicles 10,940 10,940 10,940 10,940 10,940

No savings in General Fund or ERF - Continue to reserve for replacement of all four vehicles

B - Stipends
Village Manager

Current Contract
nla nla nla nla nla

Assistant Village Manager
($50 Per month)

Finance Director
($50 Per month)

Community Development Dir
($300 per month)

Building lnspectors - 2
($200 Per month)

Annual Savings - General Fund
ERF Savings - One time due to no

vehicle replacement (4)

9,600 9,600 9.600 9.600

600

600

3,600

4,800

600

600

3,600

4,800

600

600

3,600

4.800

600

600

3,600

4,800

600

600

3,600

4.800

9.600

1,340 1,340 1,340

Residents concern/impression of Village employee's utilizing personalvehicles which may not be well
maintained and no identification/markings (m plates)

1,340
62,300

3401

ri

AVM & FD stipend reflects minimal usage of administrative vehícle.
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C - Reimbursement - Federal Rate $.55 per mile

Ave Annual Miles
Adm 2000 Taurus 1,500

CD 2003 Taurus 4,000

2007 Taurus 2,500

2008 Taurus 4,500

Annual Savings - General Fund
ERF Savings - One time due to no

vehicle replacement (4)

FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY2015-16 FY 2016-17
825 825 825 825 825

2,200

1,375

2,475

2,200

1,375

2,475

2,200

1,375

2,475

2,200

1,375

2,475

2,200

1,375

2,475

6,875 6,875 6,875 6,875 6,875

4,065 4,065 4,065 4,065

Residents concern/impression of Village employee's utilizing personalvehicles which may not be well
maintained and no Village markings/identification (m plates)

Adm vehicle reimb based on ave miles driven over life of vehicle. Actual reimbursable miles are
most likely significantly less for AVM and FD and could be absorbed in current T&M budget.

4,065
62,300

D - Maintain Three CD vehicles, No Adm vehicle and no mileage reimb forAVM & FD

Reimb Adm 2000 Taurus 1500 miles 0 0 00

0

0

0CD 2003 Taurus - 10-15 year replcmnt 0 0 0 0
($42,000 currently available in ERF for replacement of 3 CD vehicles. No additional annual
contributions. Replace vehicles on as need basis with available funds.

CD 2007Taurus 0 0 0 0

CD 2008 Taurus 0

2,000

500

0

2,000

500

0

2,000

500

0

0

2,000

500

CD Fuel/Oil Budget

Annual Maintenance - Three CD vehicles
(tires, tune up, etc.) increase to $500
in out years due to aging fleet
lnsurance - IRMA

Annual Savings - General Fund
ERF Savings - One time due to no

vehicle replacement for VM

2,000

nla nla nla nla

2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

500

nla

8,440 8,440 8,440 8,440

Adm vehicle reimb based on ave miles driven over life of vehicle. Actual reimbursable miles are
most likely significantly less for AVM and FD and could be absorbed in current T&M budget.

8,440
25,000

v

filename:users/finance/bud I 3/adm vehicles-purch-stipend-reimb.xls
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V¡llage of La Grange
Police Squad Reolacement Analvsis

Current 2 Year Gvcle - Gost Estimate
2year cycle, replacement cost of

$175,000 in FY 2014-15

Ma¡nt budgetfor Squad cars - based on 6,500
most recent 2 yr actual costs: FY 07-08 & FY 08-09

Trade ln Value - $5,500

Total
FY2012-13 FY2013-14 FY2014-15 FY2015-16 FY2016-'17 FY2017-18 FY2018-19 FY2019-20 FY2020-21 FY2021-22 FY2022-23 FY2023-24 Cost

87,500 87,500 90,000 90,000 92,500 92,500 95,000 95,000 97,500 97,500 100,000 100,000

8,500 6,500 8,500 6,500 8,500 6,500 8,500 6,500 8,500 6,500 8,500

Change over cost

Addtl ma¡nt cost in FY 2012-13 due to
delayed replacement

15,000

3 Year Cvcle - Cost Est¡mate
3 year cycle, revised replacement cost of

$177,500 in FY 2015-16

Maint budgetforSquad cars - based on 6,500 16,000
most recent 3 yr actual costs: FY 09-1 0, FY 1 0-1 1 & FY 1 1-12

Trade ln Value - $3,500

Changeover Cost

22,500 6,500 16,000 22þ00 6,500 16,000 22,500 6,500 16,000 22,500

109.000 82.500 96.500 82.500 99.000 82.500 101.500 82.500 104.000 82.s00 106.500 82.500

Ave Annual Cost

Fy2012-13 FY2013-14 FY2014-15 FY20l5-16 î(20',t6-17 FY2017-18 FY2018-19 FY2019-20 FY2020-2',t FY2021-22 FY2022-23 FY2023-24
59,167 59,167 59,167 60,833 60,833 60,833 62,500 62,500 62,s00 62,500 62,500 62,500

(38,500)

25,000

nla

nla

(42,000)

26,000

nla

(7,000)

26,000

nla

(45,500)

27,000

nla

(26,250)

27,000

nla

nle

(49,000)

28,000

nla

nla

(8,750)

28,000

nla

(52,500)

29,000

nlanla

(24,s00)

25,500

nla

nla

(28,000)

28,500

nla

nla

nla

nla

nla

nla

nle nla

nla nla nla

nla

(56,000)

30,000

nla

(29,750)

30,000

nle

(10,500)

30,000

nla

Ave Annual Cost
Annual Savings 24year
Annual Savings 3-4 year

1,111,500

92,625

932,499

77,708
14,917

Addtl ma¡nt cost in FY 2012-13 due to
delayed replacement

15.000 nla nla

Rn âÂ7 75.167 82.867 67.333 76.833 84.083 69.000 78,500 85.500 6S,000 78.500 85.250

Ave Annual Cost
Annual Savings 2-3year

Fy2012-13 Fy2013-14 Fy2014]t5 Fy2015-16 FY2016-17 FY2017J!8 FY2018-19 FY2019-20 FY2020-21 FY2021-22 FY2022-23 FY2023-24
45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 47,500 47,500 47,500 47,500 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000

16,000 22,500 32,000 6,500 16,000 22,500 32,000 6,500 16,000 22,500 32,000

4 Year Cvcle - Cost Estimate
4 year cycle, rev¡sed replacement cost of

$180,000 in FY 2016-17

Maint budgetfor Squad cars - based on 6,500
most recent 3 yr actual costs with est. cost ¡n year 4

Trade ln Value - $l,000

Changeover cost

Addtl maint cost in FY 2012-13 due to
delayed replacement

15.000 nla nla

66.500 61,000 67,500 96,000 54,000 63,500 70,000 98,750 56,s00 66,000 72,500 101,500 873,750

<.
?-(5\^
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72,813
19,813
4,896



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
GENERALFIJND

FI.JND BALANCE SUMMARY THROUGH APRIL 3O,2OI7

Fund Balance, April 30,2009

2009-10
2009-10

2015-t6
20ts-16

2016-17
20t6-17

11,929,187
(12,480,657)

7,686,967

(551,470)

APPENDIX A

Fund Balance
as o/o of Annual

Expenditures

5298%

5l.43Yo

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2010

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2011

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2012

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2013*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2014*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 20 l5*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2016*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2017*

11,733,613
(t2,131,487)

7,135,497 57.17%

(397,874)
2010-l I
2010-l I

20tt-12
20tl-12

2014-15
2014-ts

12,255,932
(12,416,117)

6,737,623 s5.54%

(160,185)

2012-t3
2012-13

2013-t4
2013-t4

12,4011406

I

(131,s66)

6,445,972

(1 )

13,030,796
(12,878,830)

UTILITY TAX INCREASE
151,966

6,597,839 5t.23%

106,2ll

6,704,050 50.24%

76,160

6,780,209 49.19%

34.666

13,450,946
(13,344,736\

13,860,641
(13,794,491)

14,281,200
(14,246,534)

CURRENT BUDGET

* Includes $750,000 Assigned Fund Balance for Economic Development.

6,914,976 47.84%

lú
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VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
GENERAL FUND

FUND BALANCE SUMMARY THROUGH APzuL 3O,2OI7

Fund Balance, April 30,2009

APPENDIX B

Fund Balance

as o/o of Annual
Expenditures

2009-10
2009-10

11,929,187
(12,480,657)

7,686,967

(551,470)
Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2010

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2011

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2012

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2013*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2014*

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2015*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2016*

Revenues

Expenses

2010-l r

2010-l I
11,733,613

(12,131,487)

7,135,497 57.t7%

(397,874)

6,737,623 55.54o/o

(160,185)
20tl-t2
20tt-12

2012-13
2012-13

2013-14

2013-t4

20t4-ts
2014-15

20ts-16
2015-16

2016-t7
2016-17

12,255,932
(12,416,117)

6,577,438 52.98o/o

CURRENT BUDGET
12,401,406

(12,532,971)

12,845,796
(12,878,830)

13,255,946
(13,344,736)

13,655,641
(13,784,481)

(131,566)

6,445,972 51.43%

NO UTILITY TAX INCREASE
(33,034)

6,412,839 49.79%

(88,789)

6,324,050 47.39o/o

(128,840)

6,195,209 44.94%

180 34

14,066,200
(14,246,534)

Fund Balance, April 30,2017*

/
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* Includes S750,000 Assigned Fund Balance for Economic Development.

6,014,876 42.22%



VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
GENERAL FI.JND

FUND BALANCE SUMMARY THROUGH APRIL 30, 2OI7

Fund Balance, April 30,2009

APPENDIX C

7,696,967

Fund Balance

as o/o of Annual
Expenditures

(551,470)

7,135,497 57.17%

(397,874)

6,737,623 5554%

(l 60,1 85)

77,438 s2.98%

30.43s

6,607,873 53.41%

23,966

6,631,840 sr.68%

UTILITYTAX INCREASE
l43,2tt

6,775,051 50.91%

l3 I,160

6,906,2lo s0.30%

78,666

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2010

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,201 I

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2012

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2013*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2014*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2015*

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2016*

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2017*

2009-to
2009-10

11,929,187
(t2,480,657)

2010-l I
2010-l I

2013-t4
2013-14

2014-15

2014-15

11,733,613
(12,131,487\

20tt-t2
20tt-12

2012-13
2012-t3

12,255,932
(12,416,117)

12,4011406

(12,370,970)

12,855,796
(12,83 1,830)

13,450,946
(13,307,736\

2015-16
2015-r6

2016-t7
2016-17

13,860,641
(t3,729,481)

14,281,200
(14,202,534)

lv
9

\í

PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENTS

* Includes S750,000 Assigned Fund Balance for Economic Development.

6,994,977 49,18%

?"



Fund Balance, April 30,2009

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2010

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 201 I

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2012

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April30, 2013*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2014*

Revenues

Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30, 2015*

Revenues
Expenses

Fund Balance, April 30,2016*

Revenues

Expenses

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE
GENERAL FLIND

FUND BALANCE SUMMARY THROUGH APRIL 3O,2OI7

APPENDIX D

7,696,967

Fund Balance

as o/o of Annual
Expenditures

11,929,187
(12,480,657) (551,470)

7,135,497 57.17o/o

11,733,613
(12,131,487\ (397,874)

6,737,623 55.54o/o

12,255,932
(12,416,117\ ( 1 60,1 85)

6,577,438 52.98%

PROPOSED BUDGET AMENDMENTS
12,401,406

(12,370,970) 30,435

6,607,873 53.41%

12,855,796
(12,831,830) 23,966

6,631,840 51.68%

13,265,946

(13,307,736)
NO UTILITY TAX INCREASE

(41,789)

6,590,051 49.52%

13,665,641
(13,729,481) (63,840)

6,526,210 47.53%

14,076,200
(14,202,534\

2009-10
2009-10

2010-l I
2010-l I

20tt-12
20tl-12

2012-13
2012-13

2013-14
2013-14

2014-15

20t4-15

2015-t6
2015-16

2016-17
20t6-17 (126,334)

6,399,877Fund Balance, April 30, 2017*

* Includes $750,000 Assigned Fund Balance for Economic Development.

45.06%
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Board of Trustdes Regular Meeting Minutes

Monday, June I1,2012 - Page 3

and as such must secure approval of the Village Board
issue and/or refund debt. The Village has been advised that by
outstanding General Obligation Library Bonds which were issued and due
to mature in2024, to fund construction of the new library bui Village
residents could incur a net interest savings of 0,000. In order
to achieve these savings on interest, the Village needs the engagement
of a financial consultant; approve the engagement counsel; and adopt a
bond ordinance for the refunding issue stated that the Village
would not incur any expenses related to the as the consulting contracts
would be included as part of the Library rssue.

Trustee Nowak noted that Village recommends approval of contracts from
Speer Financial, Inc. as and Chapman and Cutler as bond
counsel, both of which the has previously engaged and retained for other
projects. Trustee
does not apply to

that the state professional services selection law
advisors or attorneys. Should the Board approve these

contracts, the next would be for Speer Financial to present the refinancing
plan to the La Library Board on June 19 and then to the Village Board for

the Village Board meeting on July 9,2012.

Trustee moved to approve the contracts from Speer Financial, Inc. as

consultant and Chapman and Cutler as bond counsel for the refunding of
Library Bonds, seconded by Trustee Langan.

by a roll call vote

Ayes:
Nays:
Absent:

Trustees Holder, Horvath, Kuchler, Nowak, Langan, and Palermo
None
None

President Asperger asked if there were any citizen comments prior to beginning the
continued discussion. Seeing none she proceeded with the Manager' of

6. MANAGER'S REPORT

A. Workshop - Continued Budget Discussion

President Asperger provided a detailed overview regarding the on-going budget
development process. Although it was conceived that there was a consensus from
the Board to move forward with the municipal utility taxes for gas and electricity,
the unexpected defeat of the proposed increase in the utility tax created an annual
budget shortfall. Recognizing that the Board did not wish to impose any
additional fees or tax on residents a revised budget for FY 2012-13 was approved
and the proposed utility tax increase postponed to FY 2013-14.

{,,6(1/
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Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes
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President Asperger added that mixed direction from the Board and their concerns

that abudget deficit incurred, created the need for further budget discussions and
direction on how to cut expenses or enhance revenues to overcome the budget
shortfall. Noting the Board's strategic planning goals to provide high quality
services effrciently, President Asperger added that the Board has also recognized
the economic climate and challenges faced at both the local and State level, and
by residents.

Explaining the implementation of cost containment practices and successful
execution of that plan, President Asperger referenced the Board's need to identiff
further reductions. President Asperger noted that it may also be appropriate for
the Board to examine whether a basic change in financial policy is needed.

President Asperger opened the continued budget discussion based on staff s

recommendations to reduce expenditures by approximately $162,000 for FY
2012-t3.

Trustee Holder inquired if residential street sign replacements could be delayed
according to federal requirements. Public V/orks Director Ryan Gillingham
responded that federal guidelines regarding deadlines for required street sign
replacements have been extended. Trustee Holder feels the over-arching goals to
maintain and improve the lives of residents should remain a priority. He is
comfortable with the direction the Village is heading and feels finding more
efficiencies in Village operations is important over the long term.

Trustee Horvath expressed concerns starting at the policy level. Consistently
raising taxes and fees yet cutting services is not amicable. He believes there is a
need to look at new ideas for structural changes. Trustee Horvath said that the
proposed direction is good and that the Village should continue to improve on its
service delivery models. He would like to see more value in the cost of service
being delivered.

Trustee Kuchler concurs with most comments presented. He proceeded to clarify
his decision making on the utility tax and the water rate increases. Trustee
Kuchler agreed that while the quality of life goal is important, he is not willing to
rubber-stamp tax increases. Expenses should not exceed revenue.

Trustee Palermo stated his concerns are revenue orientated and that structural
changes are necessary. Adding his grave concerns for pension fi.rnding, Trustee
Palermo does not believe the mortality tables and actuarial assumptions are
accurate and insuftìcient funds are being allocated to the Police and Fire pensions.

Trustee Nowak recognized staff s commitment to contain costs and for working
together to maximize efficiencies. Noting that tax increases affect everyone,
Trustee Nowak added that the Village faces aging infrastructure issues and tax
increases should be reserved to address them. He does not support tax increases

(o
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Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes
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to fund operations. Trustee Nowak added that he would like to look at other
options before considering any increases in taxes. Staff reductions would remain
at the bottom of the list. Trustee Nowak feels that expenses should be looked at
each year to determine what is and what is not immediately essential.

In anticipation of the budget discussion, Trustee Langan spoke to residents who
expressed concerns if the Village were to reduce or cutback services. Trustee
Langan noted the necessity to cover expenses and short-term solutions to long
term problems may not be the answer to resolve budget shortfalls. Trustee
Langan noted his concerns that the Village Board may not be following its own
financial management and financial planning policies.

President Asperger summarized the Village Board's discussion of general fiscal
objectives as follows: (i) no change in policy to preserve the quality of life in La
Grange through the delivery of high quality Village services; (ii) with respect to
considering the cost of delivering Village services, be creative / innovative in
doing things differently to sustain or improve upon curent business methods; (iii)
closely scrutinize expenses when the cost of delivering that service may prompt a
tax increase; (iv) Village employees and the management team are still highly-
valued assets; and (v) the Village Board is concerned with deficit spending and
corresponding erosion of reserves. Realizing the need to overcome budget
deficits, President Asperger referenced stafls preliminary recommendations for
further consideration.

Discussion ensued related to expense reduction opportunities involving the
replacement of administrative vehicles and squad cars. Trustees inquired about
replacement cycles; extended warranties; and utilizing old squad cars as
administrative vehicles rather than purchasing new vehicles. Finance Director
Lou Cipparrone responded to inquiries related cost savings and budget funding.

President Asperger noted that the recommended vehicle replacement cost savings
would be reflected in budget amendments for the current fiscal year 2012-13.

Trustee Palermo suggested alternatives in the distribution of newsworthy items in
place of the production of the Village Spokesman newsletter. President Asperger
indicated that the newsletter has been condensed to one page and is an important
communication tool which numerous residents prefer.

In order to provide direction to staff, President Asperger indicated she would poll
the Board for their input on staff s recommendations regarding potential
reductions in personnel and/or non-personnel expenses.

Trustee Langan noted his support of staff s recommendations for the non-
personnel expense reductions as presented.

þ\
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Trustee Kuchler echoed Trustee Langan and does not favor a reduction in
personnel, however, advised management that when vacancies occur to look at
alternatives such as part-time employees, cross-use and combining jobs. Trustee
Kuchler advised that total compensation should not exceed revenue coming in.
He suggested that wages should be coordinated with the CPI. The cr¡rrent
compensation system is not sustainable and changes need to be made.

Trustee Horvath will support staff s recommendations related to refraining from
purchasing administrative vehicles, however, would like more detail on the
proposed replacement of police squad cars. Trustee Horvath concurs with Trustee
Kuchler that structural changes in operating models are necessary. He does not
support lay-offs.

Trustee Palermo concurs with Trustee Horvath and believes staff
recommendations are directionally correct but continues to have grave concerns
related to pension funding. He agrees with the Village Board's position of no lay-
ofß.

Trustee Holder supports staff recommended changes and the discussion
concerning no lay-offs. He is hopeful that a combination of growth and cost-
cutting will stabilize Village finances.

Trustee Nowak applauded the Village Board and staff for working together in
reducing expenses without cutting services or increasing taxes.

President Asperger appreciates support to move forward with stafPs
recommendations and noted budget amendments would be foth coming.
Referencing the replacement and purchase of new police squad vehicles,
President Asperger indicated that they would be presented for future
consideration.

Referencing possible revenue enhancement from an amusement tax, President
Asperger opened the discussion to the Board.

Trustee Horvath expressed his favor of an amusement tax on the theater

Trustee Palermo supports the concept.

Trustee Kuchler is opposed and does not want to dedicate staff or legal resources
to the matter.

Trustee Langan is not in favor of a tax that targets a specific business

Trustee Nowak concurs with Trustee Langan and is not in favor of an amusement
tax on the theater.
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Trustee Holder would like additional information.

President Asperger asked the Village Manager to lead the thought process and

make some effort in gathering additional information as time permits.

Village Manager Pilipiszyn thanked the Village Board for its strong and unified
message concerning Village employees and the management team, and that staff
is here to serve and wants to serve the Village Board and residents.

7. PUBLI MA ONA

None

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION

9 TRUSTEE COMMENTS

Trustee Langan congratulated Village Manager Pilipiszyn 20 years ofservice and

his passion for excellence in the management of the V

Trustees Nowak and Kuchler expressed their
Manager Pilipiszyn for his work ethics.

and thanks to Village

Referencing the level of detail to the V
Trustee Holder noted the outcome of a

's budget analysis and report,

longevity explains the kind of support
meeting and believes that 20 years of
by Manager Pilipiszyn.

Trustee Horvath added his to Village Manager Pilipiszyn as well as

Lyons Township High School excellence in sports activities.

On behalf of the entire illage Manager Pilipiszyn expressed his thanks for the
Boards trust and in staffls commitment to public service

IO. ADJOURNMENT

At 9:55 p.m. it moved by Trustee Langan to adjourn, seconded by Trustee Nowak.
Motion by voice vote.

Elizabeth M. Asperger, Village President
ATTES

Morsch, Village Clerk Approved Date:
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